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Chairman's Statement

Dear Shareholders,

Tayo had faced challenging times in the past. The subdued growth in the infrastructure sector, over capacity situation in
the Rall and Forging industry, delayed technology absorption for next generation rolls along with several other factors
have led to severe financial constraints resulting in continued cashlosses and erosion of net worth ofthe Company.

As a result, your Company was referred to the Board for Industrial and Financial Reconstruction (BIFR) under First
Proviso to Section 15(1) of Sick Industrial Companies (Special Provisions) Act 1985 (SICA) . With effect from
December 1, 2016, SICAwas repealed and Insclvency and Bankruptcy Code 2016 (IBC)was introduced. During the
year the Company filed an application before the National Company Law Tribunal (NCLT), Keolkata ufs 10 of IBC,
seeking initiation of Corporate Insclvency Resolution Process (CIRP). The NCLT Kolkata rejected the application of
the Company .An appeal has been filed before National Company Law Appellate Tribunal (NCLAT) challenging the
rejection orderof NCLT Kolkata. Thematteris sub-judice.

Despite relentless efforts and continued support from all stakeholders, especially from the Promaoter(s), the suboptimal
performance has resulted in continuous losses. Ason 31.03.2018 the accumulated lossesis at Rs 51399 lakh and the
Company's current liabilities exceeded its current assets. The operations of the Company have also remained closed
since September 2016.

Despite the above, through continuous engagement with the Promoter, your company has been able to raise funds
mainly through preferential allotment of Non- Cumulative Redeemable Preference Shares to Tata Steel Limited, the
Promoter, to meet its financial obligations towards various stakeholders, to the extent possible.

| am grateful to our Promoter(s) for extending their unstinted financial and managerial support. | also take this
opportunity fo express my sincere gratitude and heartfelt thanks of entire “Tayo Family “ to our shareholders,
customers , bankers , suppliers, employees, Tayo Workers Union, Members of the Board and other stakeholders, for
their continued supporttothe Company and Management.

Anand Sen

Chairman
(DIN: 00237914)
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HIGHLIGHTS
2017-18# |2016-17# |2015-16

OPERATIONAL
Production - Rolls Tonnes - 1205 6767

- Pig Iron Tonnes - 9067 25281

- Ingot Tonnes - 48 4413

- Engineering Forging| Tonnes = T2 707
Sales - Rolls Tonnes 3 1274 6750

- Pig Iron Tonnes - 9179 24474

- Ingot Tonnes - - 96

- Engineering Forging| Tonnes - 174 707
FINANCIAL
Turnover (Gross) Rs. lakhs 94 5266 14181
Depreciation Rs. lakhs 478 694 1676
Profit Before Tax Rs. lakhs (2566) (8295) (15684)
Profit After Tax Rs. lakhs (2566) (8295) (15684)
Net Worth Per Share Rupees (436.91) (411.95) (331.12)
Transfer to General Reserve Rs. lakhs - - -
Shareholder's Funds Rs. lakhs | (44831.26)| (42265.72)| (33973)
Employee’s Cost Rs. lakhs 1387 2206 3888
Dividend Percent - - -

# Operations have been suspended from May 2016 onwards and remained suspended in

current year also.
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NOTICE

THE FIFTIETH ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING OF TAYO ROLLS LIMITED will be held at the Auditorium of Centre for Excellence,
Jubilee Road, Bistupur, Jamshedpur—831 001 on Tuesday, September 18, 2018at 11:00a.m to fransact the following businesses:

ORDINARY BUSINESS:

1.

2

To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Financial Statements of the Company for the Financial Year ended March
31,2018 and there ports ofthe Board of Directors and the Auditors thereon.

To ap point Statutory Auditors and to fix theirremuneration.

SPECIAL BUSINESS:

3.

Retirementby rotation
To considerand if thoughtfit, to passwith orwithout modification, the following Resolution asan Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT Mr. Yoshikazu Miyasaka (DIN: 07125432), a Director liable to retire by rotation, who does not offer himself
forre-appointment, be not reappointed as a Directorof the Company and the vacancy, socaused on the Board of the Company,
be notfilled up.”

Toappoint Mr. K.Shankar Marar (DIN-06656658) as Director
To considerand, ifthought fit, to pass with orwithout modification(s ), the following resclution as an Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED that Mr. Shankar Marar (DIN- 06656658), who was appointed as an Additional Director of the Company with
effect from August 7, 2017 under section 161 of the Companies Act, 2013, and who holds office up to the date of forthcoming
Annual General Meeting of the Company and is recommended by the Nomination & Remuneration Committee for being
appointed as Director of the Company pursuant to first proviso to Section 160 of the Companies Act, 2013, be and is hereby
appointed as Directorofthe Company.”

Ratification of Material Related Party Transactions for FY 2017-18:
To considerand, if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s ), the following reselution as an Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”) read with the rules made there
under and the provisions of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 with the Stock
Exchange, approval be and is hereby given to ratify the contracts/ arrangements for availing Inter Corporate Deposits (ICDs)
for an amountof Rs. 700 lakh only from the Related Parties (as detailed in the explanatory statement to the Notice ) which were
carried outin the ordinary course ofbusiness and were also at arm's length basis during the financial year 2017-18."

Approval of Material Related Party Transactions for FY 2018-19:
To considerand, if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following reseolution as an Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”) read with the rules made there
under and the provisions of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 with the Stock
Exchange, approval be and is hereby given tothe contracts/ arangements / transactions with the Related Parties (as detailed
in the explanatory statement to the Motice ) which will be carried outin the ordinary course of business and also at arm's length
basis for asum notexceeding Rs 867 0lakh duringthe financial year2018-19."

NOTES:

h

1)

i)

Iv)

AMEMBER ENTITLED TOATTEND ANDVOTE AT THE MEETING IS ENTITLED TOAPPOINT APROXY TO ATTEND AND
ON A POLL, TO VOTE INSTEAD OF HIMSELF. A PROXY NEED NOT BE A MEMBER OF THE COMPANY. THE PROXY
FORM DULY COMPLETED SHOULD BEE DEPOSITED AT THE REGISTERED OFFICE OF THE COMPANY NOT LESS
THAN FORTY-EIGHT HOURS BEFORE THE COMMENCEMENT OF THE MEETING.

The Register of Members and Share Transfer books of the Company will remain closed from Wednesday, September 12, 2018
till Tuesday, September 18, 2018 (both days inclusive)

As per Rule 20 of the Companies (Management and Administration) Amendment Rules, 2015, the cut off date for determining
the eligibility forremote e-voting or vote at the Annual General Meeting is Tuesday, September11,2018.

During FY'12, FY'14 FY'15, FY'16, FY'17 , FY'18 & FY'19 your Company had issued Mon-cumulative Redeemable
Preference Shares to its Promoters (Tata Steel Limited & Yodogawa Steel Works Limited). Your Company has not been able to
pay dividend on these shares for the financial years FY'13, FY"14, FY'15, FY'16, FY'17 & FY'18. Therefore, according to the
provision of Section 47 read with other relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and rules made thereunder, the
preference shareholders shall have aright to vote on all the resolutions placed before the meeting, in the same proportion as

5
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the paid up capital in respect of equity shares bears to the paid up capital in respect of preference shares. Therefore, one
preference share vote is equivalent to 10 equity shares vote. Accordingly, the Preference Shareholders are enfitled to vote on
all the resolutions as menticned above.

V)  Asperthe provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, facility for making nomination is available to the shareholders in respect of
the shares held by them. Nomination forms can be obtained from the Registered Office or the Registrar & Transfer Agents by
the Members holding shares in physical form. Members holding shares in electronic form may obtain Nomination forms from
their respective depository participants.

V1) Shareholders holding shares in the physical form are requested to notify/ send the following to TSR Darashaw Limited, the
Registrar & Transfer Agents to facilitate better services:

(i) Any change intheir address/ mandate/ bank details and;

(i)  Particulars of the bank account in which they wish their dividend to be credited, in case they have not fumnished it
earlier.

Wil  Members who still have their holdings in physical form are requested to convert them into dematerialized form (under ISIN No.
INEB95CO1011).

WIll) Pursuant to Section 205A of the Companies Act, 1956, all unclaimed / unpaid dividends up fo the financial year ended March
31, 1996 have been transferred to the General Revenue Account of the Central Government. Shareholders, who have not yet
encashed their dividend warrant(s) for the said peried, are requested to forward their claims in prescribed Form to The
Companies Unpaid Dividend (Transfer to General Revenue Account of the Central Government)Rules, 197 8to:

Office of the Registrar of Companies,
Bihar & Jharkhand,

Mourya Lok, 'A' Block (4th Floor),
Dak Bungalow Road,

Patna -800 001.

Consequent upon amendment to Section 205A of the Companies Act, 1956 and introduction of Section 205C by the
Companies (Amendment) Act, 1999, the amount of dividend for the subsequent years remaining unpaid or unclaimed for a
pericd of seven years from the date of fransfer to Unpaid Dividend Account of the Company shall be transferred to the
Investors Education and Protection Fund (IEPF) set up by the Government of India and no payments shall be made in respect
of any suchclaims by the IEPF.

Accordingly, the Company has transferred to the IEPF all unclaimed/unpaid dividends in respectof the financial years 1995-
96 to 2007-08. Currently the Company doesn't have any outstanding amount, whichwarrants transfer tothe IEPF account.

I1X)  SEBI vide its circular ref no. MRD/DoP/ Cir-05/2009 dated 20.05.2009 has clarified that for securities market transactions and
off- market/ private transactions involving transfer of shares in physical form of listed companies, itshall be mandatory for the
transferee(s) to furnish a copy of the PAN Card to the Company/ RTA for registration of such transfer of shares irrespective of
the amount of such transaction.

Allintended transferee(s) are, therefore, requested to furnish a self- certified copy of their PAN Card along with the relevant
transfer deed forregistration of transfer of shares. Please note that the shares lodged for transfer without self- certified copy of
PAN Card of the transferee(s ) shall be retumed underobjection.

X) Survivor(s) of the deceased shareholders are advised to forward their request with full details and supporting documents to
the Registrar & Transfer Agents of the Company, for early transmission of Shares.

Xl)  Members desirous of any additional information as regards the Accounts are requested to write to the Company at an early
date soasto enable the Management to keep the information ready at the meeting.

Xy Inaccordance with Section 20 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 35 the Companies (Incorperation) Rules, 2014, the
Annual Reports are sent by electronic mode to those members whose email-ids are registered with the Depository for
communication purposes. The members holding shares in physical form and who have not registered their email —ids are
requested to registerthe same with TSR Darashaw Limited, the Registrars and Transfer Agents of the Company.

Xy Membersare requestedto bring the admission slips along with their copies of the Annual Report to the meeting.
XI) Process for members opting for e-voting:
The instructions and the procedure for the e-voting are as follows:

I In compliance with provisions of Section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013, Rule 20 of the Companies (Management and
Administration) Rules, 2014 as amended by the Companies (Management and Administration) Amendment Rules,
2015 and read with Regulation 44 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosures Requirements) Regulations 2015, the

6
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VI.

VIL

VI

Company is pleased to provide members facility to exercise their right to vote on resolutions proposed to be considered
at the Annual General Meeting (AGM) by electronic means and the business may be transacted through e-\oting
Services. The facility of casting the votes by the members using an electronic voting system from a place other than
venue of the AGM) (“remote e-voting” ) will be provided by National Securities Depository Limited (NSDL ).

The facility for voting through ballot paper shall be made available at the AGM and the members attending the meeting who
havenot casttheir vote by remote e-voting shall be able to exercise theirrights at the meeting through ballot paper.

Themembers who have cast their vote by remote e-voting prior to the AGM may alsoattend the AGM, but shall not be entitled to
cast their vote again.

The remote e-voting period commences on Saturday, September 15, 2018 and ends on Monday, September 17, 2018 (5:00
pm). During this period members of the Company, holding shares eitherin physical form or in dematerialized form, as on the
cut-off date of Tuesday, September 11, 2018, may cast their vote by remote e-voting. The remote e-voting medule shall be
disabled by NSDL for voting thereafter. Once the vote on a resolution is cast by the member, the membershall not be allowed to
change it subsequently.

The process and manner for remote e-voting are as under:

A In case a Member receives an email from MNSDL [for members whose email |Ds are registered with the
Company/Depository Participants(s)] :

(i) Open email and open PDF file viz; “remote e-voting.pdf” with your Client ID or Folio No. as password. The said
PDF file contains your user |D and password/PIN for remote e-voting. Please note that the password is an initial
password.

(i)  Launchinternet browser by typing the following URL: https:/fwww.evoting.nsdl.com/
(iiy  Click on Shareholder-Login
{iv)  Putuser D and password as initial password/PIN noted in step (i) above. Click Login.

(v} Password change menu appears. Change the password/FPIN with new password of your choice with minimum 8
digits/characters or combination therecf. Note new password. It is strongly recommended not to share your
password with any other person and take utmost care to keep your password confidential.

(vi) Homepageofremote e-voting opens. Click onremote e-voting: Active Voting Cycles.

(vii)  Select"EVEN"of" Tayo Rolls Limited".

(viii) MNow youare ready for remote e-voting as Cast\ote page opens.

ix)  Castyourvote by selecting appropriate optionand click on *Submit”and also *Cenfirm”when prompted.
x)  Upon confirmation, the message “Vote cast successfully” will be displayed.

{(xi) Once youhave voted ontheresolution, you will not be allowed to modify your vote.

(xii) Institutional shareholders (i.e. other than individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) are required to send scanned copy
(PDFMJPG Format) of the relevant Board Resolution/ Authority letter etc. together with attested specimen
signature of the duly authorized signatory(ies) who are authorized to vote, to the Scrutinizer through e-mail to
pramodkumar. pcs@gmail.com with acopy markedto evoting@nsdl.co.in

B. In case a Member receives physical copy of the Notice of AGM [for members whose email |Ds are not registered with the
Company/Depository Participants(s) or requesting physical copy] :

(i) Initial password is provided as below/at the bottom of the Attendance Slip forthe  AGM :
EVEN (Remote e-voting Event Number) USERID PASSWORDI/PIN
(i)  Please follow all steps from SI. No. (ii)to SI. Mo. (xii) above, to cast vote.

Incase of any queries, you may refer the Frequently Asked Questions (FAQs) for Members and remote e-voting user manual
for Members available at the downloads section of www.evoting.nsdl.com orcall on foll free no.: 1800-222-990.

If you are already registered with NSDL for remote e-voting then you can use your existing user ID and password/PIN for
casting your vote.

You can also update your mobile number and e-mail id in the user profile details of the folio which may be used for sending
future communication(s).
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Xl.

XL

XM

XV

XV

XV

The voting rights of members shall be in proportion to their shares of the paid up equity share capital of the Company as on the
cut-off date of Tuesday, September 11, 2018.

Any person, who acquires shares of the Company and become member of the Company after dispatch of the notice and
holding shares as of the cut-off date i.e. Tuesday, September 11, 2018, may obtain the login ID and password by sending a
request at evoting@nsdl.co.in or dtambe @tsrdarashaw.com

However, if you are already registered with NSDL for remote e-veting then you can use your existing user 1D and password for
casting your vote. If you forgot your password, you can reset your password by using “Forgot User Details/ Password” option
available onwww.evoting nsdl.com or contact NSDL at the following toll free no.: 1800-222-990.

Amember may participate in the AGM even after exercising his right to vote through remote e-voting but shall not be allowed to
voteagainatthe AGM.

A person, whose name is recorded in the register of members or in the register of beneficial owners maintained by the
depositories as on the cut-off date only, shall be entitled to avail the facility of remote e-voting as well as voting at the AGM
throughballotpaper.

Mr. Pramod Kumar Singh, Practicing Company Secretary, Partner, M/s P. K. Singh & Associates, Company Secretaries, has
been appointed as the Scrutinizer toscrutinize the voting and remote e-voting process in afair and transparent manner.

The Chairman shall at the end of discussion on the resolutions onwhich voting is to be held at the AGM allow voting with the
assistance of Scrutinizer, by use of *ballot Paper” for all those members who are present at the AGM but have not cast their
votes by availing the remote e-voting facility.

The Scrutinizer shall after the conclusion of voting at the Annual General Meeting, will first count the votes cast at the meeting
and thereafter unblock the votes cast through remote e-voting in the presence of atleast two witnesses notin the employment
of the Company and shall make, not later than three days of the conclusion of the AGM, a consolidated scrutinizer's report of
the total votes cast in favour or against, if any, to the Chairman or a person authorized by him in writing, who shall countersign
the same and declare the resultof the voting forthwith.

The Results declared alongwith the report of the Scrutinizer shall be placed on the website of the Company at www.tayo.co.in
and onthewebsite of NSDL immediately after the declaration of result by the Chairmanor apersonauthorized by him inwriting.
The results shall also be immediately forwarded to the BSE Limited, Mumbai.

Kolkata By Order of the Board of Directors
August 8, 2018

Registered Office: {Harpreet Kaur Bhamra)

3, CH Area (NE), Road No.11, Bistupur, Company Secretary &Compliance Officer
Jamshedpur- 831 001
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ANNEXURE TO NOTICE

Explanatory Statements pursuant to Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013

As required under Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”) the following Explanatory Statements set out all material facts
relating to the special business mentioned in ltem Nos. 3 to 6.

ltem No. 3:

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 152 of the Companies Act, 2013 and in accordance with the Articles of Association of the
Company, Mr. Yoshikazu Miyasaka, Director retires by rotation at the ensuing Annual General Meeting. Mr. Yoshikazu Miyasaka has
indicated to the Company that he is not seeking re-appointment.

Mr. Yoshikazu Miyasaka, has been on the Board of the Company since March 2015. The Board places on record its sincere
appreciation and recognition of the valuable confribution and services rendered by Mr. Yoshikazu Miyasaka during his tenure as a
Director on the Board of the Company:

The Board proposes that the vacancy caused by his retirement be not filled-up.
The Directors commend the Resoclution at item No. 3 for approval of the members.

Mone of the Directors, Key Managerial Persons of the Company and [ or their relatives are concerned or interested, financially or
otherwise, inthe said resolution except Mr. YoshikazuMiyasaka.

ltem No. 4:

Consequent upon the recall of deputation by Tata Steel Limited, Mr. K.S.Marar submitted his resignation from the office of Director
and Managing Director of Tayo Rolls Limited with effect from closure of business hours of July 31, 2017 which was accepted by the
Board. Further, the promoter feltit necessary that Mr. Marar should confinue as an Additional Directoronthe Board.

The Nomination & Remuneration Committee through circular resolution considered the proposal for appointment of Mr.K.Shankar
Marar (DIN-06656658) as an Additional Director and cnits recommendation, the Board of Directors appointed MrK.Shankar Marar,
as an additional Director with effect from August 7, 2017. In accordance with the provisions of Section 161 of the Companies Act,
2013, read with Article 133 of the Articles of Association of the Company, Mr.K Shankar Marar will hold cffice only till the date of
forthcoming Annual General Meeting.

The Nomination & Remuneration Committee in its meeting held on August 8, 2018 recommended (as per the first proviso o Section
160 of the Companies Act 201 3) that Mr. Marar be appointed as Directorin the ensuing Annual General Meeting.

Mr. Marar is a Metallurgical Engineer from the National Institute of Technology, Rourkela and did his Business Management from
Symbiosis Institute of Business Management, Pune. Mr Marar has over 26 years of experience in the steel industry. Prior to joining
Tata Steel, Mr. Marar was with SAIL & JSW Steel, and has exposure to functions, such as projects, operations, technology, planning
and strategy.

He has also contributed to several benchmark performances in steel making and was conferred the *Young Metallurgist of the Year™
Award by the Ministry of Steel, Government of India.

Mr. Mararhas undergone programmes in Total Quality Management, Innovation, and leadership programmes in the Tata Group.
The Directors commend the Resolution at item No. 4 for approval of the members.

Mr. K. S. Marar is interested and concemed in the Resolution mentioned in ltem MNo. 4 of the Notice. Other than Mr. K. S. Marar, no
other Director, Key Managerial Personnel or their respective relatives are concemed or interested in Resolution mentioned in Item
No. 4 of the Notice.

ltem No. 5:

As per Regulation 23 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Reguirements) Regulations, 2015 read with the Companies
{Meetings of Board and its Powers) Rules, 2014, all material related party transactions require approval of the shareholders.
Transaction(s) with a related party shall be considered as material if the transaction(s ) to be enteredintoindividually or taken together
with previous transaction{s) during the financial year exceeds 10 % of the annual consoclidated turnover of the Company as perlast
audited financial statements of the Company. Accordingly, the tumover for FY'17 was approx. Rs. 5266 lakh and 10% of which is
equal to Rupees 527 lakh.

During the financial year 2017-18, apart from other transactions, Tayo has also received Inter Corporate Deposit for a sum of Rs. 700
lakhfrom Tata Steel Limited atan interestrate of 7% p.a.

Therefore, the approval of shareholders is sought by way of ordinary resolution to rafify the availment of Inter Corporate Deposits
(ICDs) for a sum of Rs.700 lakh at an interest rate of 7%, as againstthe previously approved interestrate of 12.50% - 13.00%, as the
lower interest rate is beneficial to the Company. The description of the transactionis as follows:

2
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Sl Description Details
Name of the related party Tata Steel Limited
b. Name of the Director or Key Managerial Person Mone
who is related, if any
C. Nature of relationship Tata Steel Ltd is a holding Company having 54.45% shares in
the paid-up capital of the Company.
d. Mature, material terms, monetary value and Inter Corporate Deposit :
particulars of the confract or arrangement
> Inter Corporate Deposit repayable on demand
= Value — Rs. 700 Lakh.
» At an interest rate of 7.00% , as against the previously
approved interest rate of 12.50% - 13.00%
e. Any other information relevant or important for the Lower interest rate is beneficial o the Company.

members to take decision on the resolution

According to the provisions of Section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Regulation 23(4 ) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, all entities falling under the definition of “*Related Party” under Section 2(76) of the
Companies Act, 2013, irespective of the fact whether the entity is arelated party to the transaction or not, shall abstain from votingon
resolution mentioned at tem Mo. 5of the Notice.

The proposed resclution is in the interest of the Company and your Directors commend resolution at Item No. 5 for your approval.
Mone of the Directors and the Key Managerial Personnel of the Company including their relatives are concerned or interested in
aforesaid resolution.

ltem No. 6:

As per Regulation 23 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 read with the Companies
(Meetings of Board and its Powers) Rules, 2014, all material related party transactions require approval of the shareholders.
Transaction(s) with a related party shall be considered as material if the transaction(s) to be entered intoindividually or takentogether
with previous transaction{s) during the financial year exceeds 10 % of the annual consoclidated turnover of the Company as per last
audited financial statements of the Company. Accordingly, the turmover for FY'18 was approx. Rs. 94 lakhand 10% of whichis equal to
Rs.9.4lakh.

The expected transactions during FY"19 with the following related parties are likely to be more than 10% of the consolidated turnover
of the Company for FY'18. Hence, itis proposed to secure approval of the shareholders by way of ordinary resolution.

Sl. No. Description Details
a. MName of related the party Tata Steel Limited
b. Mame of the Director or Key Managerial MNone
Person who is related, if any
(o) MNature of relationship Tata Steel Ltd is a holding Company having 54.45% shares in the

paid-up capital of the Company.

d. Mature, material terms, monetary value and Services Availed:
particulars of the confract or arrangement

» Availing services towards Security/Township/ Power , etc.
» Value — Rs. 260 Lakh
» Charges are uniform for all group companies.

» Tata Steel is the only reliable service provider in the area for
the above services.

Issue of Redeemable Preference Shares:
» Issue of Redeemable Preference Shares
» \Value - Rs. 400 Lakh

#» Coupon rate — not exceeding 9%

» Pari passu with any further issuance of preference shares,
senior only to ordinary Share capital and any cther securities
at par with ordinary Share capital of the Issuer.

10
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Sl. No. Description

Details

Issuer shall redeem the preference shares together with all
arrears of dividend, if any, in three equal instalments at the
end of 8th year from the date of issue.

Inter Corporate Deposits (ICD) with interest
Roll over of ICD with accumulated interest thereon

Principal Rs 6700 lakh plus accumulated interest approx. Rs
2300 lakh aggregating to Rs 9000 lakh

Interest Rate — not exceeding 13%

Tenure -1 year

e. Any other information relevant or important for the
members to take decision on the resolution

Tayo is not in position to raise/obtain funds from any external
sources, but it requires funds to discharge its financial
commitments, to the extent possible, towards its various
stakeholders. TSL, as the parent entity, has been requested
to provide necessary funds as part of its shareholder service,
solely in its capacity as the parent company.

Mame of related party

JUSCO L

b. Mame of the Director or Key Managerial Person
who is related, if any

None

Mature of relationship

JUSCO Ltd is a 100% subsidiary of Tata Steel Limited.

d. Mature, material terms, monetary value and
particulars of the contract or arrangement

T

o

Availing Power from JUSCO.

Value — Rs. 10 Lakh.

Company has entered into a power agreement for supply of
electricity.

JUSCO charges a rate as finalised by JSERC.

e. Any other information relevant or important for the
members to take decision on the resolution

JUSCO's quality of power supply is better and cheaper than the
JSERB, the other licensee in the area.

According to the provisions of Section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Regulation 23({4) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, all entities falling under the definition of “Related Party” under Section 2(76) of the
Companies Act, 2013, irespective of the fact whether the entity is arelated party to the transaction or not, shall abstain from votingon

resolution mentioned at kem No. 6of the Notice.

The proposed resclution is in the interest of the Company and your Directors commend resolution at Item Mo. 6 for your approval.
Mone of the Directors and the Key Managerial Personnel of the Company including their relatives are concerned or interested in

aforesaid resolution.

Kolkata
August 8, 2018

Registered Office:
3, CHArea (NE), Road No.11, Bistupur,
Jamshedpur- 831 001

By Order of the Board of Directors

(Harpreet Kaur Bhamra)
Company Secretary &Compliance Officer
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Details of Directors seeking appointment / re-appointment
in the forthcoming Annual General Meeting

(Pursuant to Regulation 36({3) read with Schedule V of SEBI (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015

Mame of Director Mr. K. Shankar Marar

DIN 06656658

Date of birth 19.11.1969

Date of appointment 07.08.2017

Expertise in specific functional areas TQM practices in strategy formulation, deployment and

planning (Hosin Kanri) and a patent holder for business
Planning framework

Qualifications Metallurgical Engineer from NIT, Rourkela & Business
management from Symbiosis School of Management

Directorship held in other Public Companies (excluding
Foreign Companies) as on March 31, 2018 MIL

Chairmanship/Membership of committees of other Public
Companies (includes only Audit Committee and Stakeholders

Relationship Committee) as on March 31, 2018 NIL

Shareholding in the Company as on March 31, 2018 MNIL

Relationship between Directors inter-se MNeone

Category Promoter, Non- Independent, Mon-Executive Director
Kolkata By Order of the Board of Directors
August 8, 2018
Registered Office:

(Harpreet Kaur Bhamra)

3, CH Area (NE), Road No.11, Bistupur, Company Secretary &Compliance Officer

Jamshedpur- 831 001
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TAYO ROLLS

Directors' Report

To the Members,

The Directors present the Fiftieth Annual Report on the business and cperations of your Company along with the financial statements
for the year ended March 31, 2018.

1. FINANCIAL RESULTS:
Particulars Current Year* Previous Year*
Rupees Lakhs Rupees Lakhs

Revenue from Operations 35 4,664
Other income 59 602
Total income 94 5.266
Expenses

Cost of materials consumed - 900
Changes in inventories of finished goods, stock T 1,988
in trade and work in progress

Excise duty on sale of goods - 443
Employee benefits expenses 1387 2,206
Depreciation and amortization expenses 478 695
Consumption of stores - 673
Power and fuel 11 414
Other expenses 465 2,037
Total expenses 2348 9,356
Loss before finance cost, exceptional items and tax (2254) (4,000)
Finance costs 917 1.686
Loss before Excepticnal items and tax (3171) (5,776)
Exceptional items 605 (2,519)
Loss before tax (2566) (8,295)
Tax expenses - -
Loss for the year (2566) (B,205)
Other comprehensive income/(loss) - 2
Total comprehensive income/ {loss) (2566) (B,203)
Paid up share capital 1,026 1,026
Other equity (45,857) (43,202)

*Operations have been suspended from May 2016 onwards and remained suspended in current year also.

2.

DIVIDEND:
The Directors have decided not to recommend any dividend for the year ended March 31, 2018 dueto loss.
PREFERENTIAL ALLOTMENT OF REDEEMABLE PREFERENCE SHARES:

During the year 78,25,000 {seventy eight lakhs twenty five thousand ) Non-cumulative Redeemable Preference Shares of Rs.
100/- (Rupees one hundred each only) each has been allotted to Tata Steel Limited on preferential basis. After allotment of
these Non cumulative Redeemable Preference Shares, the paid up share capital of the Company is Rs. 3,68,56,13,567/-
(Rupeesonly).

INSOLVENCYAND BANKRUPTANCYCODE 2016 :

Based on the audited accounts for the period ended 31st December 2015 |, the net worth of the Company became negative.
Considering the negative networth, the Board of Directors had referred the Company to the Board for Industrial and Financial
Reconstruction (BIFR) as required under the First proviso of section 15 (1) of The Sick Industrial Companies (Special
Provisions) Act, 1985 and the Company was registered with BIFR on 23 March, 2016. Meanwhile, the Ministry of Finance
issued Notifications S.0. 3568 (E ) & S.0. 3569 (E )dated 25 November, 2016 that SICA has been repealed with effect from 1
December, 2016 and all the references or inquiry pending before the BIFR and/ or Appellate Authority for Industrial and
Financial Recontruction(AAIFR) shall stand abated.

The Company, in the month of July 2017, filed application under section 10 of Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code (IBC), 2016
seeking initiation of Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process (CIRP) before Mational Company Law Tribunal (NCLT),
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Kolkatta Bench. The matter was heard on various dates and during this period the workers of the company through their
representative have also filed application under section 9 of IBC seeking CIRP. Finally on 22nd Dec 17, NCLT rejected the
application of Company under technical considerations. The application filed by Workers has also been rejected by NCLT in
month of January 2018, on technical considerations.Your Company has filed appeals before Mational Company Law
Appellate Tribunal (NCLAT) at New Delhi against the rejection order passed by NCLT Kolkatta. Further, the workers have also
filed similar appeal before National Company Law Appellate Tribunal (NCLAT) at Mew Delhi. The matter issubjudice.

OPERATION AND SALES:

Considering the future business prospects, the overcapacity situation inthe rollindustry, the challenges faced by the Company,
the resources required to meet these challenges, the likely time taken for turnaround of the business, and the estimated low
returns from the business on steady state basis, on May 26, 2016 the Board decided to suspend operations in a phased
manner. The Company has also introduced Voluntary Separation Scheme (VSS) for its all employees. Thereafter, on
Septermnber 5,2016, the Board decided forclosure of operations. The operations have not resumedin the year underreview.

(i) During the year under review, the Revenue from Operations of the Company was Rs.35 lakhs as against Rs.4 664
lakhs inthe previous year.

{iiy During the year under review, the Company has incurred a net loss of Rs 2,566 lakhs as againstthe netloss of Rs. 8,293
lakhs inthe previous year.

FINANCIAL AND WORKING CAPITAL MANAGEMENT:

The Promoter(s) have extended their financial and technical support from time to ime to revive the Company, but despite the
best efforts, the desired results could not be achieved. Therefore, due to fragile liquidity pesition, your Company had to finally
close the operations.

FIXED DEPOSITS:
Your Company has not accepted / renewed any fixed deposit during the year.
AUDIT REPORT:

The Statutory Auditors Report on Audited Annual Accounts for the financial year 2017-18 does not contain any qualfication,
reservation or adverse remarks whichwarrant comments from the Board of Directors.

The Secretarial Auditors Report for the financial year 2017-18 does not contain any qualification, reservation or adverse
remark which warrant comments from the Board of Directors. The Secretarial Audit Report as required under section 204 of the
Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 9 of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules,
2014, is annexedto this report.

PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES AND INVESTMENTS:
The particulars of Loans, Guarantees and Investments, if any, have beendisclosedin the Financial Statements.
CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND MAJORLITIGATIONS:

(i) Consequent to the order of the Hon'ble Supreme Court vide its order dated April 15, 2009, upholding the decision of the
Hon'ble Patna High Court with a direction to BSEB to rework the rates of fuel surcharge. BSEB has adjusted Rs. 23.23
crore against the Coal Claims of Rs. 100 crore and modified the rate of fuel surcharge for the financial year 1998-99 to
158.79 P/ Kwh against the earlier notified rate of 164.83 P/ Kwh for the financial year 1998-99, thus giving a benefit of
6.04 P/ Kwh to the consumers. However, this benefitwill be passed on to the consumers on receipt of Coal Claim of Rs.
100 crore by BSEB from the Coal Companies.

The Hon'ble Supreme Court has, however, given liberty to the consumers to approach High Court to challenge the
correctness of this adjustment and the terms of such adjustment and also stated that the other pending issues on fuel
surcharge can be takenup by the consumers before the High Court.

The Hon'ble Jharkhand High Court had passed its order against the Company. Thereafter, the Company has filed a
Letters Patent Appeal (LPA) before the Division Bench of the Jharkhand High Court. The Division Bench in its Interim
order, directed Company to pay the principal amount by August 31, 2015 (this was paid by Tayo even before the order)
and 50% of DPS to be payable in 3 equal monthly installments beginning from August 31, 2015 and to furnish a Bank
Guarantee for balance 50% of DPS. The Company also had to renew the Bank Guarantee of Rs. 3.72 crores which was
given at the time of disconnection of power in the year 2013. Against the interim order, the Company has filed a Special
Leave Petition (SLP) in the Hon'ble Supreme Court. The Supreme Court granted stay on the payment of DPS till final
decisionin LPA by the Jharkhand High Court. The matteris still sub-judice.

(i)  Inthe year 2000, your Company had filed a writ petition in Hon'ble Jharkhand High Court challenging the applicability of
1988 Tariff schedule (HT SS category) to 1993 Electricity Tariff on Tayo. Hon'ble Jharkhand High Courton May 02, 2013,
had dismissed Company's Petition and confirmed the applicability of 1999 Tariff schedule on Tayo. Consequent to the
adverse judgment of Hon'ble Jharkhand High Court, with regard to applicability of electricity tariff to the Company from
January 2000 till March 2013, the Jharkhand State Electricity Board (JSEB)has issued a rectified energy bill dated June
10, 2013 for Rs. 272 03 crore, which includes delayed payment surcharge of Rs. 208 .00 crore and fuel surcharge of Rs.
586crore.

The Judgment dated May 2, 2013 was chalenged on varicus legal grounds by way of LPA before the Hon'ble
Jharkhand High Court which was admitted on merit. Meanwhile the Jharkhand State Electricity Board has initiated
Certificate proceeding against the Company, Board of Directors and its Officers for recovery of Rs. 263 .61 crore, which
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was challenged before the Certificate Officer. The Certificate order restrained the Company to fransfer its immovable
assets. On December 12, 2015, the Certificate Officer in his order absolved the Directors and Officers from their liability
to the extent of Certificate amount and ordered the JSEB to raise fresh Bill within 15 days and the Company to pay the
same. Pursuant to the order of Certificate Officer, the JSEB had raised a bill of Rs. 218 crore which was also challenged
by the Company in the Hon'ble High Court. The High Courtin its interim order mentioned that no coercive action shall be
taken against the Company during pendency and final disposal of the LPA atHigh Court. These LPAs are still pending
for disposal at Hon'ble Jharkhand High Court.

(iii)  Writ Petitions challengingthe order of Jharkhand Government denying exemption from the operation of Employee State
Insurance Act, 1948 are pending with Hon'ble Jharkhand High Court.

(iv) The Company had applied to the Jharkhand Government seeking approval for closure of its operations with effect from
December 5, 2016. The closure approval has been rejected. The Company has filed a Writin the Jharkhand High Court
challenging the rejection order. The matteris sub-judice.

{v) The Company has introduced Voluntary Separation Scheme (VSS) from June 2016 at regular intervals. Out of 474
workers and 199 officers as on 31/03/2018 , about 250 workers and 1 officer (as on 31st March 18) have not availed the
separation scheme. The Company is also not able to pay wages to its employees since October 2016. Therefore, 182
employees having wages less than Rs 18000/- per month and covered under the ambit of Payment of Wages Act 1936,
have filed petition before the Labour Court Jamshedpur alleging deduc tion of wages and have demanded the payment
of wages deducted from Oct 16 to May 17. Out of 182 workers , as on July 1, 2018 only 151 workers are actively pursuing
the case at Labour Court and others have withdrawn their cases due to separations from Company under VSS &
resignations. The Labour Court in its interim Order dated 25th January 18 has held that it was a case of “deduction of
wages”. The Company has challenged the interim order dated 25th January 2018 before the Hen'ble Jharkhand High
Court vide WP No. 927/2018 . The matter before the High Court and the Labour Court is sub judice. The remaining
workers (about 102 nos ) having wages above Ris 18000/- per month and not covered by Payment of Wages Act 1936,
have filed application before the Labour Secretary, Government of Jharkhand under the Industrial Disputes Act, 1947,
demanding outstanding wages from Oct 16 to May 17. Out of 102 workers as on July 1, 2018 only 83 workers are
actively pursuingthe case and 19 workers have withdrawn their cases due to separations under VSS from the Company.
The proceedings have been disposed of by the Labour Secretary, GoJ, by addressing the Labour Suptd , Saraikela to
initiate Certificate proceedings for recovery of wage dues. Accordingly, Certificate Officer has started the proceedings
by issuingnotice to the Company. Thereply was submitted as per procedure under the Act. Meantimethe Company has
alsofileda WP no.671/2018 , before High Court challenging the Certificate Order. The hearings have commenced and
the matter is sub-judice.

DIRECTORS & KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL (KMP):

Consequent upon the recall of deputation by Tata Steel Limited, Mr. K Shankar Marar (DIN- 06656658) has submitted his
resignation from the office of Director and Managing Director of Tayo Rolls Limited with effect from closure of business hours of
July 31, 2017. The Board put on record its deep appreciation for the valuable services rendered by Mr. Marar during his tenure
as Managing Directorof the Company.

Consequent upon the resignation of Mr. K. Shankar Marar, Managing Director, Mr. Purushottam Das Mundhra had been
deputed by Tata Steel on whole time basis to Tayo Rolls Limited as Chief Executive Officer with effect from 1st August 2017 on
the recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee and approval of the Board. Mr P.D Mundhra holds office
for a maximum pericd of twoyears. .

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 161(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Article 131 of the Articles of Association of the
Company, Mr. K Shankar Mararwas appointed as additional Director by the Board with effect from August 7, 2017. Mr. Marar
will hold office till the date of forthcoming Annual General Meeting and is recommended by the Nomination & Remuneration
Committee for being appointed as Director of the Company in accordance with the first proviso to Section 160 of the
Companies Act 2013 inits meeting held cn August 8, 2018.

In accordance with the provisions of Section 152 of the Companies Act, 201 3read with Article 146 of the Articles of Association
of the Company, Mr. Yoshikazu Miyasaka (DIN: 07125432). Director retires by rotation and does not offer himself for re-
appointment. The Board proposes that the vacancy caused by his refirement will not be filled-up. The Board placed on record
theirsincere appreciation to the contribution made by Mr. Yoshikazu Miyasaka during his tenure with the Company.

Prof. Ranjan Das, (DIN-01738493) has stepped down as Director of the Company with effect from August 8, 2018. The Board
placed on record their sincere appreciation to the contribution made by Prof. Ranjan Das during his tenure with the Company.
The Board proposes that the casual vacancy caused by his resignation will not be filled-up.

Consequent to the resignation of Mr. Prashant Kumar, Company Secretary and Key Managerial Personnel of the Company
w.e.f March 1, 2018, Ms. Harpreet Kaur Bhamra, Senior Manager, Tata Steel Limited has been deputed to Tayo Rolls Limited
and appointed by the board as Company Secretary and Key Managerial Personnel with effect fromAugust 8, 2018.

DIRECTORS' SHAREHOLDING:
Theshareholding of Managing Director and Mon-Executive Directors in the Company is NIL.
NUMBER OF MEETINGS OF BOARD:

During the year, seven Board meetings were held wherein directors were present either physically or through Video
Conferencing.
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DECLARATIONBY INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS:

All the Independent Directors have given declarationunder Sec 149(6) of the Companies Act, 201 3read with Regulation 16 (b)
of the SEBI (LODR)Regulations, 2015, regarding theirindependence.

INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS:

The Company has put in place intemal financial controls with reference to financial statements. To further strengthen the
existing system, an audit of the system and process was carried on by the auditors. The gaps, if any, in the system and process
have been tightened to ensure adequacy of internal financial controls inthe Company. However, during the year, no reportable
material weakness in the design or operation was observed. The Audit Committee periodically reviews the internal financial
control systems.

DIRECTORS RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT:

Based on the framework of internal financial controls and compliance systems established and maintained by the Company.,
work performed by the internal, statutory, cost and secretarial auditors and the reviews performed by Management and the
relevant Board Committees, including the Audit Committee, the Board is of the opinion that the Company's intemal financial
controls were adequate and effective during the financial year 2017-18.

Accordingly, pursuant to Section 134(5)of the Companies Act, 2013, the Board of Directors, to the best of their knowledge
and ability, confirm that

16.1 inthe preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards have been followed andthat there are no
material departures;

16.2 they have selected such accounting policies in consultation with the Statutory Auditors and have applied them
consistently and made judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the
state of affairs ofyour Company at the end of the financial year and of the profit / loss of your Company for that peried;

16.3 they have taken proper and sufficient care, to the best of their knowledge and ability, for the maintenance of adequate
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 for safeguarding the assets of your
Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

16.4 the Management has concluded that the going concern basis is not appropriate because of the financial condition of the
Company and, therefore the Financial Staternents have been prepared on non-going concernbasis;

16.5 they hawve laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the Companyand that such internal financial controls are
adequate and were operating effectively;

16.6 theyhave devised proper systems toensure compliance withthe provisions of all applicable laws and that such systems
are adequate and operating effectively.

BOARD MEMBERSHIP CRITERIA:

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee works with the Board to determine the appropriate characteristics, skills and
experience for the Board as a whole and its individual members with the objective of having a Board with diverse backgrounds
and experience in business, government, education, and public service. Characteristics expected of all Directors include
independence, integrity, high personal and professional ethics, sound business judgment, ability to participate constructively in
deliberations and willingness to exercise authority in a collective manner.

In evaluating the suitability of individual Board members, the Nomination and Remuneration Committee considers many
factors, including general understanding of marketing, finance, operations management, public policy, international relations,
legal, governance and other disciplines relevant to the success of the Company in today's business environment;
understanding of the Company's business; experience in dealing with strategic issues and long-term perspectives;
maintaining an independent familiarity with the external environment in which the Company operates and espedially in the
Director's particular field of expertise; educaticnal and professional background; personal accomplishment; and geographic,
gender, age, and ethnic diversity.

The Board evaluates each individual in the context of the Board as a whole, with the objective of having a group that can best
perpetuate the success of the Company's business and represent stakeholder's interests through the exercise of sound
judgment, usingits diversity of experience.

In determining whether to recommend a director for re-election, the Committee, also considers the director's past attendance
at meetings, participation in meetings and contributions to the activities of the Board, and the results of the most recent Board
self evaluation.

Boardmembers are expectedto rigorously prepare for, attend and participate in all Board and applicable Committee meetings.
Each memberis expected to ensure that their othercurrent and planned future commitments donot materially interfere with the
responsibilities atthe Company.

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY:

The Company recognizes the importance of diversity in its success. Itis essential that the Company has as diverse a Board as
possible.

A diverse Board will bring in different set of expertise and perspectives. The combination of Board having different skill set,
industry experience, varied cultural and geographical background and belonging to different race and gender will bring a
variety of experience and viewpoints which will add to the strength of the Company.
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While all appointments to the Board are made on merit, the diversity of Board in aggregate will be of immense strength to the
Boardin guiding the Company successfully through various geographies.

The Momination and Remuneration Committee reviews and recommends appointments of new Directors to the Board. In
reviewing and determining the Board compaosition, the Nomination and Remuneration Committee considers the merit, skill,
experience, race, gender and other diversity of the Board. To meet the objectives of driving diversity and an optimum skill mix,
the Nomination and Remuneration Committee may seek the support of Parent company.

CRITERIAFORDETERMINING INDEPENDENCE OF DIRECTORS:
Independence Guidelines:

A Director is considered independent if the Board makes an affirmative determination after review of all the relevant
information's.

The Board has established the categorical standards to assist it in making such determinations. A Director to be considered
independent:

» Shallnot be Managing Director or aWhole time Director or a Mominee Director.

Shall be, in the opinion of the Board, a person of integrity and shall possess relevant expertise and experience.
Shall not be a Promoter of the Company or its holding, subsidiary or associate Company.

Shall not be related to Promoters or Directors in the Company, its holding, subsidiary, orassociate Company.

¥ ¥ ¥ ¥

Apart from receiving Director's remuneration, shall not have any pecuniary relationships with the Company, its holding, its
subsidiaries, its associate companies, its Promoters, or Directors, during the currentfinancial yearor immediately preceding
twofinancial years.

> Relatives should not have or had pecuniary relationships or transactions with the Company, its holding (s), subsidiary or
associate Company, or their promoters, or Directors, amounting to 2% or more of its gross tumover or total income or
Rupees 50 lakhs (Rupees fifty lakh) or such amount as the Company may prescribe, whichever is lower, during the two
immediately preceding financial years orduring the current financial year.

» Neither himself / herself nor any of his / her relatives shall hold or has held the position of a KMP or is or has been
employee of the Company or its holding, subsidiary or associate Company in any of the three financial years
immediately precedingthe financial yearin whichhe/ she is proposed fo be appointed.

= Neitherhimself/ herself nor any of his [ her relatives shall orhas been an employee or proprietoror apartner, inany of the
3 financial years immediately preceding the financial year, of :

a) afirm of Auditors or Company Secretaries in practice or Cost Auditors of the Company or its holding, subsidiary or
associate Company;

b) any legal or a consulting firm that has or had any transaction with the Company, its holding, subsidiary or
associate Company amounting to 10%. or more of the gross turmover of such firm;

c) holds together with his relatives 2% or more of the total voting power ofthe Company (“Substantial Shareholder”);

d) a Chief Executive or Director, by whatever name called, of any non-profit organization that receives 25%, or more
of its receipts from the Company, any of its Promoters, Directors or its holding, subsidiary or associate Company
or that holds 2%, or more of the total voting power ofthe Company;

- Has not held office for more than two consecutive terms on the Board of the Company.

» Should notbe amaterial supplier, service provider or customer or alessor ora lessee of the Company.
» Shallnot be less than 21 years of age.

- Possesses such other qualifications as may be prescribed by the Companies Act, 2013.
REMUNERATION POLICY:

The philosophy of remuneration of Directors, KMP and all other employees at Tayo Rolls Limited (‘Company’) is based on the
commitment demonstrated by the Directors, KMPs and other employees towards the Company. The key principles governing
the Remuneration Policy are asfollows:

(i) Remuneration for Independent Directors and Mon-Independent Non-Executive Directors:

» Overall remuneration should be reflective of the size of the company, complexity of the sector/ industry/ company's
operations and the company's capacity to paythe remuneration and should be consistent with recognized best practices.

* Independent Directors (*I0") and Non-Independent Non-Executive Directors (*NED”) may be paid sitting fees (for
attending the meetings of the Beard and Committees of which they may be members). Quantum of sitting fees and NED
Commissionmay be subject to review on a periodic basis, asreqguired.

- Within the parameters prescribed by law, the payment of sitting fees and commission will be recommended by the
Nomination and Remuneration Committee and approved by the Board.

- Overall remuneration (sitting fees and commission) should be reasonable and sufficient to attract, retain and motivate
Directors aligned to the requirements of the company.
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(i)

The aggregate commission payable toall the NEDs and I1Ds will be recommended by the Nomination and Remuneration
Committee to the Board, based on company's performance, profits, retum to investors, shareholder value creation and
any othersignificant qualitative parameters, as may be decided bythe Board.

The MNomination and Remuneration Committee will recommend to the Board, the guantum of commission for each
Director based upon the outcome of the evaluation process which is driven by various factors including attendance and
time spent in the Board and committee meetings, individual contributions at the meetings and contributions made by
Directors other thanin meetings.

In addition to the sitting fees and commission, the company may pay to any director such fair and reascnable
expenditure, as may have been incurred by the director while performing his / her role as a Director of the company. This
could include reasonable expenditure incurred by the director for attending Board / and its committee meetings, general
meetings, court convened meetings, meetings with shareholders / creditors / management, site visits, induction and
training (organized by the company for Directors) and in obtaining professional advice from independent advisors in the
furtherance of his / her duties as a Director.

Remuneration for Managing Director ("MD”")/ Executive Directors ("EDs") KMP/ restof the employees:

The extent of overall remuneration should be sufficient to attract and retain talented and qualified individuals suitable for
every role. Hence remunerationshould be:

Market competitiveness driven by the role played by the individual
Reflective of size of the company, complexity of the sector/industry / company's operations and thecormpany's capacity topay.
Consistent with recognized best practices and aligned to any regulatory requirements.

The remuneration mix forthe MD /EDs s as perthe contractapproved bythe shareholders. Incase ofanychange, the same
would again require the approval of the shareholders.

Basic / fixed salary is provided to all employees to ensure that there is a steady income in line with their skills and
experience.

In addition to the basic [ fixed salary, the company may provide employees with certain perquisites, allowances and
benefits to enable a certain level of lifestyle and to offerscope for savings and tax optimization, where ever possible. The
company may also provide all employees with a social security net (subject to limits) by covering medical expenses and
hospitalization through re-imbursements or insurance cover and accidental death and dismemberment through
persenal accidentinsurance.

The company provides retirement benefits asapplicable.

In addition to the basic / fixed salary, benefits, perquisites and allowances, the company may provide MD / EDs such
remuneration by way of bonus / performance linked incentive and/or commission calculated with reference to the net
profits of the company in a particular financial year, as may be determined by the Board, subject to the overall ceilings
stipulated in Section 197 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Schedule V of the Act. The specificamount payable to
the MD / EDs would be based on performance as evaluated by the Board or the Nomination and Remuneration
Committee and approved by the Board.

The company may provide the rest of the employees a performance linked bonus and/or performance linked incentive.
The performance linked bonus/performance linked incentive would be driven by the outcome of the performance
appraisal process and the performance of the Company.

Remuneration payable to Director for services renderedin other capacity:

The remuneration payable to the Directors shall be inclusive of any remuneration payable for services rendered by such
Director inany other capacity unless:

The services rendered are of a professional nature; and

The Nominaticn and Remuneration Committee is of the opinicn that the director possesses requisite qualification for the
practice of the profession.

PERFORMANCE EVALUATION OF BOARD:

Pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and Chapter IV of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015, the Board has carried out the annual performance evaluation of its own performance,
Individual Directors as well as the evaluation of its various Committees.
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The performance evaluation of the Independent Directors was carried out by the entire Board. The Independent Directors at
their exclusive meeting separately reviewed the performance of Non- Independent Directors and the Board as a whole,
performance of the Chairman of the Company and quality, quantity & timeliness of low of information between the Company
Management and the Board. The Directors expressed their satisfaction over the evaluation process.

LOANTO DIRECTORS:

During the year, the Company has not advanced any loan norgiven any guarantee norprovided any security in connection with
any loan made to any of its Director/s or to any other person in whom the Director is interested as mentioned in Section 185 of
the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 10 of the Companies (Meetings of Board and its Powers) Rules, 2014.
CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR):
As per section 135 (1) of the Companies Act, 2013, every Company having a net worth of Rupees five hundred crores or more,
or turnover of Rupees one thousand crores or more, or net profit of Rupees five crores or more, during any financial year is
required to constitute a Corporate Social Responsibility Committee of the Board consisting of three or more Directors, out of
which at least one Director shall be Independent Director.
Your Company is suffering losses since FY 2008-08 and doesn't fulfill any of the criterias as specified under section 135 (1) of
the Companies Act, 2013, therefore, Corporate Social Responsibility Committee of the Board is not required and as a result,
Company has not constituted a Corporate Scocial Respensibility Committee. Your Company has tried to meet its social
obligations, wherever possible, with its imited resources.
RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS:
During the year under review, your Company has not entered into any contract/ arrangement which falls under the purview of
Section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013. However, few related parties transactions are such which are covered under
Regulation 23 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. The Company has also entered
into material related party transactions for which approval of the shareholders has already been taken at 49th Annual General
Meeting and approval for shortfall, if any, will be taken at the forthcoming meeting. Approval of shareholders is also being
sought for likely related party transactions for FY'19, at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting. All the transactions with the
related parties are atarm's length and in the ordinary course of business and have prior approval of the Audit Committee. The
policy on materiality of Related Party Transaction is available on the website of the Company at www.tayo.co.in. As required
under section 134 (3) (h) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 8 of the Companies {Accounts) Rules, 2014, "“Form AOC-
2"is annexed with this report.
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE:
Management Discussion and Analysis, Corporate Governance, Managing Director's and Auditor's Certificates are made part
of this Annual Report.
EXTRACT OF ANNUAL REPORT:
As required under section 134 (3) (a) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Section 92(3) and Rule 12(1) of the Companies
(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014, “Form MGT-9" is annexed with this report.
DISCLOSURE UNDER THE SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMENAT WORKPLACE (PREVENTION, PROHIBITIONAND
REDRESSAL)ACT, 2013:
The Company has in place an Anti-Sexual Harassment Policy in line with the requirements of the Sexual Harassment of
Women at the Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013. Intemal Complaints Committee (ICC) has been
setupto redress complaintsreceived regarding sexual harassment. All employees are covered underthis policy.
The following is asummary of sexual harassment complaints received and disposed-off during the period under review:
. MNo. ofcomplaintsreceived: MIL
. No. of complaints disposed-off: NotApplicable
PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES:
28.a The Information required under section 197(12) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 5(1) of the Companies
{Appointment and Remuneration of M anagerial Personnel)Rules, 2014 is asunder:
The Company is not able to pay wages to its employees since October 2016. During the year none of the Whole Time
Director ("WTD") or KMPs were on the rolls of the company as they have been transferred to Tata Steel Limited and
deputed back to Tayo Rolls Limited. Therefore, percentage increase in their remuneration by the company is not
applicable.
Ratio of the remuneration of each Director/KMP to the median remuneration of all the employees of the Company for the
FinancialYear 2017-18 is shownas below:

Median Salary (based on provisioning) for the year 2017-18" Rs.192236
The percentage increase in the median remuneration of employees in the Financial Year | 2.92%

The number of permanent employees on the rolls of Company as on March 31, 2018 251

“annual gross salary excludingindirectbenefits like PF, Pension , gratuity medical, and otherwelfare
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SR. NAME OF THE DIRECTOR / CATEGORY/DESIGNAT | REMUNERATION RATIO OF
NO. KMP IOMN REMUMNERATION TO

MEDIAN OF
EMPLOYEES
BOARD OF DIRECTORS

1 Mr. Anand Sen Promoter, Non MNIL MNA
Independent,
Non-Executive

2 Mr. Dipak K. Banerjee Independent, MNIL MNA
Non-Executive

3 Prof. Ranjan Das Independent NIL MNA
Non-Executive

4 Mr. Sudev C. Das Independent, MNIL MNA
Non-Executive

5 Mr. V. S. N. Murty Promoter, Non MNIL NA
Independent,
MNon-Executive

6 Mrs. Ramya Harharan Independent, 15000 1:12.82
Nan - Executive

7 Mr. Yoshikazu Miyasaka Promoter, Non NIL MNA
Independent,
Mon-Executive

8 Mr. K. Shankar Marar Non- Independent, MNIL MNA
MNon-Executive

KMPs

1 Mr.P. D. Mundhra Chief Executive Officer MIL* A

2 Mr.Suresh Padmanabhan Deputy Chief Financial NIL** NA
Officer

3 Mr. Prashant Kumar Company Secretary MNIL*** MNA

4 Ms.Harpreet Kaur Bhamra Company Secretary NIL*** NA

*deputed by Tata Steel Limited w.e .f August 1, 2017
** deputed by Tata Steel Limited to Tayo Rolls Limited w.e f. March 22, 2017

""*Resigned as Company Secretary & Compliance Officerw.e f. March1,2018

** Appointed as Company Secretary & Compliance Officer by the Board w.e.f. August 8, 2018

There wasno percentage increase in the remuneration of any director.

The Company has introduced \oluntary Separation Scheme (VSS) in FY'17, which has been availed by 386 employees fill
FY'18.

In terms of shareholders' approval obtained at the Annual General Meeting held on July 18, 2012, the Non-Executive Directors
are also paid commission at the rate not exceeding 1% of the net profits computed in accordance with section 309 of the
erstwhile Companies Act, 1956 (equivalent to section 197 of the Companies Act, 2013) distributed on the basis of Board and
various Committees meetings attended and chaired by the Non-Execufive Directors. However, due to inadequacy of profits
during the financial year 2017-18, commissionwill not be paidto the Non-Executive Directors.

28.b During the financial year 2017-18 , none of the employees was in receipt of remuneration as specified under Rule 5(2) of
the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014. Therefore, the particulars
specified in Rule 5(3) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 are not
applicable and hence not mentioned.

ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY & FOREIGN EXCHANGE:

In terms of the Section 134(3) (m) of the Companies Act, 2013 read Rule 8(3) with Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, the
particulars in respect of (a) Conservation of Energy (b) Technology Absorption and (c) Foreign Exchange Eamings and Outgo
are fumished on page no. 21.

AUDITORS:

i) The existing Statutory Auditors, M/s AMK & Associates , Kolkata, Chartered Accountants (ICAl Registration
MN0.327817E) are retiring at the ensuing Annual General Meeting and are being eligible ,offered themselves for re-
appointment . Your company has received a certificate from the Auditors to the effect that their appointment, if made,
would be within the limits of Section 141(3)(g) of the Companies Act,2013. Members are requested to appeint Auditors
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for the financial year 2018-19 at the Annual General Meeting and to authorize the Board of Directors to fix their
remuneration as mutually agreed upon betweenthe Board and the Auditors.

i) Since the Operations of the Company are suspended, the Company is not required to appoint the CostAuditors.

Kolkata Anand Sen
August 08, 2018 Chairman
DIN-00237914

ANNEXURE TO DIRECTORS’ REPORT - INFORMATION UNDER SECTION 134(3)(m) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 READ
WITH COMPANIES (ACCOUNTS) RULES, 2014 AND FORMING PART OF DIRECTORS REPORT.

(A) Conservation of energy (2017-18):
i) The steps taken and its impact on conservation of energy, and
i) The steps taken by the Company toreduce electrical energy:
The Company has suspended its cperations in the previous year. Operations have not resumed in the current year. Therefore,
there is no consumption of power for manufacturing activities. However, the use of power and energy has been minimized by
optimizing lighting and cther utility loads.
iy  The capital investment on energy conservation equipment : NIL
(B) Technologyabsorption (2017-18):
i The Company has suspended its operations progressively since May 2016. Therefore, no initiatives were taken for product
development.
iy Information regarding imported technology (imported during the last three years): NIL
iiiy Expenditure on R&D: NIL
(C) Foreignexchangeearnings and outgo:
Current Year Previous Year
2017-18 2016-17
(Rs. Lakhs) (Rs. Lakhs)
i) Foreign Exchange Eamings - 2722
iy Fareign Exchange Outgo - -

21



TAYO ROLLS Yo

Fiftieth annual report 2017-18 A9,,%

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS
BUSINESS REVIEWAND OUTLOOK:

The steelindustry globally, is showing signs of moderate recovery due to cyclical uptumn broadening and firming throughout the year.

The Indian Rollindustry having faced overcapacity situation , with extremely competitive imports from China and Russia continues to
face fragile cash position, leading to adverse performance of theroll industry as awhole.

OPPORTUNITIESAND THREATS:

Tayo has been amoderately profitable company since inception, manufacturing ICDP Cast Rolls for hotrolling. Since 2000, the profits
from the Cast Roll business have been under pressure. At the same time, the cold rolling operations in India was gathering pace. Ina
bid to diversify the product portfolio, Tayo embarked on the forged roll project. The project faced time and cost overruns due to the
global economic crisis in 2008.

Since 2009, the Company has been making losses mainly due to delayin the Forged Roll Project, subdued demand growth, pricing
challenges, and consequent liquidity crunch. Poor quality performance due to poor workmanship also had a severe adverse effecton
thefinancial performance.

The Promoter(s) have been extending their financial and technical support to the Company. Despite the relentless efforts, and
continued support from all stakeholders, especially the Promoter(s), the changes in external environment, and continued sub optimal
performance, has resulted incontinuous losses.

The subdued growth ininfrastructure sector, over-capacity situationin the Roll and Forging industries, delayed technology absorption
for next generation rolls, severe cash constraints and continued cash loss etc have compelled the Company to write down value of its
assets, which has eroded its net worth as on 31.12.2015. Moreover, there was an adverse impact of high unabsorbed depreciation
and interest costs onthe financials of the Company.

Based on the negative net-worth, the Company made a reference to the Board for Industrial and Financial Reconstruction (BIFR),
which was registered with BIFR on March 23, 2016. However, the Ministry of Finance issued Notifications S.0. 3568 (E ) & S.0. 3569
(E ) dated November 25, 2016 to the effect that SICA has been repealed with effect from 1.12.2016 and all the references or inguiry
pending before the BIFR and/or AAIFR. stands abated.

The Company's operating results continue to be materially affected by various factors, particularly high pricing pressures due to
overcapacity in roll industry, general economic slowdown and unavailability of future financing. Considering these factors, the
Company has suspended its operations since May 2016in a phased manner and introduced Voluntary Separation Scheme (VSS) for
the employees with effect from June, 2016. The Board of Directors at their meeting held on 5.09.2016 have decided to close the
operations of the Company. Accordingly, on 6.09 2016 the Company has filed closure application U/s 25-0 of the Industrial Disputes
Act, 1947 with the State GovernmentAuthorities. The application was rejected on 27.10.2016. The Company has filed a Writ Petition
inthe Honorable Jharkhand High Court against the rejection order. The matter is sub-judice.

SEGMENT WISE PERFORMANCE:
The segment wise resultis given in Page No. B0-82 of this annual report.
RISKAND CONCERNS:

The Company has been regularly reviewing its Risk Management Policy and has taken proactive steps to safeguard and minimize the
adversity related to the Market, Technology, People, Environment! Regulatory, Financial, Information Technology and Opportunity
Risks. Wherever necessary, the Company took adequate insurance coverage of its assets for safeguarding from unforeseen risks.

INTERNAL CONTROLAND ADEQUACY:

The Company has adequate internal control system and well laid-down policies and procedures for all its operations and financial
functions. The procedures are aligned to provide assurance for maintaining proper accounting controls, monitoring efficient and
proper usage of all its assets and reliability of inancial and operational reports. The internal control system is ably supported by the
Internal Audit Department which carries out extensive audit of various functions throughout the Company. The Intemnal Audit
Department functions independently and submits its findings to the Managing Director for corrective actions, if any. The Company's
Board has an Audit Committee which comprises five members with majority being Independent Directors. The Audit Committee
reviews significantfindings of the internal audit.

The Audit Committee reviews the financial reporting process, internal financial control and control system the audit process and the
Company's process for monitoring compliances with law and regulations and the Company's code of conduct. The Audit Committee
also reviews with the Statutory Auditors the financial reports and ascertains their observation on issues of concemn. The Committee
monitors the implementation of internal audit recornmendations as well as vigil Mechanism, as applicable.

HUMANRESOURCES:

Considering the decision for suspension and closure of operations, FY'18 was very challenging year for your Company. The
Company introduced Voluntary Separation Scheme (VSS) for employees several times.
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The men onroll ofthe company stands at 251 ason31.03 2018.

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE WITHRESPECT TO OPERATIONAL PERFORMANCE:

The Operations have beensuspended from May 2016 onwards and remained suspendedin current year also.
CAUTIONARY STATEMENT:

Staternents in the Management Discussion and Analysis describing the Company's objectives, projections, estimates, expectations
may be ‘forward-looking statements’ within the meaning of applicable securities laws and regulations. Actual results could differ
materially from those expressed or implied. Important factors that could make a difference to the Company's operations include
economic conditions affecting demand/supply and price conditions in the domestic and overseas markets in which the Company
operates, changes in the Government regulations, tax laws and otherstatutes and otherincidental factors.

Annexure to Directors' Report

FORM NO. MGT 9
EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN
as on financial year ended on 31.03.2017
Pursuant to Section 92 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 12(1) of the Companies {Management &
Administration ) Rules, 2014.

i CIN L27105JH1968PLC0O00818

ii Registration Date 02.02.1968

i Mame of the Company Tayo Rolls Limited

iv Category/Sub-category of the Company Public Company Limited by shares

v Address of the Registered office & contact details 3, Circuit House Area (MNorth-East), Road No. 11,
PO & PS -Bistupur, Jamshedpur - 831 001,
Jharkhand, India

wii Mame , Address & contact details of the Registrar & TSR Darashaw Limited, 6-10 Haji Moosa Patrawala

Transfer Agent, if any. Industrial Estate, 20 Dr. E Moses Road Mahalaxmi,

Mumbai - 400011 022-66568484

Il Principal Business Activities of the Company:

All the business activities contributing 10% or more of the total turnover of the company shall be stated

Sl. No. | Name & Description of "NIC Code of the “% to total turnover of the company™*
main products/services Product /service"
1 Cast Rolls 3371 NA
2 Forge Rolls 3440 NA
1 Particulars of Holding, Subsidiary and Associate Companies:
Sl.No| Name & Address of CIN/GLN "Holding/ "% of shares applicable
the Company Subsidiary held" section
[Associate”
1 Tata Steel Limited L27100MH1907PLCO00260 Holding 54.45 2 (87)

*Operations have been suspended from May 2016 onwards and remained suspended in current year also.
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IV. Shareholding Pattern (Equity Share Capital break up as % to Total Equity)
(i) Category wise shareholding:
Category of Meo. of Shares held at the beginning of the year Mo. of Shares held at the endof the year % change
Shareholders le 1.04.2017 ie. 31.03.2018 during the Year
Demat | Physical Total % of Demat Physical Total % of
Total Total
Shares Shares
A. Promoters
(&) Individuals / Hindu Undivided Family 1 i a 0.00 0 a 0 0.00 0.00
{b) Central Govemment / 0 ] 0 0.00 0 i) 0f 0.00 0.00
State Govemments(s)
{¢) Bodies Comporate 5,668,322 0 | 5668322 55.24 5,668,322 0| 5668322 55.24 0.00
{d) Financial Institufions / Banks 0 i 0 0.00 0 0 0| 0.00 0.00
(&) Any Other [Specify) 0 {1 i 0.00 { 0 0.00 0.00
Sub-Total (A) (1) 5,668,322 0 | 5668322 55.24 5,668,322 0| 5668322 55.24 0.00
{2) Foreign
(a) Individuals (Non-Resident Individuals i} 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0.00
| Foreign Individuals)
(b) Bodies Corporate 1,844 045 0 | 1,844 045 1787 1,844 045 0 1844045 17.87 0.00
() Institutions i 0 0 0.00 0 ] 0 0.00 0.00
{d) Qualified Foreign Investor 0 ] ] 0.00 0 i 0 0.00 0.00
(&) Any Other (specify) [0 ] ] 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0.00
Sub-Total (A) (2) 1,844,045 0 | 1,844,045 17.97 1,844,045 0| 1844045 17.97 0.00
Total Shareholding of Promoter and 7,512,367 0 | 7,512,367 73.21 7,512,367 0| 7512367 el 0.00
Promoter Group (A)
{B) Public Shareholding
{1) Institutions
{2) Mutual Funds / UTI {0 150 150 0.00 0 150 150 0.00 0.00
{b) Financial Instituions / Banks 600 350 950 001 600 350 950 0.0 0.00
(e} Cental Government / 0 0 0 0.00 0 ] 0 0.00 0.00
State Gowemments(s)
{d) Venture Capital Funds 0 a ] 0.00 ] 0 0 0.00 0.00
(&) Insurance Companies 0 450 450 0.00 0 450 450 0.00 0.00
() Foreign Instituional Investors 0 i 0 0.00 1] a 0 0.00 0.00
{g) Fareign Venture Capital Investors i 0 0 0.00 ] 0 0 0.00 0.00
(h) Qualified Foreign Investar 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0.00
(i) Any Other (specify) 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0.00
(1) - {i) Foreign Portfolio Investors (Carp) 0 0.00 0 0.00 0.00
Sub-Total (B) (1) GO0 950 1,550 0.02 600 950 1,550 0.02 0.00
(2} Non-Institutions
(8) Bodies Comporale 148 616 5201 154 817 151 154,031 5,151 159,182 1.55 0.04
{b) Individuals -
(i) Individual sharehalders halding 1,618,592 392471 | 2012063 19.61 1,707,391 382945 | 2090386 203 0.76
nominal share capital upto Rs. 1 lakh
(i) Individual sharehalders holding nominal | 579,938 Q 579,938 565 497 250 a 497 250 4.85 081
share capital in excess of Rs. 1lakh
{¢) Qualified Foreign Investor 0 Q a 0.00 0 i) i 0.00 0.00
(d) Any Other
() Trust 0 200 200 0.00 0 200 200 0.00 0.00
Sub-total (B} (2) 2,349,146 397872 | 2,747,018 26.77 2,358,672 386,346 | 2747018 6.7 0.00
Total Public Shareholding (B) = 2,349,746 398822 | 2748568 26,79 2,359,772 389,296 | 2748 568 26.79
(BY1)+B)2)
TOTAL (A)+{B) 9,862,113 396822 | 10,260,935 100.00 9,871,639 389,296 | 10,260,935 100.00 0.00
(C) Shares held by Custodians and against
which Depository Recaipts have bean
issued
{1) Promoter and Pramaler Group 0 Q Q 0.00 0 i) i 0.00 0.00
{2) Public 0 aQ a 0.00 0 a { 0.00 0.00
GRAND TOTAL (A}+{BJ+(C) 9862113 398822 | 10,260,935 100.00 9,671,639 389,296 | 10,260935 100.00 0.00
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(i) Shareholding of Promoters:
Sl. | Shareholders Name Shareholding at the Shareholding at the % change in
No. beginning of the year aend of the year shareholding
during the year
No. of % of total % of shares | MNo.of | % of fotal % of shares
shares shares of p! ed shares | shames of pla d
the company | encumbered the company | encumbered
to total shares to total shares

1 Tata Steel Limited 5,587,372 54 .45 0.00 5,587,372 54 45 0.00 0.00
2 Yodogawa Steel Works Limited 1,536,704 14,98 0.00 1,536,704 14,98 0.00 0.00
5| Sqjitz Corporation 307,341 3.00 0.00 307,341 3.00 0.00 0.00
4 Rujuvalika Investments Limited 47,050 0.46 0.00 47,050 0.46 0.00 0.00
5 Ewart Investments Limited 30,200 029 0.00 30,200 0.29 0.00 0.00
6 Tata Industries Limited 3700 0.04 0.00 3,700 0.04 0.00 0.00

7,512,367 73 0.00 7,512,367 7321 0.00 0.00
(iii) Change in Promoters®' Shareholding (please specify, if there is no change)
SL Shareholding at the beginning of the Year Cumulative Shareholding during the year
No.

MNo. of shares

% of total shares of
the company

Mo. of shares

% of total shares of
the company

At the beginning of the year

Date wise Increase | Decrease
in Promoters Share holding
during the year specifying the
reasons for increase / decreass
(e.g. allotment / transfer /
bonus/ sweat/equity etc):

THERE IS NO CHANGE IN PROMOTER HOLDING DURING THE FINANCIAL YEAR 2017-18

At the End of the year

(iv) Shareholding Pattern of top ten Shareholders (other than Directors, Promoters & Holders of GDRs & ADRs)

5L PAN No. Name of the Date Reason Mo of Shares| Shareholding| Cumulative | % of total
Na. Shareholder at the at the Share- shares of
beginning beginning holding the
of the year | of the year during company
the year during
the year
1 | AACHGS682E | Gautam Chokhany 01/04/2017 | At the beginning of the year 87,700 0.85 87700 0.85
No Change 0 0.00 87700 0.85
31/03/2018 | At the End of the year 0 0.00 87700 0.85
2 |AFTPP2385R | Hasmukh Parekh 01/04/2017 | At the beginning of the year 72,200 0.70 72200 0.70
No Change 0 0.00 72200 070
31/03/2018 | At the End of the year 0 0.00 72200 0.70
3 |AAFPJ4253R | Tara Chand Jain 01/04/2017 | At the beginning of the year 66,930 0.65 6E939 0.65
O7/07/2017 | Decrease 1,800 -0.02 65139 063
22/09/2017 | Decrease 2,000 -0.02 63139 062
29/09/2017 | Decrease -2,000 -0.02 61139 060
19/01/2018 | Decrease -6,000 -0.06 55139 0.54
31/03/2018 | At the End of the year 0 0.00 55139 0.54
4 [ AACPN2789D | Smita N Navare 01/04/2017 | At the beginning of the year 53,670 0.52 53670 0.52
No Change 0 0.00 53670 0.52
31/03/2018 | At the End of the year 0 0.00 53670 0.52
5 |ACTPCS5799H | Nitika Chokhary 01/04/2017 | At the beginning of the year 46,585 0.45 46585 0.45
No Change 0 0.00 46585 045
31/03/2018 | At the End of the year 0 0.00 48585 045
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Sl | PANNo. Name of the Date Reason Mo of Shares| Shareholding| Cumulative | % of total
Na. Shareholder at the at the Share- shares of
beginning beginning holding the

of the year | of the year during company

the year during
the year

& |[AEAPBO30TH | MNarinder Bajaj 01/04/2017 | At the beginning of the year 40,467 0.39 40467 039
28/04/2017 | Increase 4,034 0.04 44501 043
31/03/2018| At the End of the year 0 0.00 4450 043
7 |AABCLOST2C | Lifecycle Infotech 01/04/2017 | At the beginning of the year 0 0.00 0 0.00
Private Limited 23/02/2018| Increase 24,000 0.23 24,000 023
31/03/2018| At the End of the year 0 0.00 24000 023
8 |[ACCPCOB54N | Gautam Chokhany 01/04/2017 | At the beginning of the year 22,209 0.22 22200 022
Mo Change 0 0.00 22200 022
31/03/2018| At the End of the year 0 0.00 22200 022
9 |AFOPPS5564M | Alpana Phumbhra . 01/04/2017 | At the beginning of the year 20,136 0.20 20136 0.20
02/03/2018| Increase 1,391 0.01 21827 021
31/03/2018| At the End of the year 0 0.00 21827 021
10 | AARFSS507R | Paras Kesharmal Bathia | 01/04/2017 | At the beginning of the year 0 0.00
22/09/2017 | Increase 10,000 0.10 10000 0.10
29/09/2017 | Increase 16,500 0.16 26500 026
06/10/2017 | Decrease -26,500 -0.26 0 0.00
06/10/2017 | Increase 26,500 0.26 26500 026
13/10/2017 | Decrease -10,000 -0.10 16500 0.16
22/12/2017 | Increase 3,517 0.03 20017 020
12/01/2018| Increase 1,500 0.01 21517 0.21
19/01/2018| Decrease -8,500 -0.08 13017 013
26/01/2018| Increase 3,269 0.03 16286 0.16
31/03/2018| At the End of the year 0 16286 0.16
11 | AAFPS4599H | Rachana Amal Shah 01/04/2017 | At the beginning of the year 0 0.00 47777 047
14/04/2017 | Decrease -1,557 -0.02 46220 045
21/04/2017 | Increase 242 0.00 46462 045
28104/2017 | Increase 115 0.00 46577 045
05/05/2017 | Increase 2,410 0.02 48087 048
191052017 | Increase 1,000 0.01 40987 049
26/05/2017 | Increase 50 0.00 50037 049
02/06/2017 | Increase 1,000 0.01 51037 0.50
09/06/2017 | Increase 17 0.00 51154 0.50
16/06/2017 | Increase 504 0.00 51658 0.50
23/06/2017 | Increase 738 0.01 52396 0.51
30/06/2017 | Increase 729 0.01 53125 052
07/07/2017 | Decrease -1,971 -0.02 51154 0.50
28107/2017 | Increase 1,008 0.01 52162 0.51
04/08/2017 | Increase 2,514 0.02 54676 053
11/08/2017 | Increase 108 0.00 54784 0.53
22/09/2017 | Decrease -54,784 -0.53 0 0.00
29/09/2017 | Increase 3,204 0.03 3204 0.03
06/10/2017 | Decrease -56 0.00 3148 0.03
13/10/2017 | Increase 4,898 0.05 8048 0.08
2711012017 | Decrease -540 -0.01 7506 0.07
31/10/2017 | Increase 963 0.01 8469 0.08
03/11/2017 | Increase 450 0.00 8919 0.09
10/11/2017 | Increase 150 0.00 9069 0.09
17/11/2017 | Decrease -150 0.00 8919 0.09
151212017 | Increase 225 0.00 9144 0.09
22/12/2017 | Decrease -1,077 -0.01 BOBT 0.08
05/01/2018 | Decrease -4,863 -0.05 3204 0.03
12/01/2018 | Decrease -3,204 -0.03 0 0.00
19/01/2018 | Increase 2,640 0.03 2640 0.03




TAYO ROLLS 1Yo
Fiftieth annual report 2017-18 A9,,%
Sl PANNo. Name of the Date Reason Mo of Shares| Shareholding| Cumulative | % of total
Na. Shareholder at the at the Share- shares of
beginning beginning holding the
of the year | of the year during company
the year during
the year
02/02/2018| Increase 1,939 0.02 4579 0.04
16/02/2018| Increase 22 0.00 4601 0.04
23/02/2018| Increase 762 0.01 5363 0.05
09/03/2018| Decrease -5,363 -0.05 0 0.00
16/03/2018| Increase 6,601 0.06 8601 0.06
23/03/2018| Increase 3,434 0.03 10035 0.10
30/03/2018| Increase 3,906 0.04 13941 0.14
31/03/2018| At the End of the year 0 0 13941 0.14
12 |AVSPST105D | Bhavna Kirit Shah 01/04/2017 | At the beginning of the year 23,840 023 23840 023
15/09/2017 | Decrease -636 -0.01 23204 023
22/09/2017 | Decrease 12,980 -0.13 10224 0.10
29/09/2017 | Decrease 9,855 -0.10 369 0.00
31/03/2018| At the end of the year 0 0.00 369 0.00
13 |AAACEB0E8R | Everett Consultants 01/04/2017| At the beginning of the year 19,186 0:19 19,186 019
Put. Ltd. 26/05/2017 | Increase 1,313 0.01 20499 020
21/07/2017 | Decrease -2,286 -0.02 18213 0.18
28/07/2017 | Decrease -1,940 -0.02 16273 0.16
11/08/2017 | Decrease -9,808 -0.10 6,465 0.068
22/09/2017 | Increase 3,000 0.03 9,465 0.09
12/01/2018| Decrease -3,500 -0.03 5,965 0.06
19/01/2018| Decrease -1,000 -0.01 4,965 0.05
26/01/2018| Decrease -4 965 -0.05 0 0.00
31/03/2018| At the end of the year 0 0.00 0 0.00
14 [AAEPM2096G Maﬂishkumar Sumatilal | 01/04/2017 | At the beginning of the year 0 0.00 16900 0.186
ehta
02/06/2017 | Decrease -500 0.00 16400 0.16
12/07/2017 | Decrease -256 0.00 16144 0.16
22/09/2017 | Decrease -16,144 -0.16 0 0.00
31/03/2018| At the end of the year o] 0.00 [¥] 0.00
15 [AAKCS9226R | Sunshine Commodities 01/04/2017| At the beginning of the year 0 0.00 15,959 0.16
Private Limited
05/05/2017 | Decrease 245 0.00 15714 015
22/09/2017 | Decrease -13,714 -0.13 2000 0.02
05/01/2018| Decrease -1,000 -0.01 1000 0.01
12/01/2018| Decrease -1,000 -0.01 0 0.01
31/03/2018| At the end of the year 0 0.00 0 0.00
(v) Shareholding of Directors & Key Managerial Personnel
SLNo. Shareholding at the end Cumulative Shareholding
of the year during the year
i % of total
;ﬂﬁﬁgmglaﬁg\ml No. of shares oﬁfﬁum::r::::; No. of shares shares of the
company
At the beginning of the year MIL NIL MNIL MNIL
Date wise increase/decrease in
Promoters Share holding during the NIL NIL NIL NIL
year specifying the reasons for
increase/decrease (e.g. allotment
Itransfer/bonus/ sweat equity efc)
At the end of the year MIL NIL MNIL MNIL
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V Indebtedness:
Indebtedness of the Company including interest outstandingfaccrued but not due for payment:
Secured Loans Unsecured Deposits Total
excluding deposits Loans ({In Rupees) Indebtedness
{in Rupees) {in Rupees) {in Rupees)
Indebtness at the beginning of the financial year
i) | Principal Amount 665,138,159 3,400,500,000 4 065,638,159
i} | Interest due but not paid 0
i} | Interest accrued but not due 3515542 66,747 215 00,262 757
Total (i+ii+iii) 668,653,701 3,487,247,215 0 4,155,900,916
Change in Indebtedness during the financial year 0
Additions 852 500,000 B52,500,000
Reduction -668 653,701 -668 653,701
Net Change -668,653,701 852,500,000 0 18,38,46,299
Indebtedness at the end of the financial year
i) | Principal Amount 0 4 253,000,000 4 253,000,000
i} | Interestdue but not paid
iii} | Interest accrued but not due 0 158,918,038 158,918,038
Total {i+ii+iii) 0 4,411,918,038 1] 4,411,918,038
vi Remuneration of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel:
A, Remuneration to Managing Director, Whole time director and/or Manager
Sl. No Particulars of Remuneration Name of the MD/WTD/Manager Total Amount
Mr. K. Shankar Marar* In Rupeas
Managing Director
1 Gross salary
(a}) Salary as per provisions contained in
section 17(1) of the Income Tax. 1961, MIL MIL
(b} VWalue of perquisites u/s 17(2) of the MIL MIL
Income tax Act, 1961
[c} Profits in lieu of salary under section 17(3) NIL MIL
of the Income Tax Act, 1961
2 Stock option MIL MNIL
3 Sweat Equity MIL MIL
4 Commission MIL MIL
as % of profit MIL MIL
others (specdify) MIL MIL
5 Others (Retiral Benefits) MIL MIL
Total (A) MIL MIL
Ceiling as per the Act 8,400,000

* Onwhole time deputation to Tayo w.e.f. 21.3.2017
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B. Remuneration to other directors:
Sl.No.[ Particulars of Remuneration Name of the Directors Total
Amount
1 Inde pendent Directors Mr. Sudev. Mr. Dipak. Mr.Prof. Mrs. Ramya
C.Das K.Banerjee Ranjan Das Hariharan
(a) Fee for attending boardicommittee MIL MIL MIL 15,000
meetings

(b) Commission MIL MIL MIL MIL

(¢ ) Others, please specify MNIL MNIL MIL MNIL

Total (1) NIL NIL NIL 15,000 15,000
2 Other Non Executive Directors® Mr. Anand Sen Mr. V.S.N. Mr. Yoshikazu

Murty Miyasaka
(a) Fee for attending board MIL MIL MIL
commiftee meetings

(b} Commission MIL MIL MIL

[c ) Others, please specify. MIL MIL MIL

Total (2) NIL NIL NIL NIL

Total (B)=(1+2) NIL NIL NIL 15,000

Total Managerial Remuneration - A+B 15,000

Overall Ceiling as per the Act 84,00,000

*Considering the financial position of the Company, Non-Executive Directors (NED's) have decided not to take sitting fees for attending
Board/Committee meetings

C.Remuneration to Key Managerial Personnel other than MD/Manager/WTD

5l. No. Particulars of Ramunaration Key Managerial Personnal
1 Gross Salary Daputy Chief Financial Company Secratary Chief Executive Officer Total
Officar Mr. Prashant Kumar® Mr.P.D. Mundhra®™
Mr. Suresh
Padmanabhan®
(a) Salary as per provisions MIL MIL MIL MIL
contained in section 17{1) of the|
Income Tax Act, 1961,
(b) Value of pemuisites u's MIL MIL MIL MIL
17(2) of the Income Tax Act,
1961
(c )} Profits in lieu of salary MIL MIL MIL MNIL
undar section 17(3) of tha
Income Tax Act, 1961
2 Steck Option NIL MIL MIL MNIL
Sweat Equity MIL MIL MIL NIL
4 Commission NIL MIL MIL MNIL
as % of profit MIL MIL MIL MNIL
others, specify MIL MIL MIL MNIL
5 Cthers, please spacify MIL MIL MIL MNIL
Total NIL NIL NIL NIL

* Deputed by Tata Steel Limited w.e.f. 21.3.2017
** Deputed by Tata Steel Limited w.e f August 1, 2017
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Form No. AOC-2

Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and
Rule 8(2) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014}

Form for disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the company with related parties referred to in
sub-section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including certain arm’s length transactions under third proviso

thereto

1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions notatarm’s length basis:

MName(s) of MNature of Duration of Salient terms | Justification Date(s) of Amount paid | Date on which
the related contracts/arra | the contracts / | of the for entering approval by as advances, |the special
party and ngements/ arrangements | contracts or | into such the Board if any resolution was
nature of transactions | /transactions | arrangements | contracts or passed in
relationship or arrangements
fransactions | or general
including the | ransactions meeting as
value, if any required
under first
proviso to
Section 188
NIL
2. Details of material contracts orarrangementortransactions at arm'’s length basis:
Mame(s) of the Nature of Duration of the Salient terms of Date(s) of approval | Amount paid as
related party and contracts/arrange | contracts the contracts or by the Board, if advances, if any
nature of ments/transactions | /farrangements / arrangements or any
relationship transactions transactions
including the
value, if any
All related party transactions ("RPT") entered into during FY 2017-18 were on arm's length basis and in the ordinary course of
business. Al RPT were placed before the Audit Committee for approval. Prior omnibus approval of the Audit Committee was
obtained on a yearly basis for the transactions which were foreseen and were repetitive in nature. The transactions entered info
pursuant to the omnibus approval so granted were audited and a statement giving details of all RPTs was placed before the Audit
Committee for its monitoring on quarterly basis. The details of transactions as per Ind AS 24 are disclosed in the Motes to Accounts
for FY 2017-18.

On behalf of the Board of Directors

Kolkata Anand Sen
August 8, 2018 Chairman
(DIN- 00237914)
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SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
FORM NO. MR - 3

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2018

[Pursuant to Section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No. 9 of
The Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To,

The Members,

Tayo Roll Limited

3, Circuit House Area (Morth-East),
Road No. 11, PO & PS -Bistupur,
Jamshedpur - 831 001,

Jharkhand, India

| have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the adherence to the good corporate
practices by Tayo Rolls Limited (hereinafter called the Company). Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided me a
reascnable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing my opinionthereon.

Based on my verification of Company's books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by the
Company and also the information provided by the Company, its officers, agents and authorized representatives during the conduct
of secretarial audit. | hereby report that in my opinion, the Company has, during the audit period covering the financial year ended
March 31, 2018, complied with the statutory provisions subject to my observation mentioned in the relevant schedule of the Act,
Rules, Regulation as listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board-processes and compliance mechanism in place
to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter.

| have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and retumns filed and other records maintained by the Company for the
financial year endedon March 31, 2018 according to the provisions of:

SINo. Name of Act, Rules, Regulation

1 The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made thereunder;

2 The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 ('SCRA')and the rules madethereunder;

3 The Depositories Act, 1996 andthe Regulations and bye-laws framed thereunder;

4 Foreign Exchange ManagementAct, 1999 and the rules and regulations made thereunder;

5 The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992

('SEBIAct):-
5(a) | The Securtiesand Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) Regulations, 2013;
5(b) | The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of insider Trading) Regulations, 1992;

5(c) | The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents) Regulations, 1983,
regarding the Companies Act and dealingwith client;

Employees Provident Fund and Miscellaneous Provisions Act, 1952

6

7 Employees State Insurance Act, 1948

8 PublicLiability Insurance Act, 1991

9 Environment Protection Act, 1986

10 Water (Prevention and Control of Pollution) Act, 1974 and Water Cess Act, 1977

kb Air(Prevention and Control of Pollution) Act, 1981

12 Hazardous Wastes (Management, Handling and Transboundary Movement) Rules, 2008
13 Factories Act, 1948

14 Contract Labour (Regulation and Abolition)Act, 1970

15 The Industrial Employment Standing Orders Act, 1946

16 Employees Compensation Act, 1923

17 Employment Exchange (Compulsory Nofification of Vacancies) Act, 1961
18 Apprenticeship Act, 1961

19 Batteries management & Handling Rules, 2001

20 Indian StampAct, 1999
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21

Industrial Dispute Act, 1947

22 Matemnity Benefits Act, 1961

23 Minimum Wages Act, 1948

24 Payment of Bonus Act, 1965

25 Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972

26 Equal Remuneration Act, 1976

2T Payment of Wages Act, 1936 and otherapplicable labour laws

| have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:

()
0]

)]

{ii)
(i)
(c).
(iv)
(v)

Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India.
The Listing Agreements entered into by the Company with Stock Exchanges.

During the period under review the Company has substantially complied with the provisions of the Companies Act, Listing
Agreement and Compliance Requirement of Stock Exchange.

| further report that the Company had filed Resolution Process under Insclvency and bankruptcy Code, 2016 to start with
corporate insolvency resolution process, Application was rejected by NCLT and now matter is pending before NCLAT.

Company had applied for closure of factory to the Government of Jharkhand and application rejected, appeal filed before Hon'ble
High Court, Ranchi, matteris pending.

Since Company has stopped its operation there is no activities in plant and no any application for renewal of Factory Licence,
Consent to Operate filed nor any retums except Apprenticeship Act and Contract Labour filed. Financial liability under Bonus, PF
Act has not been discharged during the year. Returns underlabour and Industrial Laws were not filed as plantis not operational.

| further report that the Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive Directors, Non
Executive Directors and Independent Directors. The changes in the compaosition of the Board of Directors that took place during
the period under review were carried out in compliance with the provisions of the Act.

Adequate notice is given to all Directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed notes on agenda were sent at
least seven days in advance, and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further information and clarifications on the agenda
iterns before the meeting and formeaningful participation at the meeting.

| further report that The Company has issued and allotted fully paid-up Non-Cumulative Redeemable Preference Shares on
Private Placement Basis during the audit period.

All decisions at Board Meetings and committee Meetings are carried out in majority as recorded in the minutes of the meetings of
the Board of Directors or Committee of the Board, as the case may be.

| further report that there are no adequate systems and processes inthe Company commensurate with the size and operations of
the Company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines after management
decision to close the operation.

| furtherreport that during the audit period, there were no instances of:

Public / Rights /debentures [ sweat equity.

Redemption / buy-back of securities.

Major decisions taken by the Members in pursuance to Section 180 of the Companies Act, 201 3. Except Sub-Section 1(a)and 1

Merger / amalgamation / reconstruction etc.

Foreign technical collaborations.

Place : Jamshedpur For, P.K. Singh & Associates
Date : April 21, 2018 {Firm's Registration No. P2002JH045700)

Pramed Kumar Singh
(Partner)
FCS No.: 5878 | C P No.: 19115
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To,

'Annexure -A’

The Members
Tayo Rolls Limited
Qur report of even date is to be read along with this letter.

1.

Maintenance of Secretarial records is the responsibility of the management of the Company. Our Responsibility is to
express anopinion on these secretarial records based on our audit.

2. We have followed the audit practices and the processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance about the
comectness of the contests of the secretarial records. The verification is based on test basis to ensure the comect facts are
reflected in audit records. We believe that the processes and practices, we followed provide a reasonable basis for our
opinion.

3. We have not verified the correctness and the appropriateness of the financial records and Books of Accounts of the company.

4. Wherever required we have obtained the Management Representation about the compliance of laws, rules and regulation and
happening of events etc.

5. The Compliance of the provisions of Corporate and cther applicable laws, rules, regulations, standards is the responsibility of
themanagement. Ourexamination is limited tothe verification procedure ontest basis.

6. The Secretarial Audit Reportis neither an assurance as tothe future viability of the Company not of the efficacy of effectiveness
withwhich the managementhas conducted the affairs of the Company.

For, P.K. Singh & Associates

(Firm's Registration No. P2002JH045700)

Place : Jamshedpur Pramod Kumar Singh
Date :April21, 2018 (Partner)
FCS Mo.: 5878

C P No.: 19115
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Certification by Managing Director /CEO & Dy. CFO

Pursuant to Regulation 17(8) read with Schedule || Part B of the SEBI (LODR) Regulations 2015, we, P. D. Mundhra, Chief Executive
Officer and Suresh Padmanabhan, Deputy Chief Financial Officer hereby certify that:

1. We have reviewed financial statements and the cash flow statement for the year and that to the best of our knowledge and
belief:

{iy  these statements do not contain any materially untrue staternent or omit any material fact or contain statements that
might be misleading;

(iiy these statements together present a true and fair view of the company's affairs and are in compliance with existing
accounting standards, applicable laws and regulations.

2. There are, to the best of our knowledge and belief, no transactions entered into by the company during the year which are
fraudulent, illegal or violative of the company's code of conduct.

3. We accept responsibility for establishing and maintaining internal controls for financial reporting and that we have evaluated
the effectiveness of intemal control systems of the company pertaining to financial reporting and we have disclosed to the
auditors and the audit committee, deficiencies in the design or operation of such intermnal controls, if any, of which we are aware
and the steps we havetaken or propose to take to rectify these deficiencies.

4. We have indicated to the auditors and the Audit committee:
{iy  significantchanges in internal control overfinancial reporting during the year;

{iiy  significant changes in accounting policies during the year and that the same have been disclosed in the notes to the
financial statements; and

(i)  instances of significant fraud of which we have become aware and the involvement therein, if any, of the management or
anemployee having asignificant rolein the company'sinternal control systemn overfinancial reporting.

Kolkata Suresh Padmanabhan ~P.D. Mundhra
May 02, 2018 Deputy Chief Financial Officer Chief Executive Officer
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Independent Auditor’s Certificate on Corporate Governance

TOTHE MEMBERS OF TAYO Rolls Limited

1.

We, AMK & Associates, Chartered Accountants, the Statutory Auditors of TAYO ROLLS LIMITED (“the Company”), have
examined the compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance by the Company, for the year ended on 31 March 2018, as
stipulated in regulations 17 to 27 and clauses (b) to (i) of regulation 46(2) and paras C and D of Schedule \/ of the SEBI (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (the Listing Regulations).

MANAGEMENT'S RESPONSIBILITY

2.

The compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance is the responsibility of the Management. This responsibility includes
the design, implementation and maintenance of intermal control and procedures to ensure compliance with the conditions of
the Corporate Govemance stipulated inthe Listing Regulations.

AUDITORS'RESPONSIBILITY

3.

Our responsibility is limited to examining the procedures and implementation thereof, adopted by the Company for ensuring
compliance with the conditions of the Corporate Govemnance. Itis neither an audit nor an expression of opinion on the financial
statements of the Company.

We have examined the bocks of account and other relevant records and documents maintained by the Company for the
purposes of providing reasonable assurance onthe compliance with Corporate Governance requirements by the Company.

We have camied out an examination of the relevant records of the Company in accordance with the Guidance Mote on
Certification of Corporate Govemnance issued by the Institute of the Chartered Accountants of India (the ICAl), the Standards
onAuditing specifiedunder Section 143(10) of the Companies Act 2013, inso far as applicable for the purpose of this certificate
and as per the Guidance Mote on Reports or Certificates for Special Purposes (Revised 2016) issued by the ICAI which
requires that we comply with the ethical requirements of the Code of Ethics issued by the ICAL.

We have complied with the relevant applicable requirements of the Standard on Quality Control (SQC) 1, Quality Control for
Firms that Perform Audits and Reviews of Historical Financial Information, and Other Assurance and Related Services
Engagements.

OPINION

T

Based on our examination of the relevant records and according to the information and explanations provided to us and the
representations provided by the Management, we certify that the Company has complied with the conditions of Corporate
Governance as stipulated in regulations 17 to 27 and clauses (b) to (i) of regulation 46({2) and paras C and D of Schedule V of
the Listing Regulations during the year ended 31 March2018.

We state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor the efficiency or
effectiveness with which the Management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

For AMK & Associates
Chartered Accountants
FRN 327817E

Kolkata Bhupendra Kumar Bhutia
May 2, 2018 Partner

(M.No. 059363)
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT FOR THE YEAR 2017-18

As reguired under Regulation 34 {3) read with Schedule V of the
SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015

The Corporate Governance framework of the Company ensures timely and accurate disclosure on all material matters regarding the
Company, including the financial statements, performance, ownership, and govemance of the Company. Corporate govemnance
encompasses a set of systems and practices to ensure that the Company's affairs are being managed in a manner which ensures
accountability, transparency, faimess, and reporting that conforms fully to the applicable laws, regulations & guidelines, and to
promote ethical conduct throughout the Organization. This improves public understanding of the structure, activities and policies of
the organization.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board of Directors of the Company (*Board”) is entrusted with the ultimate responsibility of management, general affairs,
direction and performance of the Company and has been vested with the requisite powers and authorities. The Board members are
having varied skills, experience and knowledge for the management of the Company. In accordance with the Articles of Association,
the Board may have maximum 12 Directors. As on March 31, 2018 the total strength of the Board was Eight, comprising of all Non-
Executive Directors. The Company has a Non-Executive Non-Independent Chairman. The Board also comprises of a Woman
Director. The composition of the Board is in compliance with the provisions of Regulation 17 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, hereinafter called as SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015. An optimum combination of
Independent and Non-Independent Directors in the Board ensures that the independence prevails at all imes while transacting
business at Board meetings. The Board reviews its policy from time to time to assess its relevance and suggest appropriate
measures, if required.

Mone of the Directors on the Boardis a member of more than 10 Committees and Chairmanof more than 5 Committees as specified in
Regulation 26 of the SEBI (LODR), Regulations, 2015, across all the Public companies in which he/she was a Director. All the
Directors have made necessary disclosures regarding Committee positions.

The Mon - Executive Directors are paid sitting fees as per the relevant provisions of Companies Act, 2013. Apart from sitting fees, the
Mon—Executive Directors are eligible for commission not exceeding 1% of the net profit of the Company computed inaccordance with
Section 187 of the Companies Act, 2013. However, due to loss, commission has not been paid to the Non-Executive Directors for the
financial year 2016-17 and no Commission is proposed for the financial year 2017-18.

BOARD MEETINGS

The Board of Directors met seven times during the financial year 2017-18 and gap between two meetings did not exceed more than
one hundred and twentydays. The dates onwhich the Board meetings were held are as follows:

(i) April 19, 2017 {iy  May22, 2017 (iiy  July 3, 2017 (iv)  July 31, 2017 {v) August?, 2017
(vi) October 6, 2017 (vii) January 22, 2018.

The necessary quorum was present at all the meetings.

As per Regulation 25(3) of the SEBI (LODR), Regulations, 2015, the Independent Directors meeting was held on March 21,2018,
wherein Independent Directors were presentwithout the participation of Mon-Independent Directors and members of Management
Apart from other businesses, the Independent Directors at their meeting dealt with the Agenda as specified in the Companies Act,
2013and SEBI (LODR), Regulations, 2015.

The company has framed a familiarization policy for its Independent Directors to make them aware about the company and business
scenario in which it operates including the roles, rights, responsibilities etc. of the Independent Directors. The details of such policy
are available on the website of the company atwww.tayo.co.in

The names and categories of Directors on the Board, their attendance at the Board meetings during the year and at the last Annual
General Meeting and their Directorships held and Committee Membership in other public companies and Shareholdings are given
below:
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Other Public Companies

MNo. of Last Directorship held as on Committees position

Board AGM 31.03.2018 held ason 31.03.2018

Meetings | held on

July 18,
2017
Name Category attended | attended | Member | Chairman Member | Chairman
Mr. Anand Sen, Promoter, Non 6 Yes 3 Mil 1 Mil
Chairman Independent,
DIN-00237914 Non-Executive
Mr. Dipak K. Banerjee | Independent, 4 No 9 Mil 6 3
DIN-00028123 Non-Executive
Prof. Ranjan Das Independent 5 No il Nil il Nil
DIN-01738493 Non-Executive
Mr. Sudev C. Das Independent, 7 Yes 2 Mil Nil 1
DIN-01072628 Non-Executive
Mr. V. S. N. Murty Promoter, Non 6 Yes 1 Nil Nil 1
DIN-00092348 Independent,
Non-Executive
Mrs. Ramya Hariharan | Independent, 1 MNo 3] il 6 il
DIN- 06928511 MNon - Executive
Mr. Yoshikazu Promoter, Non 0 Yes Ml Nil Nil Mil
Miyasaka Independent,
DIN — 07125432 Non-Executive
Mr. K. Shankar Marar# | Non- 6 Yes il il Mil il
DIN- 06656658 Independent,
Non-Executive

Directors' shareholdingin the Company : NIL

# Mr. K. Shankar Marar was MD of the Company upto 31.7.2018 and has resigned after closure of business hours on 31.7.2018.
Thereafter, he was appointed as Additional Directorw.e.f. 7.8.2018.

During the year Board Meetings were also held through Video Conferencing and other Audio Visual means in conformity with Rule 3
of the Companies (Meetings of Board and its Powers)Rules, 2014.

Apart from the formal Board meetings. in case of urgency the Board also passed resolution through Circular resolution in accordance
with the provisions of Section 175 ofthe Companies Act, 2013, read with Article 164 of the Articles of Association of the Company.

The Board pericdically reviews Compliance to all applicable Laws. The Audit committee reports to the Board on the same. The
Managing Director/CEO submits a compliance certificate on quarterly basis at the meetings of the Board.

The ‘Tata Code of Conduct', as adopted by the Company, is applicable to the Managing Director/CEQ, Senior Management
Personnel and other employees of the Company. The Company has received confirmation from the Managing Director/CEC as well
as Senior Management Personnel regarding compliance to the Code during the year under review. The Company has laid down the
‘Code of Conduct for Non- Executive Directors' of the Company. The Company has also received confirmations from the Mon-
Executive Directors regarding compliance of the code during the year under review. These codes are posted on www.iayo.co.in, the
website of the Company. The CEO's declaration to the affirmation ofthe Code of Conductison pageno .47 ofthisreport.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has constituted Committee of Directors to monitor the activities and to deal with matters withinthe terms of reference ofthe
Committees thereof:

{a)  Audit Committee
Aqualified and Independent Audit Committee was constituted in the year 1997.

The Company has complied with the requirements of Regulation 18 of the SEBI (LODR) Regulaticns, 2015 with regard to the
composition of the Committee. The members of the Audit Committee are Non-Executive Directors, with majority of them being
independent. The Chairman of the Committee is an Independent Director. The members bring with them vast experience in
the field of operations, technical and finance. The Deputy Chief Financial Officer, Internal Auditor and Statutory Auditor attend
the Audit Committee meetings. Other senior executives attend the meeting as and when invited by the Committee. The
Company Secretary acts as the Secretary of the Audit Committee.

The role and review of information by the Audit Committee is as prescribed under Regulation 18 (3) read with Part C of
Schedule |l of the SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015 read with section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013. The broad terms of
reference of the Audit Committee includes:
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. Oversight of the company's financial reporting process and the disclosure of it's financial information;

. Recommendation for appointment, remuneration and terms of appointment of auditors of the company;
. Evaluation of internal financial control and risk management systems;

. Discussion with internal auditors of any significant findings and follow up thereon;

. Discussions with the statutory auditors before the audit commences, about the nature and scope of audit as well as post-audit
discussion to ascertain any areaof concern;

. Reviewing with the management the annual/ quarterly financial statements and auditors report thereon before submission to
the board forapproval;

. To review the functioning of the Whistle Blower Mechanism and Insider Trading etc.
. Carrying out such other functions as mentionedin the terms ofrreference of the Audit Committee.

The Audit Committee reviews the financial statements with the statutory auditors and the management with reference to the
accounting policies and practices, before recormmending the same to the Board for approval. The Audit Committee also reviews and
approves the statement of related party transactions and any subsequent modification of transactions of the company with related
parties, Internal Control weakness report issued by Internal Auditor and Statutory Auditors and also the Management Discussion &
Analysis.

The Audit Committee met five times during the year on (i) May 22, 2017 (i) July 3, 2017 (iii) August 7, 2017 (iv) October 6, 2017 (v)
January 22, 2018

The necessary quorumwas present at all the meetings.
Composition of Audit Committee and details ofthe meeting attended duringthe financial year 2017-18are as follows:

Naie Category Neo. of meetings
attended
Mr. Sudev C. Das, Chairman Independent, Non-Executive 5
Mr. Dipak K. Banerjee Independent, Non-Executive 3
Prof Ranjan Das Independent, Non-Executive 4
Mr. V. S, N. Murty Promoter, Non-independent, Non Executive 5
Mrs. Ramya Hariharan Independent, Non-Execttive 0

Mr. SudevC Das, Chairman of the Audit Committee was present at the last Annual General Meeting held on 18th July, 2017 .
Whistle Blower Policy

The Company has adopted the Whistle Blower Policy which provides a formal mechanism for all employees and directors of the
Company to approach to the Ethics Counselor/ Chairman of the Audit Committee of the Company and to make protective disclosure
about unethical behavior, actual or suspected fraud or viclation of the Company's Code of Conduct. The Whistle Blower Palicy is an
extension of the Tata Code of Conduct, which requires every employee and director to promptly report to the Ethics Counselor /
Chairman Audit Committee, any actual or suspected or possible violation of the Code or an event he becomes aware of, that could
affect the business or reputation of the Company. Under the policy, each employee and director of the Company has an assured
access to the Ethics Counselor/ Chairman of the Audit Committee.
The Whistle Blower Policy also provides for adequate safeguards against victimization of employees and directors who avail the vigil
mechanism and also provides direct access to the Chairman of Audit Committee as and when required. The Audit Committee also
reviews the functioning of Whistle Blower Mechanism.
The Company does not have any Subsidiary Company.
The Company had laid down Risk Management Policy, which is available onthe website of the Company at www.tayo.co.in
(b) Nominationand Remuneration Committee
To comply with the provisions of section 178(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Regulation 19 of the SEBI (LODR)
Regulations, 2015, the Board has constituted a Momination and Remuneration Committee.
The Nomination and Remuneration Committee comprises Non-Executive Directors, majority of them being Independent
Directors. The Chairman of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee is an Independent Director. The terms of reference
of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee are formulation of the criteria for determining qualifications, positive
attributes, independence of directors and recommend to the Board a policy relating fo the remuneration of the directors, Key
Managerial Personnel and other employees, formulation of criteria for evaluation of Independent Directors and the Board,
Board Diversity Policy and to identify the persons who are qualified to become directors and who may be appointed in senior
management in accordance with the criteria laid down and recommend to the Board theirappeintment and removal.
The Nomination and Remuneration Committee metthree times during the yearon (i)May22, 2017 (ii)July 3, 2017 & July 31, 2017 .

Composition of Nomination and Remuneration Committee and details of the meeting attended during financial year 2017-18
are as follows:



TAYO ROLLS

Fiftieth annual report 2017-18

Name Category No. of meetings
attended
Mr. Dipak K Banerjee, Chairman Independent, Non-Executive 1
Mr. Anand Sen Promoter, Non Independent, 3
Non-Executive
Prof Ranjan Das Independent, Non-Executive 3

The Chairman of Nomination and Remuneration Committee was not present atthe lastAnnual General Meeting.

Remuneration Policy of Directors, KMPs and other Employees

The philosophy for remuneration of directors, key managerial perscnnel and all other employees of the company is based on the
commitment of fostering a culture of “Leadership with Trust”. The remuneration policy has been prepared pursuant to the provisions of
Section 178(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Regulation 19 (4) read with Part D of Schedule Il of the SEBI (LODR)
Regulations, 2015. While formulating the policy, Momination and Remuneration Committee has considered the factors laid down

under section 178(4 ) of the Act, which are as under:

{1) The level and composition of remuneration is reascnable and sufficient to attract, retain and motivate directors of the quality

required to runthe company successfully;

(2) Relationship of remunerationto performance isclear and meets appropriate performance benchmarks; and

3 Remuneration to directors, key managenal personnel and senior management involves a balance betweenfixed and incentive
Y genal pe nag
pay reflecting short and long-term performance objectives appropriate to the working of the company and its goals.

(i) RemunerationforIndependent Directors (“ID”) andMNon-Independent Non-Executive Directors(*NED")

Keyprinciples govemning the remuneration policy are asfollows:

Overall remuneration should be reflective of the size of the Company, complexity of the sector/ industry/ Company's
operations and the Company's capacity to pay the remuneration and should be consistent with recognized best

practices.

Independent directors (“ID") and Non-Independent Non-Executive Directors ("NED™) may be paid sitting fees (for
attending the meetings of the Board and Committees of which they may be members). Quantum of sitting fees and NED
Commissicn may be subject to review cn a pericdicbasis, as required.

Within the parameters prescribed by law, the payment of sitting fees and commission will be recommended by the NRC

and approved by the Board.

Overall remuneration (sitting fees and commission ) should be reasonable and sufficient to attract, retain and motivate
directors aligned to the requirements of the Company.

The aggregate commission payable to all the NEDs and IDs will be recommended by the NRC to the Board, based on
company's performance, profits, return to investors, shareholder value creation and any other significant qualitative
parameters, as may be decided by the Board.

The NRC will recommend to the Board, the quantum of commission for each director based upon the outcome of the
evaluation process which is driven by various factors including attendance and time spent in the Board and Committee
meetings, individual contributions at the meetings and contributions made by directors ctherthan inmeetings.

In addition to the siting fees and commission, the Company may pay to any director such fair and reasonable
expenditure, as may have been incurred by the director while performing his/ her role as a director of the company. This
could include reasonable expenditure incurred by the director for attending Board/and its committee meetings, general
meetings, court convened meetings, meetings with shareholders/ creditors/ management, site visits, induction and
training (organized by the company for directors) and in obtaining professional advice from independent advisors in the
furtherance of his/ her duties as adirector.

(i} Remuneration for Managing Director (“MD")/ Executive Directors (“EDs") KMP/restof theemployees

The extent of overall remuneration should be sufficient to attract and retain talented and qualified individuals suitable for
every role. Hence remuneration should be:

Market competitive (market for every role is defined as companies from which the company attracts talent or companies

to which the company loses talent) and driven by the role played by the individual,

Reflective of size of the company, complexity of the sector/ industry/ company's operations and the company's capacity

topay,

Consistent with recognized best practices and aligned to any regulatory requirements,

The remuneration mix for the MD/ EDs is as per the contract approved by the shareholders. In case of any change, the
same would require the approval of the shareholders.
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Basic/ fixed salary is provided to all employees to ensure that there is a steady income in line with their skills and
experience.

In addition to the basic/ fixed salary, the company may provide employees with certain perquisites, allowances and
benefits to enable a certain level of lifestyle and to offer scope for savings and tax optimization, where possible. The
company may also provide all employees with a social security net (subject to limits) by covering medical expenses and
hospitalization through re-imbursements or insurance cover and accidental death and dismemberment through
personal accidentinsurance.

The company provides retirement benefits as applicable.

In addition to the basic/ fixed salary, benefits, perquisites and allowances as provided above, the Company may provide
MD/ EDs such remuneration by way of bonus/performance linked incentive and/or commission calculated with
reference to the net profits of the Company in a particular financial year, as may be determined by the Board, subject to
the overall ceilings stipulated in Section 197 of the Companies Act, 2013. The specific amount payable to the MD/EDs
would be based onperformance as evaluated by the Board or the MRC and approved by the Board.

The Company may provide the rest of the employees a performance linked bonus and/or performance linked incentive.
The perfermance linked bonus/performance linked incentive would be driven by the outcome of the performance
appraisal process and the performance of the company.

Considering the future business prospects, the overcapacity situation in the roll industry, the challenges faced by the
Company, the resources required to meet these challenges, the likely time taken for tumaround of the business, and the
estimated low returns from the business on steady state basis, on May 26, 2016 the Board decided to suspend
operations in a phased manner. The Company has also intfroduced Voluntary Separation Scheme (VSS) for its all
employees. Thereafter, on September 5, 2016, the Board decided for closure of operations. In order to retain the best
talent to oversee the closure related activities, a core team of varied functional professionals (including the MD and
KMPs)was constituted consisting of 19 officers. These officers were transferred to Tata Steel Ltd. and deputed back to
Tayo. They are guided by the Compensation policy of Tata Steel Ltd. as per deputation policy. However, we are notable
to paythe salary of workers since Oct 16.

Therefore, During the year none of the Whaole Time Director ('WTD") or KMPswere inthe rolls of the company
Remuneration payable to Director forservices rendered in other capacity

The remuneration payable to the Directors shall be inclusive of any remuneration payable for services rendered by such
director in any other capacity unless:

The services rendered are of a professional nature; and

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee is of the opinion that the director possesses requisite qualification for the
practice of the profession.

The Non-Executive Directors are paid remuneration by way of sitting fees and commission. The Company paid sitting
fees of Rs. 15,000/- (Rupees fifteen thousand only) per meeting to its Non-Executive Directors, for attending Board
meeting, Audit Committee and Momination and Remuneration Committee meetings and Rs. 10,000/- (Rupees ten
thousand only) per meeting for any other Committee meeting. However, considering financial position of the Company,
majority of Directors have forgone their rights to receive the sitting fee. Total sitting fees paid to the Non-Executive
Directors for attending meetings of the Board and Committees thereof during financial year 2017-18 was Rs. 15,000/-
(Rupees fifteen thousand only).

The Company has not granted any stock options toits NMon-Executive Directors.

Details of remuneration paid to Non-Executive Directors towards sitting fees for attending the Board and Committee
meetings during financial year 2015-16 are as follows:

Name of Director (Amount in Rs.)
Mr. Anand Sen —-
Mr. Dipak K. Banerjee —-
Prof. Ranjan Das -
Mr. Sudev C. Das -—
Mr. V.S, N. Murty -
Mrs. Ramya Hariharan 15000
Mr. Yoshikazu Miyasaka -
Mr. K. Shankar Marar —-
Total 15,000
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Details of remuneration paid to the Managing Directorduring financial year 2017-18 is as follows: (Rs. in Lakhs)
Salary Allowances & Retiral Performance Bonus/ Stock Options
Name (upto Perguisites Benefits Variable Pay
31.7.201 7
Mr. K. Shankar Marar,
Managing Director NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL

#Mr. Shankar Marar has been fransferred to Tata Steel we f. 22 3.2017. However, he has been deputed on whole time deputation
basis as MD and KMP w.e f. 22.3.2017. Theremuneration and other emoluments to Mr. Marar are being paid by Tata Steel Limited.

Service Contract, Severance Fees and Notice Period:

Period of Contract of Mr. K.
Shankar Marar#

Three years (From 11.08.2016 to 10.08.2019).

Severance fees There is no separate provision for payment of severance fees.

# Mr. K. Shankar Mararwas MD of the Company upto 31.7.2018 and has resigned after closure of business hours on31.7.2018.
Performance Evaluation Criteria for Board/Committee(s)/Director(s)

Pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and Chapter IV read with the provisions of Schedule Il of SEBI (LODR)
Regulations, 2015, the Board has carried out the annual performance evaluation of its own performance, the Directors individually as
well as the evaluation of the working of its Audit, Nomination and Remuneration and other Committees. A structured guestionnaire
was prepared after taking into consideration inputs received from the Directors, covering various aspects of the Beoard's functioning
such as adequacy of the compaosition of the Board and its Committees, Board culture, execution and perfermance of specific duties,
obligations and governance.

A separate exercise was carried out to evaluate the performance of individual Directors including the Chairman of the Board, who
were evaluated on parameters such aslevel ofengagement and contribution, independence of judgment, safeguarding the interest of
the Company and its minority shareholders etc. The performance evaluation of the Independent Directors was carried out by the
entire Board. The performance evaluation of the Chairman and the Non Independent Directors was carried out by the Independent
Directors. The Directors expressed their satisfactionwith the evaluation process.

c) Stakeholders Relationship Committee

The Board has a Stakeholders Relationship Committee in confirmation with the requirements of section 178(5) of the
Companies Act, 2013 read with Regulation 20 of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015. The terms of reference of the Stakeholders
Relationship Committee are to resolve the grievances of the security holders of the company including complaints related to
transfer of shares, non-receipt of annual reportetc. Company Secretary acts as Compliance Officer for this purpose.

Stakeholders Relationship Committee met once during the year 2017-18.
The Composition of Stakeholders Relationship Committee is as follows:

Name Category No of meetings attended

Mr. Anand Sen, Chairman Promoter, Non- Independent, 1
MNon-Executive

Mr. Sudev C. Das Independent, Non-Executive 1

Mr. K. Shankar Marar Promoter, Non- Independent, 1

MNon-Executive

During the year under review the Company has received few comrespondences from its shareholders relating to non-receipt of
dividend, non-receipt of shares sent for transfer, enquiry for dematerialization, split/transmission, change in address etc. No
comrespondence was pendingas on 31.03.2018.

d) Share Transfer Committee: Constituted in the year 1969.

Share Transfer Committee was constituted for approving transfer, sub-division of shares and issue of fresh share certificates
with the following members, with the authority to act individually. The Committee met as and whenrequired.

Name Category
Mr. Anand Sen, Chairman Promoter, Non- Independent,
Mon-Executive

Mr. K. Shankar Marar
Mr. Prashant Kumar#

Promoter, Non- Independent, Non-Executive
Company Secretary & Compliance Officer
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# With effect from 1.3.2018 Mr Prashant Kumar has resigned from the post of Company Secretary and Compliance
Officer.
e) Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Committee:

As per section 135 (1)of the Companies Act, 2013, every Company having a net worth of Rupees five hundred crore or more, or
tumover of Rupees one thousand crore or more or a net profit of Rupees five crore or more during any financial year shall
constitute a CSR Committee of the Board consisting of three or more Directors, out of which at least one Director shall be
Independent Director.

The Company has been sufferingloss since 2008-09 and doesn't fuffill any of the basic criteria as mentioned under section 135
(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 therefore CSR Committee of the Board is not required. Hence Company has not constituted a
CSR Committee of the Board.

The Company is notrequired to constitute Risk M anagement Committee
Other than the above Committees, the Board also constitutes Committee for specific purpose as and when required.
MName, Designation & address of Compliance Officer #:

Mr. PD. Mundhra,

Chief Executive Officer,

Tayo Rolls Limited,

3, C.H. Area (NE), Road No. 11,
Circuit Hosue Area,
Jamshedpur.

Tel.No.0657-6627 140/6627281
Fax No.0657-6627 200

E-mail :tayoregd@tayo.co.in
investors_helpdesk@tayo.co.in

# Consequent upon resignation of Mr. Prashant Kumar as Company Secretary & Compliance office of the company w.e.f
1.3.2018, Mr. P. D. Mundhra has been appointed by the board as compliance officer.w.e.f. 18.4 2018

GENERAL BODY MEETING DETAILS
General body meetings

Locationand time where last three Annual General Meetings were held:

Year Date Time Venue

Auditorium of Centre for Excellence,

Jubilee Road, Bistupur, Jamshedpur 831001

Auditorium of Centre for Excellence,

Jubllee Road, Bistupur, Jamshedpur 831001
. Auditorium of Centre for Excellence,

AL bt Al WS Sl Jubilee Road, Bistupur, Jamshedpur 831001

2017 18.07.2017 11:30 a.m.

2016* 21.08.2016 11.30 a.m

*E-voting facility was provided to the shareholders in accordance with the provisions of Companies Act, 2013 read with SEBI
(LODR) Regulations, 2015; and erstwhile Listing Agreement with Stock Exchange.

Special Resolution passed during previous three years at Annual General Meetings:
The Special Resolutions passed during previous threeAnnual General Meetings are as under:

AGM Date Special Resclutions Passed
18.07.2017 = There was no Special Resolution
21.092016

- Re-appointment of Managing Director for period of three years

- Ratification of Material Related Party transactions for FY 201415
20.082015

-Approval of Material Related Party transactions for FY 201516
During the aforesaid Annual General Meetings, e-voting facility was provided to the shareholders.

One Postal Ballot was done during the financial year 2017-18. No Extraordinary General Meeting was held during the financial year
2017-18. The Board of Directors of the Company (the “Board”) had appointed Mr. PK. Chakrabraty, Practicing Company Secretary,
failing with Mr. Rohit Prakash Prit, Practicing Company Secretary, as the Scrutinizer for conducting the Postal Ballot and remote e-
voting process in a fairand transparent manner.
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According to regulation 36(3) of the SEBI (Listing obligations and Disclosure Requirement) Regulations, 2015, particulars of
Directors seeking appointment / reappointment are givenin the Annexure to the Notice.

Disclosures

Mone of the Directors are related to each other.

Disclosures on related party transactions are as per the approved policy on dealing with related party transactions and all
material related party transactions have been reported to the Stock Exchange on quarterly basis along with the compliance
report on corporate governance.

The details of related party transactions are given in the notes on the Balance Sheet and Profit and Loss Accounts at Page
Mos.89-92.

The Company has formulated a pelicy on materiality of related party transactions and also on dealing with Related Party
Transactions. All the related party transactions have prior approval of the Audit Committee of the Company. In case of repetitive
nature of fransactions, omnibus approval of the Audit Committee may be obtained. In case of material related party
transactions, shareholders approval will be obtained as and when applicable.

The detailed policy ondealings with Related Party transactions is available onthe website of the company at www.tayo.co.in

v) There are no instances of non-compliance by the Company or strictures imposed by the Stock Exchanges, SEBI or any other
regulatory authority on any matterrelatedto capital markets, during the lastthree years.

vi}  The Board has adopted the Risk Management policy and framework, and the same is being periodically reviewed.

vii)  Inpreparation of financial statements, all the applicable Ind AS have been followed.

vii)  Management Discussionand Analysis Reportforms a part of the Director's Report.

ix) The relevant disclosures onthe remuneration of directors have been included under *“Remuneration Policy” inthis Report.

x) Mone of the Directors of the Company is holding any shares inthe Company.

xi) Senior management team has not entered into any material financial & commercial transaction, where they have any potential
interestthat mayhave apotential conflict with the interest of the Company atlarge.

xi)  The Company allotted 78,25,000 (seventy-eight lakh twenty-five thousand) 7.17% and 7% Non-Cumulative Redeemable
Preference Shares of Rs. 100/- (Rupees one hundred only) each to Tata Steel Limited on preferential basis. The Audit
Committee is monitoring the utilization and deployment of the funds raised by these issues as well as earlier issues of
Redeemable Preference Shares.

xii)  The Statement on Investor Complaints (Regulation 13), Corporate Governance Report (Regulation 27}, Shareholding Pattern
(Regulation 31), and Financial Results (Regulation 33) have also been uploaded onwwwisting.bseindia.com as well as on the
Company Website.

xiv) The Company is complying with the requirements of Regulation 34 read with Schedule V Clause C of SEBI (LODR)
Regulations, 2015, relating to Corporate Governance Report.

xv)  The Details of adoption/non-adoption of the Discretionary requirements as specified in Regulation 27 (1) read with Schedule |1
Part E of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015 are as under:

Details of Compliance/ Adoptionof the Non-Mandatory requirements under the SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015.
Sl. No. Particulars Status
1. The Board
Non-executive Chairman may be entitied to maintain a Chairperson 's office at the company's expenses | Not
and also allowed reimbursement of expenses incurred for performance of his duties Adopted
2. Shareholder Rights
A half yearly declaration of financial performance including summary of the significant events in the Not Adopted
last 6 (six) months should be sentto each household of shareholders.
3. Modified opinion(s) in audit report
The company may move towards a regime of financial statements with unmodified audit opinion. Not Adopted
4. Separate posts of Chairperson and Chief Executive Officer
The Company may appoint separate  persons to the post of Chairperson and Managing Director or | Adopted
Chief Executive Officer
5. Reporting of Internal Auditor
The Internal Auditor may report directly to the Audit Committee Adopted
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RECONCILIATION OF SHARE CAPITAL AUDIT

A qualified Practicing Company Secretary carried out the Share Capital Reconciliation audit to reconcile the total issued and paid up
capital with National Securities Depository Limited (NSDL) and Central Depository Services (India) Limited {CDSL) with the total
issued and listed capital. The audit confirms that the total issued/ paid up capital is in agreement with the total number of Shares in the
physical form and the total numberof dematerialized shares heldwithNSDLand CDSL.

CEOQI/CFO CERTIFICATION

The Managing Director/fCEQ and Deputy Chief Financial Officer, who heads the Finance function, have submitted the required
Certificate to the Board atits meeting held on May 02, 2018, wherein the Audited Accounts of the Company for the financial year2017-
18 were considered.

MEANS OF COMMUNICATION

The quarterly and annual results along with the segmental report are generally published in Business Standard (in English) and
Prabhat Khabar, Hindustan & Danik Bhaskar {in Hindi) and also been posted on Company's Web site www.tayo.co.in shortly after its
submission to the Stock Exchange.
GENERAL SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION
i) AGM: Date, time and venue Tuesday, September 18, 2018 at 11:00 A.M. at the
Auditorium of the Centre for Excellence, Jubilee Road,
Bistupur — Jamshedpur - 831001

i) Particulars of Directors seeking appointment/ re-appointment are annexed to the Notice of the Annual General Meeting to be
held on Tuesday, September 18, 2018.

iy  Financial Calendar

Annual General Meeting

Aprilto March
Tuesday, September 18, 2018
Reviewed Financial Results

i)
viii)

i)

Quarter 1, 2018-19
Quarter 2, 2018-19
Quarter 3, 2018-19
Audited Financial Results
Quarter 4, 2018-19

Date of book closure

Cut off date for e-voting
Remote e-voting pericd
Dividend Payment date
Listing on Stock Exchange

Stock Code
Market Information

8th August, 2018
3rd week of October, 2018
3rd week of January, 2019

1st week of May 2019

Wednesday, September 12, 2018 till Tuesday, September 18, 2018 (both days
inclusive)

Tuesday, September 11, 2018
Saturday, September 15, 2018 (9.00 a.m.)til Monday, September 17, 2018 (5 p.m.)
The directors have not recommended any dividend for the financial year 2017-18.
The Company's shares are listed on the Bombay Stock Exchange Ltd. (BSE)
The Company has paid the annual listing fees to the Stock Exchange

504961 (BSE)

Market Price Data: High, Low (based on the closing prices) and volume during each
month in last financial year, as under:

Month High Low No.ofshares
Apr17 65.80 52.10 214175
May'17 64.60 5425 146168
June'17? 61.00 53.80 61278
July17 63.90 53.90 156140
Augl7 57.90 48 85 70135
Sept17 92.80 4805 1153140
Oct17 78.00 60.05 121693
Nov'17 67.95 58.20 34014
Dec'17 75.10 61.65 82388
Jan'18 109.55 67.05 767662
Feb'18 79.95 63.80 72596
Mar'18 69.95 54 50 68463
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xi)

xii)

Performance of Company's Share Price

The performance of the Company's share pricesin comparison to the BSE Sensex during the financial year 2017-18, was as

under:
Tayo Bharaprica In Comparision ta BEE Sansax
|200.0¢ T 4000
+ 3a000
1500 4 30000
1 2800
10000 -
M i
S T —— T 15000
+ 10900
* Apr7 May17 JuretT July1? Augi7 Sept'7 Oot'17 Nov.'17 DecM7 Jani® Feb'16 Mar'1d
—a—low —e—High —a—Sansex
Registrar & Transfer Agents:
TSR Darashaw Limited
6-10, Haji Moosa Patrawala Ind Estate, (Near Famous
Studio) 20, Dr. E. Moses Road, Mahalaxmi,
Mumbai — 400 011
Tel. no. : (022) 6656-8484
Fax no. :(022) 6656-8404/96
E-mail: csg-unit@tsrdarashaw.com
Website: www.tsrdarashaw.com
Branch Offices of TSR Darashaw Ltd
TSR Darashaw Limited TSR Darashaw Limited
Bunglow Mo-1, *E" Road, Northemn Town, Tata Centre, 1st Floor, 43, Jawahar Lal Nehru Road,
Bistupur,Jamshedpur- 831 001 Kolkata- 700 071
Phone 0657-2426616 Phone : 033-228383087
Fax : 0657- 2426937 Fax : 033-22883062
E-mail tsrdljsr@tsrdarashaw.com Email : tsrdical@tsrdarashaw.com
TSR Darashaw Limited TSR Darashaw Limited
503, Barton Centre, (5th Floor), 84, M.G .Road, 2/42, Sant \ihar, Ansari Road Daryaganj,
Bangalore- 560 001 New Delhi- 110 002
Phone : 080-25320321 Phone : 011-23271805
Fax @ 080-25580019 Fax : 011- 23271802
E-mail tsrdlbang@tsrdarashaw.com E-mail tsrddel@tsrdarashaw.com

Agent of TSR Darashaw Limited:

Shah Consultancy Services Limited

Sumatinath Complex, 2nd Dhal Pritam Magar, Ellis Bridge,
Ahmedabad -380 006

Telefax : 079- 26576038

E-mail Shahconsultancy @hotmail .com

Investor Relation Assistance:

Mr.P.D. Mundhra

Chief Executive Officer,

Tayo Rolls Limited

3, CH Area (NE), Road No.11,

Circuit House Area,

P.C. & P.S. Bistupur,

Jamshedpur — 831 001

Tel.No. : 0657-6627821

Fax No.: 0657-6627143

E-mails : tayoregd@tayo.co.n
Investors_helpdesk@tayo.co.in

Mr. Deepak Tambe

Senior Associate

TSR Darashaw Ltd

6-10 Haji Moosa Patrawala Ind Estate,
20, Dr. E. Moses Road,

Mumbai- 400 011

Phone : 022- 665668484

Fax » 022- 66568494/96

E-mail : dtambe@tasdarashaw.com
Website : www tsrdarashaw.com
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xiij  Share transfer system:

a) Physical Form:

The Board has authorized afew Directors and the Company Secretary severally to approve the transferof share.

Share fransfer in physical form can be lodged either at the Registered Office of the Company or with TSR. Darashaw
Limited, the Registrar & Transfer Agents, at the above-mentioned address or any of their branch offices, addresses of
which areavailable ontheirwebsite.
Transfers are normally processed within 15 days from the date of receipt, provided the documents are complete in all
respect. Certainexecutives (including the Chief Executive Officer) are severally empowered to approve fransfers.

b) DematForm:
The Company has made arrangements to dematerialize its shares through Mational Securities Depository Limited
{NSDL) and Central Depository Services (India) Limited (CDSL) and Company's ISIN Mo. is INEB25C01011.The shares
ofthe Company are actively traded in the Stock Exchange where they are listed. As on March 31, 2018, 96.21% shares
ofthe Company were in Dematerialized form.

xiv) a) Distributionofshareholdings ason31.03.2018:
No. of Equity Shares held Shareholders Share Amount
Mo. of No. of Shares % to total Rs. % fo total
Holders
1 - 500 7,389 1:022:726 90.77 10,227 260 2.97
501 - 1000 399 317:915 4.90 3,179,150 3.10
1001 - 2000 179 272167 2.20 2,721,670 2.65
2001 - 3000 65 164,643 0.80 1,646,430 1.60
3001 - 4000 32 114,725 0.39 1,147 250 1.12
4001 - 5000 21 94 373 0.26 943,730 0.92
5001 - 10000 33 244 469 0.41 2,444 690 2.38
10001 and above 22 8,029,917 0.27 80,299,170 78.26
TOTAL 8,140 102,60,935 100.00 10,26,09,350 100.00
b) Shareholding pattern as on 31.03.2018:
Sl. No. Category No. of Shares %
I Promoters/Associate companies, etc. 75,12.367 73.21
1. Financial Institutions 950 0.01
n Other Bodies Corporate/Trusts 216191 211
IV Directors & Relatives e =
. General Public 2530827 24 .66
TOTAL 10,260 935 100.00
c) Topfive Equity Shareholders as on 31.03 2018:
c Category No. of Shares Yo
. Tata Steel Limited 5587372 54 .45
Il Yodogawa Steel Works Limited 15,36,704 14.98
1. Saojitz Corporation 3,07 341 3.00
V. Gautam Chokhany 87,700 0.85
V. Hasmukh Parekh 72,200 0.70
TOTAL 7,591,317 73.98
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xv)  The Company has no outstanding GDR/ADR/MWarrants orany convertible instruments.

xvi) Plantlocation o TAYOWorks, Gamharia,
Distt Seraikella- Kharsawan, Jharkhand.

xvii) Registered OfficeAddress  : 3, CHArea (NE), Road No.11,
Circuit House Area,
P.O. & P.S. Bistupur,
Jamshedpur— 831001
Tel.: (0657) 2227821
E-mail: tayoregd@tayo.co.in
Web-site: www.tayo.co.in

A Certificate from the Auditors of the Company, M/s. AMK & Associates, Chartered Accountants, regarding due Compliance of
conditions stipulatedin Regulation 34 (3 )read with Schedule V Clause E the SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015 is annexed hereto.

On Behalf of Board of Directors

Anand Sen
Kolkata Chairman
May 2, 2018 (DIN — 00237914)

DECLARATION

I, P. O. Mundhra, Chief Executive Officer of Tayo Rolls Limited, on the basis of confirmation received from the Board Members and
Senior Management personnel, hereby declare that all the Board Members and Senior Management personnel, have affirmed
compliance with the Code of Conduct for Non-Executive Directors and the Tata Code of Conduct respectively for the financial year

2017-18.
Kolkata (P. D. Mundhra)
May 2, 2018 Chief Executive Office
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
To The Members of TAYO Rolls Limited

Report on the Standalone IndAS Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying standalone Ind AS financial statements of TAYO ROLLS LIMITED (“the Company”), which
comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2018, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including other Comprehensive Income), the
Cash Flow Statement and the Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and a summary of the significant accounting
policies and otherexplanatory information (herein afterreferred to as “Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements™).

Management's Responsibility forthe Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 {“the Act”) with
respect to the preparation of these standalone Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position,
financial performance including other comprehensive Income, cash flows and changesin equity of the Company in accordance with
the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS) specified under Section 133
of the Act, read with Rules issued thereunder. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in
accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and
other iregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are
reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were cperating
effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the
standalone Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

Auditors’ Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these standalone Ind AS financial statements based on our audit.

We have taken into account the provisions of the Act, the accounting and auditing standards and matters which are required to be
included in the audit report underthe provisions ofthe Act and the Rules made there under.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under Section 143{10) of the Act. Those Standards
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
standalone Ind AS financial staterents are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and the disclosures in the standalone Ind AS
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the standalone Ind AS financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the
auditor considers intemal financial control relevant to the Company's preparation of the standaleone Ind AS financial statements that
give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of the accounting policies used and the reasonableness of the accounting estimates made by the
Company's Directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the standalone Ind AS financial staterments.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the
standalone Ind AS financial statements.

Opinion

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid standalone Ind AS
financial statements give the information required by the Actin the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with
the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Ind AS of the financial position of the Company as at March 31,
2018, and its loss, total comprehensive loss |, its cash flows and the changes in equity forthe yearended on that date.

Emphasis of Matter

We draw attention to note no. 2.2 in the financial statements wherein it is indicated that, the Company has accumulated losses and its
net worth has been fully eroded. The Company has incurred a net loss during the current and previous years and the Company's
current liabilities exceeded its current assets as at the balance sheet date. These conditions, along with other matters set forth in note
2.2, indicate the existence of amaterial uncertainty that may cast significant doubt about the Company's ability to continue as a going
concern. Accordingly, the financial statements of the Company have been prepared on other than going concemn basis for reason the
reasons stated in the said note. The assets have been stated atthe lower of their historic cost and estimated net realizable values and
the liabilities have been stated at the values at which theyare expectedto be discharged.
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Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirement

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2016 (“the order”) issued by the Central Government of India in terms
of Subsection (11) of Section 143 of the Act, we give in the "Annexure A", a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3
and 4 of the order.

2. As required by Section 143 (3) of the Act, we report that:

(a)

(d)

(e)

We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief were
necessary for the purposes of ouraudit

In our opinion, proper bocks of account as required by law have been keptby the Company so far as it appears from our
examination of those books ;

The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the Cash Flow
Staterment and the Staterment of the changes in equity dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of
account;

In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone Ind AS financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards specified
underSection 133 of the Act, read with relevant rule issued thereunder;

The going concem matter described in “Emphasis of Matter” paragraph above, in our opinion, may have an adverse
effecton the functioning of the Company.

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2018 taken on record by the

Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2018 from being appointed as a directorin ferms
of Section 164 (2) of the Act;

With respect to the adequacy of the Intemal Financial Controls over financial reporting of the Company and the
operating effectiveness of such controls, referto ourseparate Reportin*Annexure B"; and

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies
{(Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended, in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the
explanations given tous:

i The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its financial statements —
Refernote 33.1 (a) of the standalone Ind AS financial statements.

i The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivatives contracts for which there were any
material foreseeablelosses- Referncte 34.2 of the standalone IndAS financial statements.

ii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred, to the Investor Education and Protection Fund by
the Company- Refer note 34.3 of the standalone Ind AS financial statements.

FOR AMK & ASSOCIATES
Chartered Accountants
Firm Reg. No. 327817E

Bhupendra Kumar Bhutia
PARTNER

Membership No. 059363

Dated: 2nd May, 2018
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Annexure “A” to the Independent Auditors' Report

Annexure to the Independent Auditors' Report to the Members of TAYO Rolls Limited referred to in paragraph 1 of Report on Other
Legal and Regulatory Requirements inour Report of evendate

(i)

0]

(i)

(vii)

Inrespect of its fixed assets (property, plant and equipment):

a)  TheCompany has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details and situation of fixed
assets.

b)  The fixed assets were physically verified during the year by the Management in accordance with a programme of
verification, whichin curopinion provides for physical verification of all the fixed assets atreasonable intervals.

According to the information and explanations given fo us nomaterial discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

c) According to the information and explanations given to us and the records examined by us and based on the
examinafion of the registered sale deed/ transfer deed / conveyance deed provided tous, we report that, the tile deeds,
comprising all the immovable properties of freehold buildings, are held in the name of the Company as at the balance
sheetdate.

The Company does not have any immovable properties of freehold land and leasehold land and buildings that have
been taken on lease and disclosed as fixed assets inthe Ind AS financial statements.

As explained to us, the inventories were physically verified during the year by the Management at reasonable intervals and no
material discrepancies were noticed on physical verification.

The Company has not granted any loans, secured or unsecured, to companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnership or other
parties coveredin the Register maintained under Section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013.

The Company has notgranted any loans, made investments or provided guarantees and hence reperting under clause (iv) of
the CARO 2016 is notapplicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not accepted any deposit during the year. In
respect of unclaimed deposits, the Company has complied with the provisions of Sections 73 to 76 or any other relevant
provisicns of the Companies Act, 2013.

Asinformed to us, noorder has been passed by the Company law Board and Mational Company Law Tribunal or Reserve Bank
of India or any cthertribunal against the company forany violation of deposit rules as referred above.

The maintenance of cost records has been specified by the Central Govemnment under section 148(1) of the Companies Act,
2013. We have broadly reviewed the costrecords maintained by the Company pursuant to the Companies (Cost Records and
Audit) Rules, 2014, as amended prescribed by the Central Government under sub-section (1) of Section 148 of the Companies
Act, 2013, and are of the opinion that, prima facie, the prescribed cost records have been made and maintained. We have,
however, not made a detailed examination of the cost recordswith a view todetermine whetherthey are accurate or complete.

According to the information and explanations given tous, in respect of statutory dues:

a) The Company has generally been regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues, including Provident Fund, Income
tax, Sales Tax, Service Tax, Goods and Service Tax, Customs Duty, Excise Duty, Value Added Tax, cess and other
material statutory dues applicable to it to the appropriate authorities.

We are informed that the Company has applied for an exemption from the operation of the provisions of Employees'
State Insurance Act, 1948 forthe financial year2017-18, which approvalis awaited from the relevant authorities.

b) There were no undisputed amounts payable in respect of Provident Fund, Income-tax, Sales Tax, Service Tax, Goods
and Service Tax, Customns Duty, Excise Duty, Value Added Tax, cess and other material statutory dues in arrears as at 31
March, 2018 for a period of more than six months from the date they became payable.

We are informed that the Company has applied for an exemption from the operation of the provisions of Employees’
State Insurance Act, 1948 forthe financial year 2017-18, which approval is awaited from the relevant authorities.

c) Details of dues of Income Tax, Excise Duty and \alue Added Tax which have not beendepositedas on 31 March20180on
account of disputes are given below:
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Forum where . . .
Name of the Statute Nature of Dues Dispute is Fariod fa which Amaunt Unpald
: Amount Relates (Rs. In lacs)
Pending
Commissioner 2006-07, 2007 -08
Income Tax Act, 1961 Income Tax (Appeals) and 2011 -12 186.90
Income Tax Act, 1961 Income Tax High Court 2001-02 46.21
Total 233.11
Central Exd i Assistant 2008-09, 2012 -
RO R Excise Duty Commissioner 13, and 2015 -16to 22.20
Service Tax Act, 1944
(Appeals) 2016-17
Central Excise and ; Commissioner 2003 -04 to 2007 -
Sardite Tat Act, 1044 Fadise Bty tAppeals) 08 and 2010 -11 2nt04
Total 313.14
Jharkhand
e el b e JVAT Commercial 2010-11 34.05
2005 :
Taxes Tribunal
Jharkhand Salas TaxAct el 2011 -12 t0 2013
il JVAT Commissioner e i 241.55
2005 14
(Appeals)
Total 275.60

()

(xii)
(xiii)

(xiv)

(xv)

(v}

FOR AMK & ASSOCIATES
Chartered Accountants
Firm Reg. No. 327817E

The company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or borrowing to a financial institution, bank, government or dues to
debenture holders.

The Company has not raise any money by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including debt instruments) and term
loans during the year. Accordingly, paragraph 3 (ix) of the Orderis not applicable.

Mo fraud by the company or any material fraud on the Company by its officers or employees has been noticed or reported
duringtheyear.

The Company has not paid any managerial remuneration during the current financial year. Accordingly, paragraph 3 (xi) ofthe
Orderis not applicable.

The Company is not a Nidhi Company. Accordingly, paragraph 3 (xii)of the Order is notapplicable.

All transactions with the related parties are incompliance with section177 and 188 of Companies Act, 2013 and the details have
been disclosed inthe Financial Statements etc., as required by the applicable accounting standards;

The company has made preferential allotment duringthe yearunder review: 2013.
Inrespect of the above issue, we further report that:
a) the requirements of Section 42 of the Companies Act, 2013, as applicable, have been complied with; and

b) the amounts raised have beenapplied by the Company during the year for the purposes for which the funds were raised,
other than temporary de ployment pending application.

During the year, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of fully or partly convertible
debentures.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records of the Company, there
are no personal expenses which have been charged fo the revenue account and the Company has not entered into non-cash
transactions with directors or persons connected with him.

The company isnot required to be registered under section 45-1Aof the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934.

Bhupendra Kumar Bhutia
PARTNER
Membership No. 059363
i Dated: Znd May, 2018
5
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ANNEXURE “B” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Annexure to the Independent Auditors' Report to the Members of TAYO Rolls Limited referred to inparagraph 2 (g) of Reporton Other
Legal and Regulatory Requirements inour Report of even date

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 ofthe Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act’)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of TAYO Rolls Limited as of March 31, 2018 in conjunction with
our audit of the standalone financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company's management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on *the internal control
over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of intemal control stated in the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
India”. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were
operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company's policies, the
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting
records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required underthe Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial reporting based on our audit We
conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Mote on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the
“Guidance Mote") and the Standards on Auditing, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. T hose Standards and the Guidance Mote require that we comply with ethical requirements
and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate intemnal financial confrols over financial
reportingwas established and maintained andif such controls operated effectively inall material respects.

Qur audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial controls system over
financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining
anunderstanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing
and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected
depend on the auditor's judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whetherdue to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the
Company's internal financial controls system over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Acompany's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the
reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles. Acompany's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures
that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions
of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of
financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company
are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable
assurance regarding prevention or imely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could
have amaterial effect on thefinancial statements.

InherentLimitations of Internal Financial Contrels Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of intemnal financial controls over financial reporting, including the possibility of collusion or
improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also,
projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject fo the risk that the
internal financial control over financial reperting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinicn, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over financial reporting and
such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at March 31, 2018, based on “the internal control
over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of intemal control stated in the

Guidance Mote on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
India”.

FOR AMK & ASSOCIATES Bhupendra Kumar Bhutia
Chartered Accountants PARTNER
Firmn Reg. No. 327817E Membership No. 059363

Dated: 2nd May, 2018
52
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Balance Sheet as at 31 March, 2018
ASSETS Notes As at As at
31.03.2018 31.03.2017
Rupees in lakhs Rupees in lakhs
Non-current assets
(a) Property, plant and equipment %) 4,656.49 6,236.39
b) Capital work-in-progress - -
(c) Other intangible assets 4 - 0.49
(d) Financial assets
(1} Investments:
Other investments b 0.09 0.09
iiy  Other financial assets 6 144.51 6.40
(e) Mon-current tax assets 8 427.13 490.69
(f) Other non-current assets 7T 190.66 199.03
Total non-current assets 5.418.88 6,933.09
Current assets
{a) Inventories a9 763.82 771.19
(b) Financial assets
(i) Trade receivables 10 73.53 113.87
(i) Cash and cash equivalents 1 249.00 779.03
(i} Bank balances other than cash and 12 546.40 0.47
cash equivalents
{iv) Other financial assets 76.47 70.25
(c) Other current assets 146.83 118.61
Total current assets 1.856.05 1,853.42
Total assets 7.274.93 8,786.51
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
(a) Equity share capital 13 1,026.13 1,026.13
(b} Other equity 14 (45,857 .49) (43,291.85)
Total equity (44.,831.36) (42,265.72)
Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
(a) Financial liabilities
(i) Borrowings 15 35.814.42 27,984.10
Total non-current liabilities 35,814.42 27.984.10
Current liabilities
(a) Financial liabilities
(i) Borrowings 16 6,700.00 12,253.26
(ii)y Trade payables 18 2,858.81 2,521.76
(i) Other financial liabilities 19 1,665.57 1,477.02
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(b) Provisions 17 1,928.75 2,508.41
(c) Current tax liabiliies (net) 8 123.08 123.08
(d) Other current liabilities 20 3,015.66 4,184.60
Total current liabilities 16,291.87 23,068.13
Total liabilities 52,106.29 51,052.23
Total equity and liabilities 7.274.93 8,786.51
See accompanying notes to the 1-38
financial statements
In terms of our report attached
For AMK & Associates For and on behalf of the Board
Chartered Accountants
Bhupendra Kumar Bhutia K SHANKAR MARAR ANAND SEN
Partner Director Chairman
DIN: 06656658 DIN: 00237914
Place: Kolkata Place: Kolkata SURESH PADMANABHAN

Date: 2 May, 2018

Date: 2 May, 2018

Dy. Chief Financial Officer
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Statement of Profit & Loss for the year ended 31 March, 2018
Notes Year ended Year ended
31.03.2018 31.03.2017
Rupees Rupees
in lakhs in lakhs
| Revenue from operations 21 34.83 4.663.76
Il Other income 22 58.53 602.07
[} Total income (I + 11} 93.36 5,265.83
') Expenses
(a) Cost of materials consumed 23 - 899.48
(b) Changes in inventories of finished goods, stock in 24 T7.37 1,988.24
trade and work in progress
(c) Excise duty on sale of goods - 443.28
(d) Employee benefits expense 25 1,386.76 2,206.12
{e) Finance costs 26 916.99 1,686.35
(f)  Depreciation and amortisation expense 27 478.04 694 .46
{g) Consumption of stores - 672.87
(h) Power and fuel 10.52 413.64
{iy Other expenses 28 464.34 2,037.38
Total expenses (IV) 3,264.02 11,041.82
v Loss before exceptional items and tax (lll - IV) (3,170.66) (5,775.99)
Wi Exceptional items 36 605.02 (2,518 .89)
Vil Loss before tax (V - V1) (2,565.64) (8,294 .88)
Vit Tax expense: - -
X Loss for the year (VI - ViII) (2,565.64) (8,294 .88)
X Other comprehensive income
lterns that will not be reclassified to profit and loss
Equity instruments through other comprehensive income 14.3 - 2.16
Total other comprehensive income for the year - 2.16
Xl Total comprehensive income for the year (I1X + X) (2,565.64) (8,292.72)
Earnings per equity share (face value of Rs. 10 each):
(1) Basic 30 (25.00) (80.84)
{2) Diluted (25.00) (80.84)
See accompanying notes to the financial statements 1-38
In terms of our report attached
For AMK & Associates For and on behalf of the Board
Chartered Accountants
Bhupendra Kumar Bhutia K SHANKAR MARAR ANAND SEN
Partner Director Chairman
DIN: 06656658 DIN: 00237914
SURESH PADMANABHAN
DOy. Chief Financial Officer
Place: Kolkata Place: Kolkata
Date: 2 May, 2018 Date: 2 May, 2018
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Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 31 March, 2018
Year ended Year ended
31.03.2018 31.03.2017
Rupees Rupees
in lakhs in lakhs
A. Cash flow from operating activities:
Loss for the year (2.565.64) (8,294 .88)
Adjustments for:
Depreciation and amortisation expense 478.04 694 .46
Unrealised loss/(gain) on exchange fluctuation - 16.42
Loss on salefwrite off of tangible assets 4.15 71.97
Finance costs recognised in profit or loss 916.99 1,686.35
Interest income recognised in statement in profit and loss (44.27) (22.286)
Income recognised in profit and loss for write - (575.46)
back of liabilities no longer required
Expenses recognised in profit and loss for exceptional items (605.02) 2518.89
Expenses recognised in profit and loss for doubtful debts and advances - 344.15
Expenses recognised in profit and loss for warranty - 85.45
(1.815.75) (3.47491)
Movements in working capital
(Increase)/decrease in trade and other receivables (671.87) 2,860.68
(Increase)/decrease in inventories 7.37 2.980.46
Increase/(decrease) in retirement benefit assets/obligations (543.48) (2,735.50)
Increase/(decrease) in trade and other payables 835.16 {1,081.15)
Cash used in operations (2,188.57) {1,45042)
Income taxes (paid)/refund 63.56 (41.64)
Net cash used in operating activities (2,125.01) (1,492.06)
B. Cash Flow from Investing activities:
Payments for property, plant and equipment (94.22) (241.99)
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment - 3.19
Proceeds on sale of financial assets - 29.23
Interest received 38.05 18.02
MNet cash flow used in investing activities (56.17) (191.55)
C. Cash flow from financing activities:
Proceeds from issue of non-cumulative redeemable preference shares 7.825.00 2.905.00
Proceeds from related parties 700.00 -
Proceeds/ (repayment) of current borrowings (net) (6,253.26) 1,607.22
Repayment of non-current borrowings (398.12) {1,592 .50)
Interest and other borrowing costs paid (222.47) (965.83)
Net cash flow from financing activities 1,651.15 1,953.89
Net increase/(decrease) in cash or cash equivalents (530.03) 270.28
Cash and cash equivalents as at the beginning of the year 779.03 508.75
Cash and cash equivalents as at the end of the year 249.00 779.03
See accompanying notes to the financial statements 1-38
In terms of our report attached
For AMK & Associates For and on behalf of the Board
Chartered Accountants
Bhupendra Kumar Bhutia K SHANKAR MARAR ANAND SEN
Partner Director Chairman
DIN: 06656658 DIN: 00237914
SURESH PADMANABHAN
Dy. Chief Financial Officer
Place: Kolkata Place: Kolkata
Date: 2 May, 2018 Date: 2 May, 2018
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED
31 MARCH, 2018

(A) Equity share capital

Amount

Rupees in lakhs

Balance as at 01.04.2016 1,026.13
Changes in equity share capital during the year
Balance as at 31.03.2017 1,026.13
Changes in equity share capital during the year
Balance as at 31.03.2018 1,026.13
(B) Other equity Rupees in lakhs
Retained Other items Securities Total
earning of other  premium
comprehensive reserve
income
Balance as at 01.04.2016 (40,503.03) (38.06) 5,541.96 (34,999.13)
Loss for the year (8,294 88) - - (8,294 .88)
Profit on sale of equity instruments designated - 2.16 - 2.16
at fair value through OCI
Balance as at 31.03.2017 (48,797.91) (3590) 5541.96 (43,291.85)
Profit for the year (2,565.64) - - (2,565.64)
Other comprehensive income (35.90) 35.90
Balance as at 31.03.2018 (51,399.45) - 554196 (45857.49)
See accompanying notes to the financial statements 1-38
In terms of our report attached
For AMK & Associates For and on behalf of the Board
Chartered Accountants
Bhupendra Kumar Bhutia K SHANKAR MARAR ANAND SEN
Partner Director Chairman
DIN: 06656658 DIN: 00237914
SURESH PADMANABHAN
Dy. Chief Financial Officer
Place: Kolkata Place: Kolkata

Date: 2 May, 2018 Date: 2 May, 2018
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General information:

TAYO ROLLS LIMITED (“the Company”), formerly Tata- Yodogawa Limited was incorporated in 1968. The address of its
registered office is at Jamshedpur. Its parent and ulimate holding company is Tata Steel Limited. The Company was promoted
by Tata Steel Limited in collaboration with Yodogawa Steel Works, Japan and Nissho Iwai Corporation of Japan for production
of cast iron and cast steel rolls for metallurgical industries. As a part of its backward integration, the Company has set up a mini
blast furnace of 40,000 tpa for the manufacture of Pig Iron. Other products include Forged Rolls, Engineering Forging and
Ingots. The Company has a license and know-how agreement with Sheffield Forgemasters International, UK for the transfer of
technology to manufacture forging quality ingots, forged bars, engineering forgings and forged rolls. The principal activities of
the Company are described in Note 30. The equity shares of the Company are listed on Bombay Stock Exchange Limited
(BSE).

The functional and presentation currency of the Company is Indian Rupee ("INR") which is the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the Company operates. All financial information presented in Indian rupees has been rounded
tothe nearest lakhs exceptshare and per share data.

Significant accounting policies:
Statementofcompliance

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards ('Ind AS") notified under the
Companies(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 201 5read with section 133 of the Companies Act, 201 3 and otheraccounting
principles generally accepted inIndia. The Ind AS financial statements have been prepared on accrual basis. The matter stated
in Mote 2.2 indicates the inappropriateness of the use of generally accepted accounting principles that are applicable toa going
concernentity in preparation of Ind AS financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31 March, 2018.

Going concern assumption

The Company has incurred a loss of Rs. 2,565 .64 lakhs during the year ended 31 March, 2018 (incurred a loss of Rs. 8,284 88
lakhs during the year ended 31 March, 2017 ) and the accumulated losses as at 31 March, 2018 amounting to Rs. 51,399.45
lakhs (as at 31 March, 2017 Rs. 48,833.81 lakhs) has eroded the net worth of the Company and the Company's current
liabilities exceeds its current assets by Rs. 14 435 82lakhs as at 31 March, 2018 (as at 31 March, 2017 Rs.21,214.71 lakhs).

The Company's operating results continue to be materially affected by various factors, particularly high pricing pressures due to
overcapacity in roll industry, general economic slowdown and unavailability of future financing. Considering, these factors the
going concem assumption is not appropriate for preparing the Ind AS financial statements and these Ind AS financial
statements have been prepared on not a going concern basis. Accordingly, the assets have been stated at the lower of their
historic cost and estimated net realisable value and the liabilities have been stated atthe values atwhich they are expected to
be discharged.

The Board of Directors had referred the Company to the Board for Industrial and Financial Reconstruction (BIFR) as required
under the First proviso of section 15 (1) of The Sick Industrial Companies {Special Provisions) Act, 1885 and the Company is
registered with BIFR on 23 March, 2016. Meanwhile, the Ministry of Financeissued Motifications S.0. 3568 (E ) & 5.0. 3569 (E )
dated 25 November, 2016 to the effect that SICA has been repealed with effect from 1 December, 2016 and al the references or
inquiry pending before the BIFR and/or AAIFR shall stand abated.

The Board of Directors at their meeting held on 3 July, 2017 has decided to refer the Company to the Mational Company Law
Tribunal under Section 10 of the Insclvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016 for initiation of Corporate Insolvency Resclution
Process. Subsequently, on 13 July, 2017, the Company has filed relevant application before the Mational Company Law
Tribunal, Kelkata under Section 10 of the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016, which was rejected on 22 December, 2017.
The Company has filed an appeal before the Mational Company Law Appellate Tribunal against the aforesaid order. The matter
is sub+udice.

The Board of Directors at their meeting held on 5 September, 2016 had decided to close the operations of the Company.
Accordingly, on 6 September, 2016 the Company has filed closure application U/s 25-0 of the Industrial Disputes Act, 1947 with
the State GovernmentAuthorities. The application was rejected on 27 October, 2016. The Company has filed a Writ Petition in
the Hon'ble Jharkhand High Court against the rejection order. The matteris sub-judice.

Accordingly, the financial statements have been prepared on not a going concern basis.
Basis of preparation and presentation

The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for certain financial instruments that are
measured at fairvalues at the end of each reporting peried, as explained in the accounting policies below.

Historical costis generally based onthe fair value of the consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date, regardless of whether that price is directly observable or estimated using another
valuation technique. In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Company takes into account the characteristics of
the asset or liability if market participants would take those characteristics into account when pricing the asset or liability at the
measurement date. Fair value for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these financial statements is determined on
such a basis except for, leasing transactions that are within the scope of Ind AS 17, and measurements that have some
similarities tofair value but are not fair value, suchas netrealisable valug in Ind AS 2 or value in usein Ind AS 36.
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In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2, or 3 based on the degree
to which the inputs to the fair value measurements are observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair value
measurement in its entirety, which are described as follows:

Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can access at the
measurement date;

Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included within Level 1, that are observable for the asset or liability, either
directly or indirectly; and

Level 3inputs are unobservable inputs forthe asset orliability:

Use of estimates and critical accounting judgements

In preparation of the financial statements, the Company makes judgments, estimates and assumptions about the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and the associated
assumptions are based on historical experience and other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ
fromtheseestimates.

The estimates and the underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period inwhich the estimate is revised and future periods affected.

Significant judgments and estimates relating fo the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities including carrying amount of
property, plant and equipment, provision for employee benefits, other provisions and contingencies are included in the
following notes:

Carrying amounts of property, plant and equipment Refernote 3

Provision foremployee benefits and otherprovisions: Refer note 17 and note 31
Contingentliabiliies: Refernote 33

Revenuerecognition

Revenue is recognised to the extent that itis probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and the revenue can
be reliably measured, regardless of when the payment is being made. Revenue is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable net of discounts, taking into account contractually defined terms and excluding taxes or
duties collected onbehalf of the government.

Sale of goods

Revenue from sale of goods is recognised when the significant risks and rewards of ownership have been transferred to the
buyer. Norevenue is recognised if there are significant uncertainties regarding recovery of the amount due, associated costs or
the possible returnof goods.

Sale of services

Income from services are accounted over the period of rendering of services.

Dividend and interestincome

Dividend income from investments is recognised whenthe right to receive payment has been established.

Interestincome from afinancial assetis recognised when itis probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and
the amount of income can be measured reliably. Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal
outstanding and at the effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
through the expected life of the financial asset to that asset's net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Leases

The Company determines whether an arangement contains a lease by assessing whether the fulfillment of a transaction is
dependent on the use of a specific asset and whether the transaction conveys the right to use that asset to the Company in
return for payment. Where this occurs, the arrangementis deemed foinclude a lease and is accounted for either as finance or
operatinglease.

Leases are classified as finance leases where the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownershipto the lessee. All other leases are classified as operatingleases.

TheCompany as lessee
Operating lease

Rentals payable under operatingleases are charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss ona straight line basis over the term of
the relevant lease unless another systematic basis is more representative of the time pattern in which economic benefits from
the leased asset are consumed. Contingent rentals arising under cperating leases are recognised as an expense in the
reporting period in which they areincurred.

In the eventthat lease incentives are received to enter into operating leases, such incentives are recognised as a liability. The
aggregate benefit of incentives is recognised as a reduction of rental expense on a straight line basis, except where ancther
systematic basis is more representative of the time patternin which economic benefits from the leased asset are consumed.
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Finance lease

Finance leases are capitalised at the commencement of lease, at the lower of the fair value of the property or the present value
of the minimum lease payments. The corresponding liability to the lessor is included in the balance sheet as a finance lease
obligation. Lease payments are apportioned between finance charges and reduction of the lease obligation so as to achieve a
constant rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability. Finance charges are charged directly against income over the
period of the lease.

The Company as lessor

Operating lease

Rental income from operating leases is generally recognised ona straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease. Where
the rentals are structured solely to increase in line with expected general inflation to compensate for the Company's expected
inflationary costincreases, such increases are recognisedin the yearin which such benefits accrue. Initial direct costs incurred

in negetiating and arranging an operating lease are added to the camrying amount of the leased asset and recognised on a
straight-line basis over the lease term.

Finance lease

Amounts due from lessees under finance leases are recognised as receivables atthe amount of the Company's net investment
in the leases. Finance lease income is allocated to accounting periods so as to reflect a constant periedic rate of return on the
Company's netinvestment outstanding inrespect ofthe leases.

Foreign currency transactions and translation

In preparing the financial statements of the Company, fransactions in currencies other than the enfity's functional currency
(foreign currencies) are recognised at the rates of exchange prevailing at the dates of the transactions. At the end of each
reporting period, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at the end of the
reporting period. Non-moenetary items carried at fair value that are denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the
rates prevailing on the date when the fair value was determined. Mon-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical
costin aforeign currency are not translated.

Exchange differences arising on translation of long term foreign currency monetary items recognised in the financial
statements before the beginning of the first ind AS 21 “The Effect of Change in Foreign Exchange Rate” financial reporting
pericd are recognised directly in equity or added/deducted from the cost of assets as the case may be.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items, and on retranslation of monetary items are included in the
Statement of Profit and Loss for the reporting period. Exchange differences arising on retranslation on non-monetary items
carried at fair value are included in Statement of Profit and Loss forthe period except for differences arising on the retranslation
of non-monetary items in respect of which gains and losses are recognised directly in other comprehensiveincome.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly atfributable to the acquisition, construction or preduction of qualifying assets, which are assets that
necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for theirintended use or sale, are added to the cost of those assets,
until suchtime as the assets are substantially re ady for theirintended use orsale.

Interest income earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is
deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss inthe periodin which they are incurred.
Employee benefits
Shortterm employee benefits

Shortterm employee benefits are recognised as anexpense at the undiscounted amount inthe Statement of Profitand Loss of
the yearin which the related serviceis rendered.

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit plans are recognised as an expense when employees have rendered
service enfitling them tothe contributions.

For defined benefit retirement benefit plans, the cost of providing benefits is determined using the projected unit credit method,
with actuarial valuations being carried out at the end of each annual reporting period. Remeasurement, comprising actuarial
gains and losses, the effect of the changes to the asset ceiling (if applicable) and the return on plan assets (excluding net
interest), is reflected immediately in the balance sheetwith a charge or creditrecognised in other comprehensiveincome in the
period in which they occur. Remeasurement recognised in other comprehensive income is reflected immediately in retained
earnings and is not reclassified to profit or loss. Past service cost is recognised in profit or loss in the period of a plan
amendment. Net interest is calculated by applying the discount rate at the beginning of the period to the net defined benefit
liability or asset. Defined benefit costs are categorised as follows:

service cost(including currentservice cost, past service cost, as well as gains and losses on curtailments and settlements);
netinterest expense orincome; and
remeasurement
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The Company presents the first two components of defined benefit costs in profit or loss in the line item 'Employee benefits
expense’. Curtailment gains and losses are accounted for as past service costs.

Short-term and other long-term employee benefits

Aliability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees in respect of wages and salaries, annual leave and sick leave in the
period the related service is rendered at the undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be paid in exchange for that
service.

Liabiliies recognised in respect of short-term employee benefits are measured at the undiscounted amount of the benefits
expected tobe paid inexchange for the related service.

Liabiliies recognised in respect of other long-term employee benefits are measured atthe present value of the estimated future
cash outflows expectedto be made by the Group inrespect of services provided by employees up tothe reporting date.

Taxation
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred tax.
Current tax

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from 'profit before tax' as reported in the
Statement of Profit and Loss because of items of income or expense that are taxable ordeductible inother years and iterns that
are never taxable or deductible.

The Company's current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the financial
statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all deductible temporary
differences to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which those deductible temporary
differences can be utilised. Such deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference arises from
the initial recognition (other than in a business combination) of assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the
taxable profitnor the accounting profit.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent thatitis no
longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the assettobe recovered.

Deferred tax liabiliies and assets are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is
settled or the asset realised, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of
thereporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in
which the Company expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover or settle the camrying amount of its assets and
liabilities.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when they relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority and the
relevant entity intends to settle its current tax assets and liabilities on a net basis.

Deferred tax assets include Minimum Alternative Tax (MAT) paid in accordance with the tax laws in India, which is likely to give
future economic benefits in the form of availability of set off against future income tax liability. Accordingly, MAT is recognised as
deferred tax asset in the balance sheet when the asset can be measured reliably and it is probable that the future econemic
benefitassociated with the asset will berealised.

Current and deferred tax for the year

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss, except when they relate to items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case, the current and deferred tax are also recognised in other
comprehensive income ordirectly in equity respectively.

Property plantand equipment

An item of property, plant and equipment is recognised as anassetiifitis probablethat future economic benefits associated with
the item will flow to the Company and its cost can be measured reliably. This recognition principle is applied to the costs
incurred initially to acquire an item of property, plant and equipment and also to costs incurred subsequently to add to, replace
part of, or service it. All other repairand maintenance costs, includingregular servicing, arerecognised inthe statement of profit
and loss as incurred. When a replacement occurs, the camryingamount of the replaced partis de-recognised. Where atangible
fixed asset comprises majorcomponents having different useful lives, these components are accounted for as separateitems.

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost, less accumulated depreciation and impairment. Costincludes all direct costs
and expenditures incurred to bring the asset to its working condition and locationforits intended use. Trial run expenses (net of
revenue) are capitalised. Borrowing costs duringthe period of construction is added tothe cost of eligible tangible assets.

61



TAYO ROLLS thYo

Fiftieth annual report 2017-18 A9,,%

2.12

213

2.14

An itemn of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to
arise from the continued use of the asset Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of property, plantand
equipmentis determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised
in profitor loss.

The gain or loss arising on disposal of an asset is determined as the difference between the sale proceeds and the camrying
amount of the asset, andis recognised inthe Statement of Profitand Loss.

Intangible assets
Intangible assets acquired separately

Computer software and Technical knowhow fee costs are included in the balance sheet as intangible assets where they are
clearly linked to long term economic benefits for the Company. In this case they are measured initially at purchase cost and
then amortised on a straight-line basis over theirestimated useful lives. All other costs on patents, trademarks and software are
expensedin the Statement of Profitand Loss asincurred.

Anintangible assetis derecognised on disposal, or when no future economic benefits are expected fromuse ordisposal. Gains
or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset, measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and
the carrying amount of the asset are recognisedin profit or loss when the assetis derecognised.

Depreciation and amortisation of property, plantand equipment and intangible assets

Depreciationor amortisation is provided so as to write off, on a straight-line basis, the cost of property, plant and equipment and
otherintangible assets, including those held under finance leases to their residual value. These charges are commenced from
the dates the assets are available for their intended use and are spread over their estimated useful economic lives or, in the
case of leased assets, over the lease period if shorter. The estimated useful lives of assets and residual values are reviewed
regularly and, when necessary, revised. Nofurthercharge is provided in respect of assets that are fully written down but are still
in use.

Depreciation onassets underconstruction commences only whenthe assets areready for theirintendeduse.

Depreciation is provided on a straight line method as per the useful life prescribed in Schedule |l to the Companies Act, 2013
except inrespect of Plant and machinery where the useful life of the assets has been assessed as under based on technical
evaluation by a Chartered Engineer taking into account the nature of asset, the estimated usage of the asset, the operating
conditions of the asset, past history of replacement, anticipated technological changes, manufacturers warranties and
maintenance support, etc.

Useful life of plant and machinery is considered to be 15-20 years.
Intangible assets are amortised overtheir estimated useful life of five years on straight line method.

The estimated useful life of the intangible assets and amortization period are reviewed at the end of each financial year and the
ameortisation periodis revised to reflect the changed pattemn, if any.

Impairmentof tangible and intangible assets

At the end of each reporting pericd, the Company reviews the carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets to
determine whether there is any indication thatthose assets have suffered animpairment loss. If any such indication exists, the
recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss (if any). When itis not
possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the Company estimates the recoverable amount of the
cash generating unit to which the asset belongs. When a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be identified,
corporate assets are also allocated to individual cash-generating units, or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest
Company of cash-generating units for which a reasonable and consistent allocation basis canbe identified.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives and intangible assets not yet available for use are tested for impairment at least
annually, andwheneverthere is an indication that the asset may be impaired.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of disposal and value inuse. In assessing value in use, the estimated
future cash flows are discounted totheir present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of
the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset for which the estimates of future cash flows have notbeenadjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or cash-generating unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carmrying
amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised
immediatelyin profitor loss.

When an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset {or a cash-generating unit) is increased to
the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount
that would have been determined had no impaiment loss been recognised for the asset (or cash-generating unit) in prior
years_Areversal of animpairment lossis recognised immediately in profitor loss.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost of inventories are determined on “weighted average”
basis. Costs comprise direct materials and, where applicable, direct labour costs and those overheads that have been incurred
in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition. Net realisable value is the price at which the inventeories can

62



TAYO ROLLS thYo

Fiftieth annual report 2017-18 A9,,%

216

217

be realised in the normal course of business after allowing for the cost of conversion from their existing state to a finished
condition and for the cost of marketing, selling and distribution.

Stores and spare parts are carried atlowerof cost and netrealisable value.
Provisions

Provisions are recognised inthe balance sheetwhen the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive ) as a result of
a past event, which is expected to result in an oufflow of resources embodying economic benefits which can be reliably
estimated. Each provision is based on the best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present obligation at the
balance sheetdate. Whenappropriate, provisions are measured on a discounted basis.

Constructive obligationis anobligation that derives from an entity's actions where:

by anestablished pattern of past practice, published policies or a sufficiently specific current statement, the entity has indicated
to other parties that it will accept certain responsibilities and

As a result the entity has created a valid expectation on the part of those other parties that it will discharge those
responsibilities.
When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle a provision are expected to be recovered from a third party, a

receivable is recognised as an assetifitis virtually certain that reimbursement will be received and the amount of the receivable
canbe measured reliably.

Warranties

Provisions for the expected cost of warranty obligations under local sale of goods legislation are recognised at the date of sale
of the relevantproducts, at the Company's best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the obligation.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when a Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instruments.

Financial assets and financial liabiliies are initially measured atfair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss) are added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or financialliabilities, as appropriate,
on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair
value through profit orloss are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Financial assets

All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular way
purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within the time frame established
by regulation or convention inthe marketplace.

Allrecognised financial assets are subsequently measured in their entirety at either amortised costor fair value, depending on
theclassificationofthefinancial assets.

Effective interest method

The effective interest methed is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a debt instrument and of allocating interest
income over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
{including all fees and points paid or received that form an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other
premiums or discounts ) through the expected life of the debtinstrument, or, where appropriate, a shorter peried, to the gross
carryingamount on initial recognition.

Income is recegnised on an effective interest basis for debt instruments other than those financial assets classified as at
FVTPL. Interestincome is recognisedin profitor loss andis included in the "Other income” line item.

Financial assets at fair value through othercomprehensive income (FWVTOCI)

Afinancial asset is subsequently measured at fair value through other comprehensive income if it is held within a business
model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets and the contractual
terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the
principal amount outstanding.

The Company has made anirrevocable election for its investments which are classified as equity instruments to present the
subsequent changes in fair value in other comprehensive income based on its business medel. Further, in cases where the
Company has made an irevocable election based on its business model, for its investments which are classified as equity
instruments, the subsequent changes in fairvalue are recognisedin other comprehensive income.

Financial assets atfair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

Investments in equity instruments are classified as at FVTPL, unless the Company irrevocably elects on initial recognition to
present subsequent changes in fair value in other comprehensive income for investments in equity instruments which are not
held for trading.
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Debt instruments that do not meet the amortised cost criteria or FVTOCI criteria (see above) are measured at FVTPL. In
addition, debt instruments that meet the amortised cost criteria or the FWVTOCI criteria but are designated as at FVTPL are
measured at FVTPL.

Afinancial asset that meets the amortised cost criteria ordebtinstruments that meet the FVTOCI criteriamay be designated as
at FVTPL upon initial recognition if such designation eliminates or significantly reduces a measurement or recognition
inconsistency that would arise from measuring assets or liabilities or recognising the gains and losses on them on different
bases. The Company has notdesignated any debtinstrument as at FWVTPL.

Financial assets at F\VTPL are measured at fair value at the end of each reporting period, with any gains or losses arising on
remeasurement recognised in profit or loss. The net gain or loss recognised in profit or loss incorporates any dividend or
interest eamed on the financial assetand is included in the 'Other income' line item. Dividend on financial assets at FVTPL is
recognised when the Company's right to receive the dividends is established, it is probable that the economic benefits
associated with the dividend will flow to the entity, the dividend does not represent a recovery of part of cost of the investment
and the amount ofdividend can be measured reliably.

Impairmentof financial assets

The Company applies the expected credit loss model for recognising impairment loss on financial assets measured at
amertised cost, debtinstruments at FVTOCI, lease receivables, trade receivables, other confractual rights to receive cash or
other financial asset, and financial guarantees not designated as at FWVTPL.

Expected credit losses are the weighted average of credit losses with the respective risks of default occurring as the weights.
Credit loss is the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due tothe Company in accordance withthe contractand
allthe cash flows that the Company expects to receive (i.e. all cash shortfalls), discounted atthe original effective interestrate
{or credit-adjusted effective interest rate for purchased or originated credit-impaired financial assets). The Company estimates
cash flows by considering all contractual terms of the financial instrument (for example, prepayment, extension, call and similar
options ) through the expected|ife of thatfinancial instrument.

The Company measures the loss allowance for a financial instrument at an amount equal to the lifetime expected credit losses
if the credit risk on that financial instrument has increased significantly since initial recognition. If the credit risk on a financial
instrument has notincreased significantly since initial recognition, the Company measures the loss allowance for that financial
instrument at an amount equal to 12-month expected credit losses. 12-month expected creditlosses are portion of the life-time
expected credit losses and represent the lifetime cash shortfalls that will result if default occurs within the 12 months after the
reporting date and thus, are not cashshortfalls thatare predicted overthe next 12months.

Ifthe Company measured loss allowance for a financial instrument at lifetime expected credit loss model in the previous period,
but determines at the end of a reporting period that the credit risk has not increased significantly since initial recognition due to
improvement in credit quality as compared to the previous peried, the Company again measures the loss allowance based on
12-month expected credit losses.

When making the assessment of whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, the
Company uses the change in the risk of a default occurring over the expected life of the financial instrument instead of the
change in the amount of expected credit losses. To make that assessment, the Company compares the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at the reporting date with the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument as at
the date of initial recognition and considers reasonable and supportable information, that is available without undue cost or
effort, thatisindicative of significantincreases in creditrisk since initial recognition.

For trade receivables or any contractual right to receive cash or another financial asset that result from transactions that are
within the scope of Ind AS 11 and Ind AS 18, the Company always measures the loss allowance atan amount equal fo lifetime
expected creditlosses.

Further, for the purpose of measuring lifetime expected credit loss allowance for trade receivables, the Company has used a
practical expedient as permitted under Ind AS 109 taking into account historical credit loss experience and adjustment for
forward-lookinginformation.

Theimpairment requirernents for the recognition and measurement of a loss allowance are equally applied to debtinstrurnents
at FVTOCI except that the loss allowance is recognised in other comprehensive income and is not reduced from the camying
amountinthe balance sheet.

Derecognition of financial assets

The Company derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights fo the cash flows from the asset expire, or when it
transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another party. If the
Company neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and continues to control the
transferred asset, the Company recognises its retained interestin the asset and an associated liability for amounts it may have
to pay. If the Company retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Company
continues to recognise the financial assetand also recognises acollateralised borrowing for the proceeds received.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference between the asset's carrying amount and the sum of the
censideration received and receivable and the cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in equity is recognised in profit or loss if such gain or loss would have otherwise been recognised in
profitor loss on disposal ofthat financial asset.

64



TAYO ROLLS thYo

Fiftieth annual report 2017-18 A9,,%

2.18

On derecognition of a financial asset other than in its entirety (e.g. when the Company retains an option to repurchase partof a
transferred asset), the Company allocates the previous carrying amount of the financial asset between the partit continues to
recognise under continuing involvement, and the part it no longer recognises on the basis of the relative fair values of those
parts on the date of the transfer. The difference between the carrying amount allocated to the part that is no longer recognised
and the sum of the consideration received for the part no longer recognised and any cumulative gain or loss allocated to it that
had been recognised in other comprehensive income is recognised in profit or loss if such gain or loss would have otherwise
been recognised in profit or loss on disposal of that financial asset. Acumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in other
comprehensive income is allocated between the part that continues to be recognised and the partthatis no longer recognised
onthe basis of the relative fairvalues of those parts.

Foreignexchange gains or losses

The fair value of financial assets denominated in a foreign currency is determined in that foreign currency and translated at the
spotrate at the end of each reporting peried.

For foreign currency denominated financial assets measured at amortised cost and FVTPL, the exchange differences are
recognised in profit orloss except forthose which are designated as hedging instruments ina hedging relationship.

Changes in the carrying amount of investments in equity instruments at FWVTOCI relating to changes in foreign currency rates
are recognised in othercomprehensive income.

For the purposes of recognising foreign exchange gains and losses, FYTOCI debt instruments are treated as financial assets
measured at amortised cost. Thus, the exchange differences on the amortised cost are recognised in profit or loss and other
changes inthe fair value of FWVTOCI financial assets are recognised in othercomprehensive income.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
Classification as debt orequity

Debtand equity instruments issued by a Company entity are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity in accordance
with the substance of the contractual arrangements and the definitions of afinancial liability and an equity instrument.

Equity Instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its
liabilities. Equity instruments issued by a Company enfity are recognised at the proceeds received, net of directissue costs.

Repurchase of the Company's own equity instruments is recognised and deducted directly in equity. No gain or loss is
recognised inprofit orloss onthe purchase, sale, issue or cancellation ofthe Company's own equity instruments.

Financial liabilities
Allfinancial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method or at FWVTPL.
Financial liabilities subsequently measured at amortised cost

Financial liabilities that are not held-for-trading and are not designated as at F\VTPL are measured at amortised cost at the end
of subsequent accounting perieds. The carrying amounts of financial liabilities that are subsequently measured at amortised
costare determined based on the effective interest method. Interest expense that is not capitalised as part of costs of an asset
is included in the 'Finance costs'lineitern.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest
expense over the relevant period. The effective interestrate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments
{including all fees and points paid or received that form an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other
premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the financial liability or (where appropriate) a shorter peried, to the gross
carrying amounton initial recognition.

Foreignexchange gains and losses

For financial liabilities that are denominated in a foreign currency and are measured at amortised cost at the end of each
reporting period, the foreign exchange gains and losses are determined based on the amortised cost of the instruments and
are recognised in 'Other income’.

The fair value of financial liabilities denominated in a foreign currency is determined in that foreign currency and translated at
the spot rate at the end of the reporting period. For financial liabilities that are measured as at FWTPL, the foreign exchange
component forms part of the fair value gains orlosses and is recognised in profit or loss.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Company derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when, the Company's cbligations are discharged, cancelled or
have expired. An exchange between with a lender of debtinstruments with substantially different ferms is accounted for as an
extinguishment of the original financial liability and the recognition of a new financial liability. Similarly, a substantial
modification of the terms of an existing financial liability (whether or not attributable to the financial difficulty of the debtor) is
accounted for as anextinguishment of the original financial liability and the recognition of a new financial liability. The difference
between the carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid and payable is recognised in
profitor loss.
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2.20

2.2

2.22

2.23

Cashand cash equivalents

The Company considers all highly liquid financial instruments, which are readily convertible into known amounts of cash that
are subject to an insignificant risk of change in value and having original maturities of three months or less from the date of
purchase, to be cash equivalents. Cash and cash equivalents consist of balances with banks which are unrestricted for
withdrawal and usage.

Cash flow statement

Cash flows arereported using the indirect method, where by profit before tax is adjusted for the effects of transactions of anon-
cash nature, any deferrals or accruals of past or future operating cash receipts or payments and item of income or expenses
associated with investing or financing cash flows. The cash flows from operating, investing and financing activities of the
Company are segregated.

Earnings per equity share

Basic eamings per equity share is computed by dividing the net profit attributable to the equity holders of the Company by the
weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period. Diluted earmnings per equity share is computed by
dividing the net profit attributable to the equity holders of the Company by the weighted average number of equity shares
considered for deriving basic eamings per equity share and also the weighted average number of equity shares that could have
been issued upon conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares. The dilutive potential equity shares are adjusted for the
proceeds receivable had the equity shares been actually issued at fair value (i.e. the average market value of the outstanding
equity shares). Dilutive potential equity shares are deemed converted as of the beginning of the period, unless issued at a later
date. Dilutive potential equity shares are determined independently foreach period presented.

The number of equity shares and potentially dilutive equity shares are adjusted retrospectively for all periods presented for any
share splits and bonus shares issues including for changes effected prior to the approval of the financial statements by the
Board of Directors.

Operating cycle

Based on the nature of products [ activities of the Company and the normal time between acquisition of assets and their
realisation in cash or cash equivalents, the Company has determined its operating cycle as 12 months for the purpose of
classification of its assets and liabilities as current and non-current.

Segment Reporting

The Company identifies primary segments based on the dominant source, nature of risks and retumns, intemnal organisation,
management structure and the internal performance reporting systems. The accounting policies adopted for the segment
reporting are inline with the accounting policies of the Company.
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4.

Other intangible assets

Carrying amounts of :
Computer software
Technical knowhow fee

Total

Cost or deemed cost
As at 31.03.2018

Balance as at 01.04.2017
Additions
Disposals/Adjustments
Balance as at 31.03.2018

Accumulated amortisation
Balance as at 01.04.2017
Charge for the year
Disposals/Adjustments
Balance as at 31.03.2018

Carrying amounts as at 31.03.2018

As at 31.03.2017

Balance as at 01.04.2016
Additions
Disposals/Adjustments
Balance as at 31.03.2017

Accumulated depreciation

Balance as at 01.04.2016

Charge for the year
Disposals/Adjustments

Balance as at 31.03.2017

Carrying amounts as at 31.03.2017

As at 31.03.2018

As at 01.04.2017

Rupees in lakhs

Rupees in lakhs
0.49

0.49

Rupees in lakhs

Computer Technical Total
software knowhow fee intangible assets
4.13 180.01 184.14

4.13 180.01 184.14

3.64 180.01 183.65

0.49 - 0.49

4.13 180.01 184.14
Rupees in lakhs

Computer Technical Total
software know-how fee intangible assets
4.13 180.01 184.14

4.13 180.01 184.14
2.98 17922 182.20

0.66 0.79 1.45

3.64 180.01 183.65
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5 Investments
As at As at
31.03.2018 31.03.2017
Qty. Amount Qty. Amount
Rupees in Rupees in
lakhs lakhs

Non-current
Other investments
| Unquoted Investments
{(a) Investments in equity instruments at FVTOCI
(i) Adityapur Toll Bridge Company Limited

(Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each) [net of
impairment of Rs. 0.50 lakhs
{as at 31.03.2017 : Rs. 0.50 lakhs)]

{ii) Nicco Jubilee Park Limited (Equity shares

of Rs. 10 each) [net of impairment of
Rs. 3.00 lakhs (as at 31.03.2017 :
Rs. 3.00 lakhs)]

{iii) Tata Construction & Projects Limited

(Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each) [net of
impairment of Rs. 3.88 lakhs (as at 31.3.2017
: Rs. 3.88 lakhs)]

(b) Investments in debentures or bonds

(i) Tata Construction & Projects Limited

(i

—

{10% Secured Non-Ceonvertible Debentures of
Rs. 100 each) [net of impairment of

Rs. 3.00 lakhs (as at 31.03.2017 :

Rs. 3.00 lakhs)]

Government securities-Lodged as security
depaosit with parties

Total aggregate unquoted investments

5,000 -

0.09

0.09

Aggregate carmying value of unquoted investments 0.09

Aggregate amount of impairment in the value
of investments

Category-wise other investments-as per
Ind AS 109 classification

Financial assets carried at amortised cost

Government securities-Lodged as security
deposit with parties

Aggregate value of other investments

10.38

As at
31.03.2018
Amount
Rupees in
lakhs

0.09

0.09

5,000 -

0.09

0.09
0.09
10.38

As at
31.032017
Amount
Rupees in
lakhs

0.09

0.09
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6 Other financial assets
As at As at
31.03.2018 31.03.2017
Rupees in Rupees in
Lakhs Lakhs
Non-current
Security deposits 6.40 6.40
Deposits with Bank 85.00 -
Eammarked deposits with bank {Refer note (i)} 53.1 -
Total 144.51 6.40
Current
Interest accrued on deposits and advances T76.47 70.25
Total T 7647 T 7035
Note:
(i) Earmarked deposits with bank represents margin money against issue of bank guarantees
7 Other assets
As at As at
31.03.2018 31.03.2017
Rupees in Rupees in
Lakhs Lakhs
Non-current
Capital advances - 8.31
Advance with public bodies 185.97 185.97
Prepaid lease payment {net) 4.69 475
190.66 199.03
Current
Advance with public bodies 13747 99.03
Other advances 9.66 19.58
Total 146.83 118.61

Prepaid lease payment of Rs. 1.75 lakhs (as at 31.03.2017: Rs. 1.75 lakhs) incurred for settling right on leased assets for
which documents are yet to be executed. The Company has applied to the Bihar Government for exemption of this land from

the Urban Land (Ceiling and Regulation) Act, 1976. The decision of the Government is still awaited.

8 Tax assets and liabilities

Non-current tax assets
Advance payment against taxes

[Net of provision of Rs. 737.04 lakhs (as at 31.03.2017 :
Rs. 737.04 lakhs)]

Current tax liabilities

Provision for current tax

"[Met of advance tax of Rs. 576.73 lakhs (as at 31.03.2017 :
Rs. 576.73 lakhs)]"

70

As at

31.03.2018

Rupees in
Lakhs

42713
42713

As at

31.03.2018

Rupees in
Lakhs

123.08

123.08

As at
31.03.2017
Rupees in
Lakhs

49069
49069

As at
31.03.2017
Rupees in
Lakhs

123.08
123.08
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9 Inventories
(lower of cost and net realisable value)
As at As at
31.03.2018 31.03.2017
Rupees in Rupees in
lakhs lakhs
Raw materials 763.80 763.80
Semi-finished goods -
Finished goods - 7.37
Stores and spares 0.02 0.02
763.82 77119
The cost of inventories recognised as an expense during the year was Rs. nil (for the year ended 31 March, 2017: Rs. 899.48
lakhs). (Refernote 23)
The cost of inventories recognised as an expense includes Rs. nil (for the years ended 31 March, 2017 : Rs. 996.83 lakhs) in
respect of write-downs of inventory to net realisable value duringthe year.
The mode of valuation of inventories have been stated in note 2.15
10 Trade receivables As at As at
31.03.2018 31.03.2017
Rupees in Rupees in
lakhs lakhs
Trade receivables unsecured
(a) Considered good 73.53 113.87
(b) Doubtful 109.87 521.41
"Allowance for doubtful debts {(expected credit loss allowance)" (109.87) (521.41)
73.53 113.87
10.1Trade receivables
The average credit period on sale of goods is 30 days. No interest is charged on the outstanding balances.
Age of receivables : As at As at
Rupees in Rupees in
lakhs lakhs
Within the credit period - 385
1-30 days past due - 54 24
31-60 days past due - 9140
61-90 days past due - 4959
More than 90 days past due 183.40 43620
183.40 63528

Of the trade receivable balances as at the reporting period, balances representing significant outstanding balances of the

Company which represents more than 5% of the total balance of the trade receivable are as follows:

Top five customers As at
31.03.2018

Rupees in

lakhs

Customer A 55.24
Customer B 2561
Customer C 2417
Customer D 20.09
Customer E 18.28
143.39

71

As at

31.03.2017

Rupees in
lakhs

11813
71.80

189.93
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Movement in the expected credit loss allowance
As at As at
31.03.2018 31.03.2017
Rupees in Rupees in
lakhs lakhs
Balance at beginning of the year 521.41 177 26
Movement in expected credit loss allowance on trade receivables
calculated at lifetime expected credit losses (411.54) 344.15
Balance at end of the year 109.87 521 .41

1

12

The Company assesses at each date of balance sheetwhether a financial asset or a group of financial assets is impaired. Ind AS
109 "Financial instruments” requires expected credit losses to be measured through a loss allowance. The Company recognises

lifetime expected credit losses for all trade receivablesthat do not constitute a financing transaction.

The Company has estimated the liability for the provision for doubtful debts of Rs. 109.87 lakhs as at 31.03.2018 (as at
31.03.2017 : Rs. 521.41 lakhs) for performance of the products (mainly rolls) based on past experience and amounts not likely fo

bereceived dueto suspensionof operations.

There were no outstanding debts due from directors or other officers of the Company.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash on hand
Cheques, draft on hand
Balances with banks

a) In current accounts
b) In deposit accounts

Cash and cash equivalents as per Statement of cash flows

Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents

(i In current account
(ii) In deposit account

Note:

(iy Earmarked balances represents balances held for unpaid dividends in current account.
(i) Earmarked balance represents margin money against issue of bank guarantees in deposit accounts.

72

As at

31.03.2018

Rupees in
lakhs

0.20

208.80
40.00

249.00

As at

31.03.2018

Rupees in
lakhs

047
54593

546.40

As at
31.03.2017
Rupees in
lakhs

025

77878

779.03

As at
31.03.2017
Rupees in
lakhs

047

047
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13 Equity share capital
As at As at
31.03.2018 31.03.2017
Rupees in Rupees in
Lakhs Lakhs
Equity share capital 1,026.13 1,026.13
1,026.13 1,026.13
Authorised share capital
15,000,000 fully paid equity shares of Rs. 10 each 1,500.00 1,500.00
Issued and subscribed capital
10,260,935 fully paid equity shares of Rs. 10 each 1,026.13 1.026.13
(as at 31 March, 2017: 10,260,935}
— 1,026.13 _ 102613
Fully paid equity shares
Numbers Rupees
in lakhs
Balance as at 1 April, 2016 10,260,935 1,026.13
lssued during the year -
Balance as at 31 March, 2017 10,260,935 1,026.13
lssued during the year -
Balance as at 31 March, 2018 10,260,935 1,026.13
Equity shares :

Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to shares :

The Company has one class of equity shares having a par value of Rs. 10 per share. Each shareholder is eligible for one vote per
share held. The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the approval of the shareholders in the ensuing Annual
General Meeting. In the event of liquidation, the equity shareholders are eligible to receive the remaining assets of the Company

afterdistribution of all preferential amounts, in proportion to theirshareholding.
Details of share held by the holding company

No. of fully paid
ordinary shares

As at 31.03.2018

Tata Steel Limited, the holding company 5,587,372
As at 31.03.2017
Tata Steel Limited, the holding company 5.587.372

Details of shares held by each shareholder holding more than 5%

As at As at
31.03.2018 31.03.2017
Numbers % holding Numbers % holding

Fully paid equity shares
Tata Steel Limited 5,587,372 54.45% 5587 372 54.45%
‘Yodogawa Steel Works Limited 1,536,704 14.98% 1,536,704 14.98%

T3
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14 Other equity
As at As at
31.03.2018 31.03.2017
Rupees in Rupees in
Lakhs Lakhs
Retained earnings (51,399.45) (48,797 91)
Securities premium reserve 5.541.96 5.541.96
Other comprehensive income {35.90)
(45,857 .49) (43,291 85)
141 Retained earnings
As at As at
31.03.2018 31.03.2017
Rupees in Rupees in
Lakhs Lakhs
Balance at the beginning of the year (48,797.91) (40,503.03)
Other comprehensive income (35.90) -
Loss for the year (2,565.64) (8,294 88)
Balance at the end of the year (51,399.45) (48,797 91)
14.2 Securities premium reserve
As at As at
31.03.2018 31.03.2017
Rupees in Rupees in
Lakhs Lakhs
Balance at the beginning of the year 5,541.96 5,541.96
Share issued during the year - -
Balance at the end of the year 5.541.96 5.541.96
14.3  Other items of other comprehensive income
As at As at
31.03.2018 31.03.2017
Rupees in Rupees in
Lakhs Lakhs
Balance at the beginning of the year (35.90) (38.06)
Profit on sale of equity instruments designated at 2.16
fair value through OCI
Transferred to retained eamings 35.90 -
Balance at the end of the year (35.90)
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15 Non-current borrowings
As at As at
31.03.2018 31.03.2017
Rupees in Rupees in
Lakhs Lakhs
Unsecured - at amortised cost
(i) Otherloans
Mon-cumulative redeemable preference shares 35,814.42 27,984.10
{Refer note (i) below) - -
35,814.42 27.984.10

(i)

(i)

Summary of borrowings arrangements

Non-cumulative redeemable preference shares

25,100,000 Non-cumulative redeemable preference shares of Rs. 100 each are entitled fo a fixed rate of dividend at the
rate of 8.50% p.a., 64 00,000 Non-cumulative redeemable preference shares of Rs. 100 each are entitled to a fixed rate of
dividend at the rate of 7.17% p.a. and 43,30,000 Mon-cumulative redeemable preference shares of Rs. 100 each are
entitled to a fixed rate of dividend atthe rate of 7.00% p.a. The issuer shall redeem the preference shares at face value in

three equal instalments at the beginning of eighth, ninth and tenth year from the due date of allotment.

Unamortised preference share issue expenses adjusted forthe year ended 31.03 2018 Rs. 15.58 lakhs (as at 31.03.2017:

Rs. 20.90lakhs)

The terms of repayment of other loans are stated below

As at 31.03.2018

Preference shares issued are redeemable on the following dates

Year of redemption

2019-20
2020-21
2021-22
2022-23
2023-24
2024-25
2025-26
2026-27

Less: Impact of recognition of borrowing at amertised cost using effective

interest method under Ind AS

As at 31.03.2017

Preference shares issued are redeemable on the following dates

‘Year of redemption

2019-20
2020-21
2021-22
2022-23
2023-24
2024-25
2025-26
2026-27

Less: Impact of recognition of borrowing at amortised cost using

effective interest method under Ind AS

75

Amount

Rupees

in lakhs
2.833.33
2,833.33
5,733.34
5,000.00
5,633.33
6,210.00
4,110.00
3.676.67
35,830.00

(15.58)

35.814.42

Amount

Rupees

in lakhs
2,833.33
2,833.33
5,733.34
5,000.00
5,533.33
3,601.67
1,501.67

968.33

28,005.00
(20.90)

27.984.10
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16 Current borrowings

As at As at
31.03.2018 31.03.2017
Rupees in Rupees in
Lakhs Lakhs
Unsecured - at amortised cost
a) Loans from related parties (Refer note (i) below) 6,700.00 6,000.00
Secured - at amortised cost
a) Loans repayable on demand from banks
(Refer note (ii) below)
i) Bank of India - 3,584.93
ii) IDBI Bank Ltd - 2,668.33
Total 6,700.00 12,253.26

Notes :

(i) Amountsrepayable to related parties of the Company. Interest of 7.00% - 13.07% p.a.is charged on the outstanding loan
balances (asat 31.03.2017:7.00% - 13.07%pa.)

(i) Loans repayable on demand from bank includes cash credit faciliies with Bank of India and IDBI Bank. The cash credit
facilities were secured by hypothecation of all tangible movable assets of the Company including finished and semi
finished stocks, raw materials, stores and book debts ranking pari passu. In addition they were secured by way of second
charge on the immovable properties of the Company ranking pari passu. The cash credit facilities from Bank of india and
IDBI bank carry a floating interestrate of Bank Base Rate + 380 bps per annum and Bank Base Rate + 275 bps per annum

respectively.
17  Current provisions
As at As at
31.03.2018 31.03.2017
Rupees in Rupees in
Lakhs Lakhs
() Provision for employees benefits
(a) Post employment defined benefits
(i) Retiring gratuity 94.49 328.78
(ii) Post retirement medical benefits to employees 122.48 124.88
(b) Other benefits
(i} Leave benefit scheme 170.61 230.82
38758 __684.48
(c) Provision for employee separation compensation 940.24 1,186.81
(VSS) (Also refer note 36)
() Other provision - warranties {Refer note 17.1) 600.93 637.12
1.928.75 2.508.41
17.1 Other provisions for warranty As at As at
31.03.2018 31.03.2017
Rupees in Rupees in
Lakhs Lakhs
Balance at the beginning of the year 637.12 655.02
Additional provisions recognised - 85.45
Reductions arising from payments (36.19) (103.35)
Balance at the end of the year 600.93 637.12
Notes

(i) Provision for employee benefits include leave, early retirement and termination benefits provided by the Company as
per the V'S5 scheme announced by the Company during the yearand revised fromtimeto time.

(i) The provision for warranty claims incudes warranty given on sale of rolls. Provision for warranty is made based on

technical estimates and past experience of such costs. Actual claims may differ from estimates and the difference is

recognised in the year of occurrence.
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18 Trade payables
As at As at
31.03.2018 31.03.2017
Rupees in Rupees in
Lakhs Lakhs
Creditors for supplies and services
(@) Micro enterprises and small enterprises - -
(b) Others 1,423.82 1,919.82
Creditors for accrued wages and salaries 1,434.99 601.94
2,858.81 2,621.76
The average credit period for purchase of goods is one month. No interest is charged on trade payables on the outstanding
balance except for micro, small and medium enterprises as reported below.
Disclosure required under Section 22 of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 ('MSMED")
Amounts payable to MSMED suppliers as at year end are as under:
As at As at
31.03.2018 31.03.2017
Rupees in Rupees in
Lakhs Lakhs
a) Principal amount remaining unpaid to supplier as at the
end of the accounting year - -
b) Interest due thereon remaining unpaid to supplier as at
the end of the accounting year - -
c) The amount of interest paid/ settled in terms of Section 16,
along with the amount of payment made to the supplier beyond
the appointment day during the year. - 7.46
d) The amount of interest due and payable for the peried of delay in
making payment (which have been paid but beyond the appointed
day during the year) but without adding the interest specified
under this Act - -
e) The amount of interest accrued during the year and remaining
unpaid at the end of the accounting year - -
fy  The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the - -
succeeding years, until such date when the interest dues above are
actually paid to the small enterprise, for the purpose of disallowance
of a deductible expenditure under section 23 of the MSME
As at As at
31.03.2018 31.03.2017
Rupees in Rupees in
Lakhs Lakhs
19  Other financial liabilities
Current
a) Current maturities of long term debt - 395.45
(Refer note (i) below)
b) Interest accrued but not due (Refer note (i) below) 1,589.18 802.63
c) Unpaid dividends 017 0.17
d) Unclaimed dividends 0.20 0.30
e) Unpaid matured fixed deposits 0.1 0.13
f)  Creditors for capital supplies/services 75.81 178.34
1,665.57 1.477.02

Notes:

{iy Term Loans from IDBI Bank Limited was secured by first charge on the property, plant and equipment of the Company.
The borrowings carry a floating interestrates (Bank Base Rate BBR + 275 bps) with remaining quarterly repayment period
of one quarter. Unamortised processing fees of current maturities of long term loan amounting to Rs. nil (as at 31.03.2017:

Rs. 2.65 lakhs) was adjusted against balances.

(i) The interest has been accrued on outstanding from related parties for the year ended 31.03.2018, Rs. 6,700.00 lakhs

(asat31.03.2017 : Rs.6,000.00 lakhs) at various rates. (Refer note 16)
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20 Other current liabilities
As at As at
31.03.2018 31.03.2017
Rupees in Rupees in
Lakhs Lakhs
a) Advances received from customers 2,333.86 2.333.86
b} Statutory dues (Excise duty, service tax, sales tax,
GST, TDS, royalty etc.) 75.57 105.43
c) Others (includes provision for deferred liability for EPCG) 606.23 1,745.31
3.015.66 4.184.60
21 Revenue from operations
Year Ended Year Ended
31.03.2018 31.03.2017
Rupees in Rupees in
Lakhs Lakhs
{a) Sale of products (including excise duty of Rs. nil for the 7.19 2,851.08
year ended 31.03.2018; Rs. 443.28 lakhs for the
year ended 31.03.2017)
{b) Sale of services 738.51
{c) Other operating revenues
(i) Sale of miscellaneous goods 1.95 939.69
(i) Sundry income 25.69 34.48
34.83 4,663.76
22 Other income
Year Ended Year Ended
31.03.2018 31.03.2017
Rupees in Rupees in
Lakhs Lakhs
a) Interest income
Interest on deposits (at amortised cost) 15.15 22.26
Interest on income tax 29.12 -
b) Other gains and losses
Net foreign exchange gains 14.26 4.35
c) Other non-operating income
Liabilities no longer required written back - 575.46
Total 58.53 602.07
23 Cost of materials consumed
Year Ended Year Ended
31.03.2018 31.03.2017
Rupees in Rupees in
Lakhs Lakhs
(a) Opening stock 763.80 1,308.93
(b) Add: Purchase - 354.35
Sub-total 763.80 1,663.28
(c) Less: Closing stock 763.80 763.80
Total 899.48
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24 Changes in inventories of finished goods, stock in trade and work in progress

Year Ended Year Ended
31.03.2018 31.03.2017
Rupees in Rupees in
Lakhs Lakhs
Finished and semi-finished goods at beginning of the period 7.37 1,995.61
Finished and semi-finished goods at end of the period - 7.37
Changes in inventories 7.37 1,988.24
25 Employee benefits expense
Year Ended Year Ended
31.03.2018 31.03.2017
Rupees in Rupees in
Lakhs Lakhs
(a) Salaries and wages 1,177.68 1,880.62
(b} Employee separation compensation - 1.29
{c) Contribution to provident and other funds
i) Provident fund 90.67 91.90
i) Superannuation fund 0.22 53.46
iii) Gratuity 94.49 83.87
iv) Tayo Pension fund 0.64 12.76
(d) Staff welfare expenses 23.06 82.22
Total 1,386.76 2,206.12
26. Finance costs
Year Ended Year Ended
31.03.2018 31.03.2017
Rupees in Rupees in
Lakhs Lakhs
Interest costs
Interest on term loan - 124.23
Interest on bank loans (working capital) 187.31 841.32
Interest on loans from related parties 72171 704.90
Other borrowing costs T7.97 15.90
Total interest expenses for financial liabilities
not classified as FVTPL 916.99 1,686.35
27. Depreciation and amortisation expense
(i) Depreciation of property, plant and equipment (Refer note 3) 477.55 693.01
(i) Amortisation of intangible assets (Refer note 4) 0.49 1.45
478.04 694 .46
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28 Other expenses
Year Ended Year Ended
31.03.2018 31.03.2017
Rupees in Rupees in
Lakhs Lakhs
(1) Repairs to machinery 1.56 21.52
(2) Freight and handling charges 0.18 40.45
(3) Rent 0.70 3.40
(4) Royalty - 27.93
(5) Rates and taxes 6.80 15.79
(6) Insurance charges 4.79 19.00
(7) Allowance for doubtful debts and receivables (22.02) 344.15
(8) (Decrease)/increase in excise duty on inventory (37 67)
(9) Other expenses
(a) Product warranty charges 85.45
(b) Loss on salefwrite off of tangible assets 4.15 71.97
(c) Auditors remuneration and out-of-pocket expenses
(net of Service Tax / GST)"
(iy  Foraudit 2.00 9.00
(i)  For taxation matters 0.40 1.50
{iiy  For other services 0.10 0.50
(iv) For reimbursement of expenses 0.10
(d) Legal and other professional costs 80.16 154.03
(e) Advertisement, promotion and selling expenses - -
(fi  Travelling expenses 20.29 25.37
(g) Consultation fees 83.47 68.63
(h) Reolls machining charges - 80.05
(iy Other general expenses 281.76 1,106.21
Total 464.34 2,037.38

29 Segment information

29.1 Products and services from which reportable segments derive their revenues

Operating segments are defined as compoenents of an enterprises for which discrete financial information is available that is
evaluated regularly by the chief operating decision maker, in deciding how to allocate resources and assessing performance. The
Company's chief operating decision maker is the Board of Directors of the Company.

The Company has identified business segments (type of products) as reportable segments. The business segments

comprise:
a.
b.
C.
d.

Roll operation

Pig ircn operation

Ingot operation
Engg forgings operation
Revenue and expenses directly attributable to segments are reported under each reportable segment. Expenses which are not

directly identifiable to each reporting segment have been allocated on a reasonable basis. All other expenses which are not
attributable or allocable to segments have been disclosed as unallocable expenses.

Assets and liabilities that are directly attributable or allocable to segments are disclosed under each reportable segment. All other
assets and liabilties are disclosed as unallocable.
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29.2 Segment revenues and results
Summarised segment information for the years ended 31 March, 2018 and 31 March, 2017 is as follows:
Year ended Year ended
31.03.2018 31.03.2017
Rupees in Rupees in
Lakhs Lakhs
Segment revenue
Roll operation 62.29 2,816.56
Pig iron operation 1,492 .87
Ingot operation 35.20
Engg forgings operation - 354.13
Unallocated 31.07 602.07
93.36 5,300.83
Inter segment revenue - (35.00)
Total income 93.36 5,2656.83
Segment result [profit/(loss)]
Roll operation (1,208.64) (3,713.02)
Pig iron operation (484.02) (11.12)
Ingot operation (150.64) (265.20)
Engg forgings operation (279.61) (513.29)
Net loss for the period (before finance costs, (2,122.91) (4,50263)
tax and exceptional items)
Less: Finance costs 916.99 1,686.35
Less: Exceptional items (net) (605.02) 2,518.80
Less: Other unallocable expenditure (net off unallocable income) 130.75 (412.89)
Total profit/(loss) before tax (2,565.64) (8,294 88)
29.3 Segment assets and liabilities
Year ended Year ended
31.03.2018 31.03.2017
Rupees in Rupees in
Particulars Lakhs Lakhs
Segment assets
Roll operation 2,176.96 3,431.89
Pig iron operation 1,059.99 1,116.50
Ingot cperation 449.99 474.12
Engg forgings operation 934.97 984.59
Total segment assets 4,621.91 6,007.10
Unallocated assets 2,653.02 2.779.41
Total assets 7,274.93 8,786.51
Segment liabilities
Roll operation 5.749.89 5.528.68
Pig iron operation 1,401.97 1,345.61
Ingot cperation 53.11 39.81
Engg forgings operation 460.81 425.12
Total segment liabilities 7,665.78 7.339.22
Unallocated liabilities 44,440.51 43,713.01
Total liabilities 52,106.29 51,062.23
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29.4 Other segment information:
Depreciation and amortisation
Year ended Year ended
31.03.2018 31.03.2017
Rupees in Rupees in
Lakhs Lakhs
Roll operation 163.53 236.79
Pig iron operation 54.94 256.22
Ingot cperation 39.93 42 .67
Engg forgings operation T77.62 67.09
Unallocated 142.02 91.69
Total depreciation and amortisation 478.04 694.46
Additions to non-current assets
Year ended Year ended
31.03.2018 31.03.2017
Rupees in Rupees in
Lakhs Lakhs
Roll operation 0.65
Pig iron operation -
Ingot operation -
Engg forgings operation -
Unallocated -
0.65
Nen cash expenditure other than depreciation and amortisation
Roll operation 975.51
Pig iron operation 167.40
Ingot operation 39.M
Engg forgings operation 64.84
Unallocated 3.19
29.5 Revenue from major products and services
The following is an analysis of the Company's revenue from its
major products and services
Year ended Year ended
31.03.2018 31.03.2017
Rupees in Rupees in
Lakhs Lakhs
Roll operation 62.29 2,816.56
Pig ircn operation 1,492.87
Ingot operation 0.20
Engg forgings operations - 354.13
62.29 4,663.76
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29.6 Geographical information

The Company operates in two principal geocgraphical areas-India {country of domicile jand outside India (mainly Bangladesh).

Revenue from external customers

India
Outside India

Non-current assets
India
Outside India

29.7 Information about major customers

Year ended
31.03.2018
Rupees in

Lakhs

93.36

93.36

Year ended
31.03.2018
Rupees in

Lakhs

5,418.88

5,418.88

Year ended
31.03.2017
Rupees in
Lakhs

5,238.61
27.22
5,265.83

Year ended
31.03.2017
Rupees in
Lakhs

6,933.09

6,933.09

Details of revenue from transactions with a single custorner which are more than 7% or more of the Companies revenue

are asfollows:

Customer A

Roll operation

Pig iron operation

Engg forgings operations

Customer E
Roll operation

Customer F
Roll operation

Customer G
Roll operation

Customer H
Roll operation

Year ended
31.03.2018
Rupees in

Lakhs

25.68
25.68

18.84
18.84

7.19
7.19
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Year ended
31.03.2017
Rupees in
Lakhs

980.40
619.22
75.63
1,675.25

331.96
331.96
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30 Earnings per share
Basic/diluted eamings per share (A/B)
Year ended Year ended
31.03.2018 31.03.2017
Rs. per Rs. per
share share
(25.00) (80.84)

Basic/diluted earnings per share

The eamings and weighted average number of equity shares used in the calculation of basic earnings per share are as

follows:

A Eamings used in the calculation of basic/diluted eamings
per share (Rupees in lakhs)

B Weighted average number of equity shares for the purposes
of basic/diluted eamings per share

Mote: The Company did not have any potentially dilutive securities in any of the periods presented.

31  Employee benefit plan
31.1 Defined contribution plan

Year ended
31.03.2018
Rs. per
share

(2,565 .64)

10,260,935

Year ended
31.03.2017
Rs. per
share

(8,294 88)

10,260,935

The Company participates ina numberof defined contribution plans on behalf of relevant perscnnel. Any expense recognised in
relation to these schemes represents the value of contributions payable during the period by them at rates specified by the rules
of those plans. The only amounts included in the balance sheet are those relating tothe priormonth's contributions that were not

due to be paid until after the end of the reporting period.

The Company has recognised, in the Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31.03.2018, an amount of Rs. 91.53
lakhs (for the year ended 31.03.2017 Rs. 158.12 lakhs) as expenses under the following defined contribution plans

Provident fund
Superannuation fund

Employees pension scheme

Year ended

31.03.2018
Rupees in
Lakhs
90.67

0.22

0.64

91.53

Year ended
31.03 2017
Rupees in
Lakhs

91.90
53.46
12.76
158.12

As at 31 March, 2018, contribution of Rs. 14 .80 lakhs (as at 31 March, 2017 Rs. 1.46 lakhs) representing amount payable to the
Employee Provident Fund, Rs. 0.50 lakh (as at 31 March, 2017 Rs. 0.27 lakh) to superannuation fund and Rs. nil (as at 31
March, 2017 Rs. 0.43 lakh) to employees pension scheme in respect of the year ended 31 March 2018 and year ended 31

March, 2017) reporting period had not been paid to the plans.
31.2 Defined benefit plan:
The Company operates post retirement benefit plans as follows:
Funded
iy  Postretirement gratuity
Unfunded
iy  Post Retirement Medical Benefit (PRMB)

ii) Pension to Directors
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Funded defined benefit plans- Post retirement gratuity

The amount included in the Balance Sheet arising from the entity's obligation in respect of its post retirement gratuity plan

is as follows:
As at As at
31.03.2018 31.03.2017
Rupees in Rupees in
Lakhs Lakhs
Provision for funded defined benefit cbligation
{(Actual basis) Refer note 4 below 664.00 811.38
Present value of funded defined benefit obligation - -
Fair value of plan assets 569.51 482.60
Funded status surplus/ (deficit) (94.49) (328.78)
Principal actuarial assumptions:
Particulars As at As at
31.03.2018 31.03.2017
Rupees in Rupees in
Lakhs Lakhs
Discount rate (p.a.) Refer note Refer note
4 below 4 below
Expected rate of return on assets (p.a.) 7.50% 7.00%
Salary escalation rate (p.a.) Refer note Refer note
4 below 4 below
Normal retirement age (years) 60 60
Mortality rate Refer note Refer note
4 below 4 below
As at As at
31.03.2018 31.03.2017
Rupees in Rupees in
Lakhs Lakhs
Withdrawal rate
Ages from 20-25
Ages from 25-30
Ages from 30-35 Refer note Refer note
4 below 4 below
Ages from 35-50
Ages from 50-55
Ages from 55-58
Notes:

1)

2)
3)

4)

The discount rate is based on the prevailing market yields of Indian Government bonds as at the balance sheetdate for the
estimated term of obligations.

The gratuity planis funded.

The estimates of future salary increases considered take into account the inflation, seniority, promotion and other relevant
factors.

Asthe Company has prepared the financial statements for the year ended 31 March, 2018 and 31 March, 2017 cn nota
going concem basis, liability for post retirement gratuity is provided for on an actual basis and hence disclosures as
required under Ind AS 19"Employee Benefits" related to defined benefit plans have not been made.
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Movement in the fair value of the plan assets are as follows:
Particulars Year ended Year ended
31.03.2018 31.03.2017
Rupees in Rupees in
Lakhs Lakhs
Opening fair value of plan assets 482.60 1,033.70
Interest income 36.23 54.74
Employer contributions 328.78 97.01
Return on plan assets greater/ (lesser) than discount rate (19.39) 1.69
Benefits paid (258.71) (704 .54)
Closing fair value of plan assets 569.51 482 .60
The plan assets of the Company managed through a trust are managed
by Trustees of Tata Yodogawa Ltd Gratuity Fund. The details of investments
relating to these assets are as under
As at As at
31.03.2018 31.03.2017
Investment details (% invested)
Government of India Securities (Central and State) 30.42% 15.30%
High quality corporate bonds (including public sector bonds) 42.20% 37.00%
Cash (including special deposits) 27.38% 47.70%
Total 100.00% 100.00%

i)

The Company expects to make a confribution of Rs. 94 49lakhs {as at 31 March, 2017: Rs. 328.78 lakhs) to defined benefit plan

during the next financial year.
Unfunded defined benefit plans

The amountincludedin the Balance Sheet arising from the entity's obligation in respect of its unfunded defined benefit plans is

as follows:
Post Retirement Medical Benefit (PRMB)

Particulars As at

31.03.2018

Rupees in
lakhs

Provision for unfunded defined benefit obligation (Actual basis)
Refer note 4 below 122.48

Present value of unfunded defined benefit obligation -

(122.48)
Principal actuarial assumptions:
Particulars As at
31.03.2018
Discount rate (p.a.)
Refer note
4 below

Medical costs inflation rate (p.a.)
Average medical cost (Rs/person)

As at
31.03.2017
Rupees in
lakhs

124.88

124.88

As at
31.03.2017

Refer note
4 below
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As at As at
31.03.2018 31.03.2017
Demographic assumptions:
Mormal retirement age (years) 60 60
Mortality rate (in service) Refer note Refer note
4 below 4 below
Indian Assured
Lives Mortality (2006-08)
Mortality rate (Post retirement) Refer note Annuitants
4 below ultimate
LIC (1996-98)
Refer note
4 below
Withdrawal rate
Ages from 20-25
Ages from 25-30
Ages from 30-35 Refer note 4 below Refer note 4 below
Ages from 35-50
Ages from 50-55
Ages from 55-80
Motes:

1) Thediscountrate is basedon the prevailing market yields of Indian Government bonds as at the balance sheet date for the
estimated term of obligations.

2) Theplanisfunded.

3) The estimates of future salary increases considered take into account the inflation, seniority, promotion and other relevant
factors.

4) Asthe Company has prepared the financial statements for the year ended 31 March, 2018 and 31 March, 2017 on not a
going concern basis, liability for unfunded defined benefit plans for the year ended 31 March, 2018 is provided for on an
actual basis and hence disclosures as required under Ind AS 18 "Employee Benefits" related to defined benefit plans have

not beenmade for that period.
The following table sets outthe the amount recognised in the financial staterments:
Particulars As at 31.03.2018 As at 31.03.2017
Post Pension Post Pension
Retirement to Directors Retirement to Directors
Medical Medical
benefits benefits

i. Amounts recognised in the Statement of Profit
and Loss inrespect of these unfunded defined
benefits plans are as follows:

Current service cost 2 4 = Z
Interest cost = = %
Provision recorded (Refer note 4 above) - - - 1517

Components of unfunded defined benefit
costs recognised in profit or loss = - 2 &

ii. Remeasurement on the net unfunded
defined benefit liability:

Actuarial {gain)loss £ = i %

Component of unfunded defined benefit costs
recognised in other comprehensive income - - - -
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Particulars
As at 31.03.2018 As at 31.03.2017
Post Pension Post Pension
Retirement to Directors Retirement to Directors
Medical Medical
benefits benefits

ili. Movement in the fair value of the unfunded
defined benefit obligation:

Obligation as at the beginning of the year 124.88 - 542.68 249.97
Current service cost - . - -
Interest cost . - = 5

Actuarial (gain)/ loss - - = c

Provision recorded (Refer note 4 above) - - - 15.17

Benefits paid (2.40) - (417 .80) (265.14)

Obligation as at the end of the year 122.48 - 124 .88 -
Sensitivity Analysis

Significant actuarial assumptions for the determination of the unfunded defined benefit obligation are discount rate, expected salary
increase and mortality. The sensitivity analyses below have been determined based on reasonably possible changes of the
assumptions occurring at the end of the reporting period, while holding all otherassumptions constant.

The sensitivity of the defined benefit obligation to changes in the weighted principal assumptions is:

Particulars Year ended 31.03.2018 Year ended 31.03.2017
Post Pension Post Pension
Retirement to Directors Retirement to Directors
Medical Medical
benefits benefits
Effect of a 1% change in medical escalation rate
- 1% Increase Refer note Refer note Refer note Refer note
- 1% Decrease 4 above 4 above 4 above 4 above

Effect of a 1% change in discount rate

- 1% Increase Refer note Refer note Refer note Refer note
- 1% Decrease 4 above 4 above 4 above 4 above

Actuarial assumptions for leave benefit scheme
The principal assumptions used for the purposes of the actuarial valuations were as follows:

Valuation as at

31.03.2018 31.03.2017
Mormal retirement age (years) &0 60
Discount rate(s) 7.50% 7.00%
Expected rate(s) of salary increase 0.00% 6.00%

MNotes:

1)  The discountrate is based on the prevailing market yields of Indian Government bonds as atthe balance sheet date for the
estimated term of obligations.

2) The compensated absences plan is unfunded.

3) The estimates of future salary increases considered take into account the inflation, seniority, promotion and other relevant
factors.
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32 Related Party Transactions
A. List of related parties :

Helding company

Tata Steel Limited

Fellow Subsidiaries

a) Tata Steel Europe Limited

b) The Indian Steel & Wire Products Limited

c) The Tinplate Company of India Limited

d) Jamshedpur Continuous Annealing and Processing Company Private Limited
e) Jamshedpur Utilities & Services Company Limited
f)  Tata Metaliks Limited

g) Tata Metaliks DI Pipes Limited

i)  Tata Sponge Iron Limited

i) TKM Global Logistics Limited

k) TRF Limited

Others - Post employment benefit plan

a) Trustees of Tata Yodogawa Limited Gratuity Fund
b) Trustees of Tata Yodogawa Limited Provident Fund
c) Tata Yodogawa Limited Employees Pension Fund
d) Tata Yodogawa Limited Superannuation Fund

iv. Key Management Personnel (KMP)
Mr. K. Shankar Marar (Managing Director)
Rupees in lakhs
Mature of Transactions Holding Fellow Others Key Total
company Subsidiaries Management
Personnel
(KMP)
B. Transactions with related parties
(i) Sale of goods
1 Tata Steel Limited - - - - -
(1,056.03) (-) {-) (-3 (1,056.03)
2 The Tinplate Company of India Limited - - - - -
() (61.19) () () (61.19)
3 The Indian Steel & Wire Products Limited - - - - -
() (49.08) () (-) (49.08)
4 TRF - - - - -
(-) - (-) (-) A
5 Jamshedpur Continuous - - - - -
Annealing and Processing
Company Private Limited {-) (0.57) {-) {-) (0.57)
Total - - - - -
(1,056.03) (110.84) {-) -y (1,166.87)
(i) Purchase of goods
1 Tata Steel Limited - - - - -
(88.48) (-) () (-) (88.48)
(iii) Sale of services
1 Tata Steel Limited - - - - -
(619.22) (-) {-) {-) (619.22)
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Rupees in lakhs

MNature of Transactions Holding Fellow Others Key Total
company Subsidiaries Management
Personnel
(KMP)
(iv) Receiving of services
1 Tata Steel Limited 36449 - - - 364.49
(396.99) ) ) ) (396.99)
2 Jamshedpur Utilities & Services - 10.52 - - 10.52
Company Limited
) (328.89) ) ) (328.89)
Total 36449 10.52 - - 375.01
(396.99) (328.89) - - (725.88)
(v} Receiving of borrowings
1 Tata Steel Limited 700.00 - - - 700.00
(2,137.00) ) ) () (2137.00)
(vi) Repayment of borrowings
1 Tata Steel Limited = - = - -
(500.00) ) ) ) (500.00)

(vii) Interest income
1 Jamshedpur Utilities & Services - 0.35 - - 0.35
Company Limited
) (5.64) ) ) (5.64)
(viii) Interest costs

1 Tata Steel Limited 72171 - - - T21.71
(704.90) ) ) ) (704.90)
(ix) Reimbursement of expenses (paid)
1 Tata Steel Limited 79.03 - - - 79.03
(24.70) =) ) ) (24.70)
2 The Indian Steel & Wire Products Limited - - - -
7 () (4.16) ) ) (4.16)
Total 79.03 - - - 79.03
(24.70) (4.16) ) ) (28.86)
(x) Issue of preference shares
1 Tata Steel Limited 7.825.00 - - - 7.825.00
(2,905.00) () () () (2,905.00)
{xi}) Provision for doubtful debts and receivables
1 Tata Steel Limited - - - - -
(4.79) ) ) ) (4.79)
2 The Tinplate Company of India Limited - - -
- ) (7.66) ) () (7.66)
3 Tata Steel Europe Limited - - - - -
- ) (1.58) S ) (1.68)
Total - - - - -
(4.79) (9.24) - -) (14.03)
(xii) Contribution to post employment benefit plans
1 Trustees of Tata Yodogawa Limited - - 94.49 - 94.49
Gratuity Fund -) i-) (83.87) -) (83.87)
2 Trustees of Tata Yodogawa Limited - - 90.66 - 90.66
Provident Fund
) () (25190) 6 (251.90)
3 Tata Yodogawa Limited Employees - - 0.64 - 0.64
Pension Fund -) -} (28.15) =) (28.15)
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Rupees in lakhs

Mature of Transactions Holding Fellow Others Key Total
company Subsidiaries Management
Personnel
(KMP)

4 Tata Yodogawa Limited Superannuation Fund - - 022 - 022

) () 4321) ) (43.21)

Total - - 186.01 - 186.01

(-) () (407.13) (-) (407.13)

(xii) Managerial remu neration#
Mr. K. Shankar Marar - - ~ o -
(=) ) (=) (40.18) (40.18)

# Managerial remuneration for KMP excludes provision for leave benefit scheme and gratuity, as separate figures for
KMP is not available.

Note: Figures in brackets stated pertain to year ended 31 March, 2017

Rupees in lakhs
Mature of Transactions Holding Fellow Key Total
company Subsidiaries Management
Personnel
(KMP)
C. The following balances were outstanding at the
end of the reporting period
(i) Outstanding receivables
a) Tata Steel Limited
As at 31-03-2018 66.09 - - 66.09
As at 31-03-2017 118.13 - - 11813
b) The Indian Steel & Wire Products Limited
As at 31-03-2018 - - - -
As at 31-03-2017 - 053 - 053
c) Tata Steel Europe Limited
As at 31-03-2018 - - - -
As at 31-03-2017 - 1.58 - 158
d) The Tinplate Company of India Limited
As at 31-03-2018 - - - -
As at 31-03-2017 - 766 - 766
e) Tata Metaliks DI Pipes Limited
As at 31-03-2018 - 1.94 - 1.94
As at 31-03-2017 - 194 - 194

f) TRF Limited
As at 31-03-2018 - 18.28 - 18.28
As at 31-03-2017 - - - -

(ii) Deposits (including interest accrued)
a) Jamshedpur Utilities & Services Company Limited

As at 31-03-2018 - 415 - 415
As at 31-03-2017 - 8.04 - 8.04
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Rupees in lakhs
Mature of Transactions Helding Fellow Key Total
company Subsidiaries Management
Personnel
(KMP)
(iii) Outstanding payables
a) Tata Steel Limited
As at 31-03-2018 B858.75 . 858.75
As at 31-03-2017 362.78 - - 36278
b) The Indian Steel & Wire Products Limited
As at 31-03-2018 - 14.20 14.20
As at 31-03-2017 - 13.96 - 13.96
c) Jamshedpur Wilities & Services Company Limited
As at 31-03-2018 - 045 045
As at 31-03-2017 - 1.15 - 1.15
d) The Tinplate Company of India Limited
As at 31-03-2018 - 0.60 060
As at 31-03-2017 - - - -
(iv) Issue of preference shares
a) Tata Steel Limited
As at 31-03-2018 33.814.00 33.814.00
As at 31-03-2017 26,005.00 - - 2600500
(v) Current borrowings
a) Tata Steel Limited
As at 31-03-2018 6,700.00 6,700.00
As at 31-03-2017 6.000.00 - - 6,000.00
(vi) Interest accrued
a) Tata Steel Limited
As at 31-03-2018 1,589.18 1,589.18
As at 31-03-2017 B67 47 - - 86747
(vii) Advance received
a) Tata Steel Limited
As at 31-03-2018 2,097.36 2,097.36
As at 31-03-2017 2,157.10 - - 2,157 10
(viii) Allowance for doubtful debts (expected credit loss allowance)
a) Tata Steel Limited
As at 31-03-2018 - -
As at 31-03-2017 479 - - 479
b) The Tinplate Company of India Limited
As at 31-03-2018 - - -
As at 31-03-2017 - 766 - 766
c) Tata Steel Europe Limited
As at 31-03-2018 . . -
As at 31-03-2017 - 158 - 158

92



TAYO ROLLS

P

Fiftieth annual report 2017-18

Notes to the Financial Statements

33 Contingent liabilities and commitments

331 Contingent liabilities
a) Claims against the Company not acknowledged as debts

As at 31.03.2018

Rupees in lakhs
As at 31.03.2017

Excise and service tax * 313.14 405.60
Sales tax 275.60 129.60
income tax 233.1 271.64
Other money for which the Company is contingently liable
(i) JSEB/BSEB -electricity charges (excluding interest ) 23,036.06 23,036.06
(Refer note (i) and (ii) below)
(i) Export promotion capital goods scheme (Refer note (iii) below) - 92279
* Amount paid under protest in respect thereof 10.00 10.00
b) Guarantees
- Bank guarantee (Refer note (ii) below) 372.00 372.00

(i)

(if)

(i)

Consequent to the judgment dated 2 May, 201 3 of Honourable Jharkhand High Court with regard to the applicability
of power tariff structure on the Company's Induction Furnace Unit from January 2000, the Jharkhand State
Electricity Board (JSEB) had raised rectified energy bill dated 10 June, 2013 for Rs. 27,203.00 lakhs (later claim
revised to Rs. 26,361.00 lakhs). The rectified energy bil was challenged separately before the Honourable
Jharkhand High Court. The Company has also contested the judgment dated 2 May, 2013 on the applicability of
power tariff structure by way of filing an appeal before the Honourable Jharkhand High Court which has been
admitted on merit on 3 July, 2013 . The demand raised by JSEB has been considered as contingent liability in the
financial statements.

JSEB had also initiated Certificate proceedings for recovery of Rs. 26,361.00 lakhs against the Company and the
Board of Directors, which was challenged before the Certificate Officer. The Certificate Officerin his Order dated 12
December, 2015 has absolved the directors from any liability to the extent the certificate amount is considered. He
also directed JSEB to raise revised bills and the Company to pay the same within 15 days ofthe order. JSEB has
raised the revised bill dated 24 December, 2015 for Rs. 21,803.67 lakhs. The Company has also challenged the
Order dated 12 December, 2015 of the Certificate officer before the Division Bench ofthe Jharkhand High Court.

On 18 December, 2015, the Division Bench of Jharkhand High Court has passed its Order that "No Coercive
Action" shall be initiated against the Company during pendency andfinal hearing of the Appeals.

On 18 December, 2015, the Division Bench of Jharkhand High Court has passed its Order that ""No Coercive
Action™ shall be initiated against the Company during pendency and final hearing of the Appeals.”

During the financial year 2000-01, Bihar State Electricity Board (BSEB) had issued circulars revising the fuel
surcharge rates for the period from 1996-97 to 1999-2000. Based onmanagement estimate the Company had paid
and provided the principal amount aggregating to Rs. 43.61lakhs in the books of account and filed a Letters Patent
Appeal (LPA) before the Division Bench of the Jharkhand High Court disputing payment of delayed payment
surcharge (DPS) amounting to Rs. 1,232.39 lakhs.

Further, the Company had also filed a Special Leave Petition (SLP) before the Hon'ble Supreme Court for seeking
relief from payment of DPS. The Supreme Court granted stay on the payment of DPS fill final decision by the
Jharkhand High Court. The matter is still sub-judice. Pending finalisation of the matter no adjustments have been
made in the financial statements for the year ended 31 March, 2018.

The Company hadissued a bank guarantee of Rs. 372.00 lakhs relating to above "

The Company had filed an application with the Director General of Foreign Trade for discharge of export
obligation. During the year Export Oboligation Discharges Certificate (EODC) has been received and there is
no cbligation.

33.2 Commitments

Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account and not provided for Rs. nil {(as at31.03.2017: Rs.
nil)againstwhich advances paid Rs. nil (as at 31.03.2017: R5.8.31 lakhs).
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34.1 End use of funds raised from the issue of Non-Cumulative Redeemable Preference Shares

34.2

3.3
3.4

Rupees in lakhs

_As at 31.03.2018 _As at 31.03.2017

Opening balance as at beginning of the year 258.53 -
Funds raised during the year 7,825.00 2,805.00
Utilisation of fund
a) Capital expenditure - -
b)  Repayment of cash credit utilisation 6,381.92
c)  Repayment of inter corporate deposit (ICD) - 500.00
d) Working capital 1,501.61 2,146 .47

Unutilised monies at end of the year 200.00 258.53

The Company did not have any long term contracts including derivative contracts for which there were any material
foreseeable losses.

There were no amounts whichwere required to be transferred tothe Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Company.
The year end foreign currency exposuresthat have notbeen hedged by aderivative instrument orotherwise are given below:

Amount in foreign currency
All amount in lakh

GBP uspo JPY Rupees in
lakhs
Amount receivable from export of goods - - - -
(0.02) (0.26) (21.10)
Amount payable for:
Royalty - 3.18 - 207.12
- (3.19) (522.92) (510.21)
Mote: Figures in brackets are for the previous year.
TURNOVER, CLOSING AND OPENING STOCKS OF GOODS PRODUCED
Class of products Turnover @ Closing Stock Opening Stock
Tonnes Rupees Tonnes Rupees Tonnes Rupees
in lakhs in lakhs in lakhs
a) Rolls
(i) Steel, steel base - - : ¥ - -
and Cast iron rolls (990) (1.483.50) (50) (53.98)
(i) Forged rolls 3 7.19 - - 3 7.37
(284) (669.79) (3) (7.37) (22) (45.86)
b) Pigiron
(i) Others - pig iron skull etc. - - - -
- (459.32) - (570.62)
c) Ingots - - - - - -
(133) (64.14)
d}) Engineering forgings - - - - - -
(174) (338.48) - - (2) (2.21)
e) Conversion income - - - - - -
- (738.50) - - - -
TOTAL 7.19 - - 7.37
(3.689.59) (7.37) (736.81)

94



TAYO ROLLS hYo
Fiftieth annual report 2017-18 A9,,%
Notes to the Financial Statements
Notes:
i) @ includes excise duty recovered from customers and excludes other operating revenues
(i) * after adjustment for stocks value written down and transferred to semi-finished stock
(i) ** Walue of closing stocks includes excise duty.
iv) Figures in brackets are in respect of the previous year.
346 CONSUMPTION OF RAW MATERIALS *
Year ended Year ended
31.03.2018 31.03.2017
Quantity Rupees Quantity Rupees
Tonnes in lakhs Tonnes in lakhs
a) Scrap (net of own generated scrap) - - 478 97.47
b) Ferro Moly - - 2 11.74
c)  Other ferro alloys - - 4 12.49
d}  Nickel - - 10 63.48
e) Fluxes - - 2 4.36
fi  Others - - 709.94
- 89948
“Met of shortagelexcess identified during physical count.
347 Details of closing stock of raw materials (including packing materials)
Rupees in lakhs
Closing Stock
Particulars As at As at
31.03.2018 31.03.2017
(a) Scrap 280.19 280.19
b)  Other ferro alloys 20.34 20.34
(c) Others 463.27 463.27
Total 763.80 763.80
34.8 C.IF. value of imports:
Rupees in lakhs
Year ended Year ended
31.03.2018 31.03.2017
a) Components, stores and spares parts - 18.49
349 Expenditure in foreign currency:
a) Royalty - 27.93
34.10 Consumption of imported and indigenous materials

\alue of consumption of imported and indigenously obtained raw materials, components, stores and spare parts and the

percentage of each tothe total consumption:
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Year ended Year ended
31.03.2018 31.03.2017
%Y Rupees % Rupees
in lakhs in lakhs
a) Raw materials:

Imported - - - -
Indigenous - - 100.00 899 .48

b) Components, stores and spare parts:
Imported - - 4.00 1849
Indigenous - - 96.00 654 38

.11 Earnings in foreign exchange:
Rupees in lakhs
Year ended Year ended
31.03.2018 31.032017
FOB value of exports - 2722

{including value of exports through export house/agents)

Financial instruments
Capital management

The Company has incurred a loss of Rs. 2,565 .64 |akhs during the year ended 31 March, 2018 (incurred a loss of Rs. 8,294.88
lakh during the year ended 31 March, 2017) and the accumulated losses as at 31 March, 2018 amounting to Rs. 51,399.45
lakhs (as at 31 March, 2017 amounting to Rs. 48,797 .91 lakhs) have eroded the net worth of the Company. The Company's
operating results continue to be materially affected by various factors, particularly high pricing pressures due to overcapacity in
rollindustry, general economic slowdown and unavailability of future financing.

The Beard of Directors at their meeting held on 5 September, 2016 have decided to close the operations of the Company.
Accordingly, on 6 September, 2016 the Company has filed closure application w's 25-0 of the Industrial Disputes Act, 1847
with the State Government Authorities. The application was rejected on 27 October, 2016. The Company has filed a writ
petitionin the Honourable Jharkhand High Court against the rejection order. The matter is subjudice.

The short term funding requirements are met primarily through issue of non-cumulative redeemable preference shares to the
holding company and loans from the holding company.

Gearing ratio
The gearing ratio at the end of the reporting period was as follows:
Rupees in lakhs

As at 31.03.2018 As at 31.03.2017
Debt (i) 42,514.42 4063281
Cash and bank balance 795.40 77950
Net debt 41,719.02 39,853 .31
Total equity (44,831.36) (42,265.72)
Net debt to equity ratio (%) -93.06% -84 29%

(iy Debtis defined as long term and short term borrowings
as disclosed in note 16, 17 and 20
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A. Financial assets and liabilities
As at 31.03.2018
Rupees in lakhs

Financial assets Amortised Fair value Fair value Total Total
cost through through carrying fair
ocl profit value value

and loss

Other investments 0.09 - - 0.09 0.09

Trade receivables 73.53 - - 73.53 7353

Cash and cash equivalents 249.00 - - 249.00 249.00

Bank balances other than cash 546.40 - - 546.40 546.40

and cash equivalents

Other financial assets 22098 - - 22098 22098

{current and non-current)

Total financial assets 1.090.00 - - 1,090.00 1,090.00

Financial liabilities

Borrowings 4251442 - - 4251442 42,514 42

Trade payables 2,858.81 - - 2,858.81 2,858.81

Other financial liabilities 1,665.57 - - 1,665.57 1,665.57

Total financial liabilities 47,038.80 - - 47 ,038.80 47,038.80

As at31.032017 Rupees in lakhs

Financial assets Amortised Fair value Fair value Total Total
cost through through carrying fair
ocl profit value value

and loss

Other investments 0.09 - - 0.09 0.09

Trade receivables 11387 - - 11387 11387

Cash and cash equivalents 779.03 - - 779.03 779.03

Bank balances other than cash

and cash equivalents 047 - - 047 047

Other financial assets

{current and non-current) 76.65 - - 76.65 75.65

Total financial assets 970.11 - - 970.11 970.11

Financial liabilities

Borrowings 40,237 36 - - 4023736 40,237 36
Trade payables 252176 - - 252176 252176
Other financial liabilities 1477.02 - - 1477.02 147702
Total financial liabilities 44 236.14 - - 4423614 44.236.14

B. The following table provides an analysis of financial instruments that are measured subsequent to initial recognition at
fair value, grouped into Level 1to Level 3, as described below:

Quoted prices in an active market (Level 1):

This level of hierarchy includes financial assets that are measured by reference to quoted prices (unadjusted) inactive
markets for identical assets orliabilities. This category consists quoted equity shares, quoted corporate debtinstruments
and mutual fund investments.
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Valuation techniques with observable inputs (Level 2):

This level of hierarchy includes financial assets and liabilities, measured using inputs other than quoted prices
included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e., as prices) orindirectly (i.e., derived
from prices). Thislevel of hierarchyincludes Company's over-the-counter (OTC) derivative contracts.

Valuationtechniques with significantunobservable inputs (Level 3):

This level of hierarchy includes financial assets and liabilities measured using inputs that are not based on observable market
data (unobservable inputs). Fair values are determined in whole or in part, using a valuationmode! based onassumptions that
are neither supported by prices from observable current market transactions in the same instrument nor are they based on
available market data.

Investments of the Company are measured at fair value at the end of each reporting period. The following table gives
information on determination of its fairvalue, the valuationtechnique and inputs used.

Financial assets Fair value Fair value Valuation
as at hierarchy technigues Investment in
and key equity
Input instruments
(Quoted)
Rupees in Rupeesin Rupeesin
lakhs lakhs lakhs
Investment in equity instruments (quoted) - - -
Investment in equity instruments (Unquoted) - - -
Investments in debentures or bonds 0.09 0.09 Level 3 Valued using
the cost
approach to
arrive at
their fair
value.
Refer note
(i) below.

Motes:

Includes certain investments whose fair values are Nil.

Cost of these investments approximate the fair value because there is a range of possible fair value measurements and
the cost represents estimate of fair value within that range.

Fair value of the Company's financial assets and financial liabilities that are not measured at fair value on a
recurring basis :

The directors consider that the carrying amounts of financial assets and financial liabilities recognised in the financial
statements approximate their fairvalues.

Financial risk management

The Company's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks which includes market risk (including foreign currency
exchange rate risk and interest rate risk ), creditrisk and liquidity risk.

The Company's focus is to ensure liquidity which is sufficient to meet the Company's operational requirements. The
Company monitors and manages key financial risks so as to minimise potential adverse effects on its financial
performance. The Company has a risk management policy which covers the risks associated with the financial assets
and liabilities. The details for managing each of these risks are summarised ahead.

Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the expected cash flows or fair value of afinancial instrument could change owingto changesin
market prices. The Company's activities expose it primarily to the financial risks of changes in Foreign currency
exchangerate and interest.

Foreign currency exchange rate risk:

Foreign exchange risk comprises of risk that may arise to the Company because of fluctuations in foreign currency
exchange rates. Fluctuations in foreign currency exchange rates may have an impact on the Statements of Profit and
Loss. At the year end, the Company was exposed to foreign exchange risk arising from the foreign currency payables of
the Company.

The carrying amounts of the Company foreign currency denominated monetary assets and monetary liabilities at the
end of the reporting period are as follows:
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Rupees in lakhs

Liabilities as Assets as at
at 31.03.2018 31.03.2018

Euro - -
GBP - -
uso 207.12 -
JBY - -
Total 207.12 -
Rupees in lakhs

Liabilities as Assets as at

at 31.03.2017 31.03.2017

Euro - -
GBP - 1.57
usD 207.12 19.53
JPY 303.09 -
Total 510.21 21.10

The following table details the Company's sensitivity to 10% increase or decrease in the rupee against the relevant
foreign currencies. 10% is the sensitivity rate used when reporting foreign currency risk internally to key management
personnel and represents management's assessment of the reasonably possible change in the foreign exchange rate.
The sensitivity analysis includes only outstanding foreign cumrency dencminated monetary items and adjusts their
translation atthe pericd end for a 10% change in foreign currency rates.

Rupees in lakhs
Forthe year ended

Impact on loss/equity 31.03.2018 31.03.2017
Euro - -
GBP - 0.16
ush (20.71) (18.76)
JBY - (30.31)
(20.71) (48.91)

Interest rate risk management

The Company is exposed to interest rate risk on current and non-current borrowings outstanding as at the yearend which
include both fixed and floating interest rate borrowings.

Ifinterest rates had been 50 basis points higher/lower and all other variables were held constant, the Company's loss for
the year ended 31.03.201 8 would increase/decrease by Ris. 33.50 lakhs (forthe yearended 31.03 2017 Rs. 61.27 lakhs).
Credit risk management

"Credit risk refers to the risk that the counterparty will default on its contractual obligations resultingin financial loss to the
Company. The Company has adopted a policy of only dealing with creditworthy counterparties and obtaining sufficient
collateral, where appropriate, as a means of mitigating the risk of financial loss from defaults. Credit exposure is
controlled by counterparty limits that are reviewed and approved by the management regularly. Trade receivables consist
of few major customers for sale of product and services. Ongoing credit evaluation is performed based on the financial
condition of accounts receivables.”

Ligquidity risk management

Liguidity risk istherisk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting obligations associated with financial liabilities
that are settled by delivering cash or other financial assets.

The Company has obtained fund and non-fund based working capital lines from various banks. The Company invests its
surplus fundsin bank fixed deposits and liquid plus schemes of mutual funds, which carry mark to market risk.

Expected maturity for financial liabilities
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MNote:

Rupees in lakhs
As at 31.03.2018 Less than Between More than Total
1year 1to 5 years 5 years

Financial liabilities

Borrowing including undiscounted interest 7.454.20 16,400.00 19,430.00 43,284.20
Trade payables 2,858.81 - - 2,858.81
Other financial liabilites 1,665.57 - - 1,665.57

11,978.58 16,400.00 19,430.00 47,808.58

As at 31.03.2017

Financial liabilities

Borrowing including undiscounted interest 14,174.08 16,400.00 11,605.00 42,179.08
Trade payables 2,521.76 - - 2,521.76
Other financial liabilities 1.081.57 - - 1,081.57

17,777 .41 16,400.00 11,605.00 45,782 .41

Exceptional items
Voluntary separation scheme

The Board of Directors in the meeting held on 26 May 2016 had approved a Voluntary Separation Scheme (the V5SS Scheme)
for employees and a phase wise suspension of operations. The Company issued a VSS circular on 31 May, 2016 to all its
employees and having evaluated the response from employees subsequently revised the scheme on 5 Septernber, 2016, 28
October 2016, 9 March, 2017, 15 May. 2017 and 23 March, 2018. Pursuant to the VS5 Scheme, a provision of Rs 2 870.37
lakhs has been recognised as an exceptional item during the previous year. The Company, post expiry of the revised VSS, had
reviewed the remaining provision against the expenditure, and has considered the balance amount to be adequate to meet the
present obligation and probable outflow to settle the current obligation.

Write back of liabilities

During the year ended 31 March, 2017, the Company has undertaken negotiations for one time full and final settlement of
vendor liabilities. Consequent to such settlement, a write back of excess liabilities over the setlied amount aggregates to Rs.
605.02 lakhs for the year ended 31,March, 2018and Rs 351 .48 lakhs for the year ended 31 March, 2017 has been recognised
as an exceptional item.

Deferred tax assets / liabilities (net)
Rupees in lakhs

As at 31.03.2018 As at 31.03.2017
Deferred tax assets / liability (net) consists of
a) Book/tax depreciation difference 805.09 1,035.96
b) Employee benefits (27.07) (32.78)
c¢) Carry forward of business loss 12,915.05 16,181.85
d) Others 222.67 354.81
Deferred tax assets [ liability 13,915.74 17.543.84

Deferred tax assets / liability recognised in books - -

(i) The Company has carried out its tax computation in accordance with Ind AS 12 'Income Taxes'. In view of low
probability that future taxable profit will be available against which temporary difference can be utilised and on account of
preparation of Ind AS financial statements on not a going concern basis, no deferred tax assets have been recognised on
unusedtaxlosses.

(i) Detail of temporarydifferences, unusedtax losses and unused tax credits for which no deferred tax assetis recognised in

thebalance sheet:
Rupees in lakhs
Particulars As at 31.03.2018 As at 31.03.2017
Deferred tax assets with no expiry date 805.09 1,039.96
Deferred tax assets with expiry date® 13,110.65 16,503.88
13,915.74 17,543.84
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* These would expire between 2020 to 2027
38  Approval of financial statements

The Ind AS financial statements were approved for issue by the Board of Directors on 2 May, 2018.
For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

K SHANKAR MARAR ANAND SEN
Director Chairman
DIN: 06656658 DIN: 00237914
Place: Kolkata

SURESH PADMANABHAN

Date: 2 May, 2018 Dy Chief Financial Officer
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REVENUE ACCOUNTS CAPITAL ACCOUNTS Share Share
(Rupees) {PAT)
5l Year Sale of Depre- Profit
No. products  ciation bafora Dividend Share Ras- Borraw-  Gross Met Shares of Rs. 100/-
& Other Tax Tax | percent | {Capital erves ings Block Block each
Income
(Rupees in Lakhs) (Rupees in Lakhs) (Rupeas)
1 1969-70 58.33 16.08 [-)14.16 - - 249.32 — 370.62 64762 606.50 —_ —_
2 1970-71 314.66 47.50 17.71 -_ - 249,66 -— 413.00 667.74 599.95 99.87 7.08
3 1971-72 336.55 52.19 39.09 - i 249.78 4470 42211 681.09 563.34 117.79 15.64
4 1972-73 330.93 52.40 9.42 - i 2449 88 3912 373.12 647 .67 516.96 115.60 3.77
5 1973-74 338.52 53,13 2.8 - - 249.92 2645 341.57 700.75 475483 110.75 113
[ 1974-75 502.03 53,53 36.19 - 106 244993 3415 291,15 72419 448 84 12523 14.48
tax Free
7 1975-76 481.43 5528 2361 - 5% 249.94 4925 264.41 733,53 403.30 119.68 9.44
tax Free
8 1976-77 555.96 54.44 53.04 —_ 5% 249.95 8979 210.66 74338 35847 135.90 21.22
tax Free
9 1977-78  601.89 54.62 6289 - % 24998 13780 14851 78142 31159 155.15 25,20
tax Free
10 1978-79 733.35 57.94 115.61 51.00 12% 24998 17241 138,37 786.05 289.39 169.00 2585
11 1979-80 830.35 54.40 103.36 63.00 12% 24998 18278 116.52 /0281 251,81 173.15 16.15
12 1980-81 865.36 32.07 97.43 55.00 12% 24998 19522 85.05 814.08 231.62 178.13 16.98
13 1981-82 111736 42.07 126.19 28.00 15% 249.98 255482 89.73 97628 35312 202.41 39.29
14 1982-83 1586.76 47.05 84,52 25.00 15% 249.98 277485 92,64 1088.45 419.43 211,23 23.82
15 1983-84 1579.14 B68.36 65.69 38.00 10%0 249.98 28065 7386 114224 404 .89 212,31 11.09
16 1984-85 1854.43 60,19 89.40 48.80 15% 249.98 28376 57.47 1184.04 390.61 213.55 16.25
17 1935-86 2308.34 41.51 306.25 147.00 206 244998 42502 183.42 1266.03 463.42 270.07 63.72
18 1986-87 2661.89 48.88 9557 2200 206 24998 44861 228.37 1390.37 539.84 279,51 29.44
14 1987-83 2978.52 B4.66 104.28 31.04 15% 24998 484.40 77556 1428.89 52331 293,43 2932
20 1988-89  3396.64 83.89 16.60 265 | 15% 24998 47754 90135 192142 949.06 251.08 5.58
Shares of Rs.10/-each
21 1989-90 4100.40 106.17 81.66 13,25 18% 24998 500,97 100386 205,62 94732 30.05 274
2 1990-91 4351.72 113.65 235.70 36.00 25% 24998 63818 958.96 2187.76 994.07 35.54 7.99
23 1991-92 4851495 137.93 247.72 106.00 25% 249.98 717.42 2220.74 3339.54 2035.72 3871 5.67
24 199293 511327 23141 407.93 150000 25% 54732 1154.45 2086.59 4429 44 2859.37 31.10 471
25 1993-94 £776.30 370.70 344.55 93,00 25% 54732 126918 223008 504038 3142.06 3319 4.59
26 1994-95 6224.20 423.10 403.28 130,00 25% 54732 137197 2010.63 5256.62 2937.35 35.07 4.99
27 1995-96 6£781.96 428.59 405.51 120,00 27.5% 54732 143840 1970.25 5403.74 2656.00 36.28 5.22
28 1996-97 7331.59 418.30 537.22 231.00 27.5% 54732 157926 1767.07 5702.49 2543.24 38.86 5.60
2 1997-98 7350.62 438.06 708.80 280,00 30% 54732 182747 1671.63 6041.52 2525.61 43.39 7.84
30 1998-99 7604.76 466.81 692,91 158.00 32.5% 54732 21494 23289 7801.11 3951.50 49,56 9,77
3 1999-2000  8907.66 553.28 736.56 265.00 32.5% 54732 243507 1534.30 TR4.29 3501.55 54 .49 8.54
£l 2000-01  9433.94 543.51 567.42 205.00 32.5% 54732 260188 1609.33 TMOAR  3060.30 57.54 B.63
33 2001-02 9577.14 518.26 211.40 78.05 2% 547.32 218588 965.58 78R5.73 271234 49.94 2.44
34 2002-03 1001083 466.60 627.38 220,00 27 547,32 2426.73 706.58 7994.84 2398.28 54.34 745
35 2003-04 1043065 424.14 595.78 173.16 27 547.32 2682.65 78345 8062.74 2068.64 59.02 772
36 2004-05 1404573 418.73 842.40 233.75 40% 547.32 283294 303631 10084.14 3768.12 61.76 11.12
37 2005-06 1844756 51661 756.46 141.90 A% 54732 319788 326707 1018093 3381499 58.43 11.23
38 2006-07 22154.81 492 88 1532.50 4659.95 42.5% 54732 381768 283985 10362.06 311594 76.10 19.41
£ ] 2007-08 24678.77 421.56 983.44 348.37 40% 54732 418215 3p08. 76 1307748 5479.78 86.43 11.60
40 2008-09 1892972 354.13 (-)1839.52 (-)165.9 =) 1026.13 795998 BE55.41 22075.61 14192.18 87.57 (23.68)
41 2009-10 14236.63 39556 (-)1153.30 ] [ 1026.13  6806.68 1198894 27256.11 19029.55 76.30 [11.24)
42 2010-11 14727 .86 562.17 (-)3044.00 ] [ 1026.13 5540.05 16670.19 30243.82 21458.17 96.40 (29.67)
43 2011-12 1523280 181094 (-}5312.39 ] [} 9526.13 (-)1597.56 13874.24 27939.71 1734351 64,00 (51.77)
44 2012-13 19644.96 1915.64 (-}3373.84 ] [} 9526.13 (4971400 1502718 2904346 16548.01 44 .80 (32.48)
45 2013-14 158754.52 2258570 (-)7504 44 () [} 18226.13 (12526.42) 1306655 29903.26 1347280 49.50 (73.14)
46 2014-15 15756.04 1304.70 (-)6762.07 [} [ 24526.13 (19332.44) 1148963 3242631 13877.03 69.00 (65.90)
47 2015-16 14180.75 1541.20 (-)15687.73 [} [ 26126.13 (35020.17) 1263666 26329.36 6259.27 38.30 (152.89)
48 2016-17 526583  §94.46 ()8294.88 (- (- 1026.13 (43291.85) (4153545) 838100 623639 5100  (80.85)
49 2017-18 93,36 A78.04  [)2565.64 () () 1026.13 (45857.49) (44103.60) 833190 4656.49 5450  (25.00)
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TAYO ROLLS LIMITED

3, Circuit House Area (North-East), Road No. 11,
PO & PS -Bistupur, Jamshedpur - 831 001, Jharkhand, India
Corporate ldentity No. : L27105JH1968PLCD00S 18
Phone No.: 0657 - 2227821| Website : www.iayo.co.in



